BOARD OF EDUCATION
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA

September 10, 2024
6:30 p.m.

Board of Education Board Room
1300 17" Street, City CENTRE — Bakersfield, CA 93301

Any materials required by law to be made available to the public prior to a meeting of the Kern County Board of
Education can be inspected during normal business hours at the Kern County Superintendent of Schools Office,
located at 1300 17t Street, Seventh Floor, Bakersfield, California 93301.

An individual who requires disability related accommodations or modifications, including auxiliary aids and
service, in order to participate in the board meeting should contact the Superintendent’s Office at (661) 636-4617

(Government Code 54954.2).

This meeting is being held in an in-person format. Members of the public wishing to provide comments to the

elalal=

Board can attend the meeting in person. Correspondence sent by mail or email to kcboe@kern.org before noon
on the date of the board meeting on subjects within the Board's jurisdiction will be provided to the Board at the
meeting and made available for public inspection. Members of the public may also observe the meeting via
livestream at the following link: (1) Kern County Board of Education — YouTube.

1.0 GENERAL FUNCTIONS

1.1 Call to order time p.m.

1.2 Pledge of Aliegiance
1.3 Roll Call

Julie A. Beechinor, Area 1

Joe L. Marcano, Area 2

Mary M. Little, Area 3

Jose E. Gonzalez, Jr., Area 4

Paula E. Bray, Area 5

Daniel R. Giordano, Area 6

Lori J. Cisneros, Area 7

Violetamarysol Morales, Student Representative
Dr. John G. Mendiburu, Superintendent

T
T

1.4  Adoption of the Agenda
Mation Second Ayes Nayes Abstain
1.5 Approval of the Minutes from August 13, 2024.

Motion Second Ayes Nayes Abstain



2.0 PUBLIC COMMENTS

The Board of Education appreciates comments from members of the public who have the opportunity to address
the Board on agenda items (before the Board’s consideration of the item) and on other matters within the Board's

jurisdiction.

To move the meeting business along efficiently, individual speakers are aliotted up to three minutes each, and
the total time for comment on each agenda or other topic within the Board’s jurisdiction will be limited to 20
minutes. All requests for public comment must be submitted prior to the start of the meeting. In exceptional
circumstances, the Board President may, with Board consent, reduce or increase the amount of time allowed for
public input and/or the time allotted for each speaker, when such adjustment is necessary to ensure full
opportunity for public input within the time allotted. Any such adjustments shall be done in an equitable manner,
so as to allow a diversity of viewpoints. The President may also ask members of the public with the same
viewpoint to select a few individuals to address the Board regarding that viewpoint.

To allow the Board to organize the public comments, persons wishing to speak will need to complete a form
before the board meeting begins, providing their name, contact information, and the agenda item or other topic
on the Board’s jurisdiction on which they wish to speak. ltems not appearing on the agenda cannot, by law, be

the subject of board action.
3.0 INFORMATIONAL ITEMS — NO ACTION TAKEN
3.1 Williams Act Uniform Complaint Quarterly Report.

informational lterm Only

3.2 Charter School Review Presentation and Reports.

4.0 ACTION ITEMS

All consent agenda items for the Kern County Board of Education are considered to be routine and will be
enacted by one motion unless a board member requests separate action on a specific item. Approval is

recommended on all items listed.
41 Consent Agenda
4.1.1 Approval of Graduation Diplomas.

Motion Second Ayes Nayes Abstain
4.2 General Business
421 Presentation and approval of the Prop 28 report.

Motion Second Ayes Nayes Abstain

5.0 REPORT OF COUNTY BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEMBERS

51 Members of the Board will report on various topics.

6.0 REPORT OF COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT

8.1 The County Superintendent will report on various topics.

7.0 AGENDA ITEMS FOR THE NEXT MEETING

7.1 Items to be considered for the next agenda.



8.0 CLOSED SESSION

8.1 CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL — EXISTING LITIGATICN
{Subdivision (a) of Government Code Section 54956.9)
Kern County Superior Court Case Number BCV-23-103771
9.0 ADJOURNMENT
9.1 Uniess otherwise posted, the next regularly scheduled meeting will be held on October 8,
2024, at 6:30 p.m.

9.2 Time of adjournment p.m.



BOARD OF EDUCATION l 5
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES -

August 13, 2024
6:30 p.m,

Board of Education Board Room
1300 17" Street, City CENTRE — Bakersfield, CA 93301

1.0 GENERAL FUNCTIONS

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

The meeting was called to order at 6:30 p.m.
Pledge of Allegiance
Roll Call

Board Members Present
Julie A. Beechinor
Paula E. Bray

Lori J. Cisneros

Daniel R. Gicrdano
Jose E. Gonzalez, Jr.
Mary M. Little
Violetamarysol Morales
Board Members Absent
Joe L. Marcano

KCS0S Employees Present

Dr. John G. Mendiburu, Superintendent

Christian Shannon, Deputy Superintendent

Steve Sanders, Chief of Staff

Merril Clanton, Senior Executive Administrative Assistant to the Superintendent

It was moved by Ms. Littie, seconded by Ms. Beechinor to approve the agenda.

Ayes: Ms. Beechinor, Ms. Bray, Ms. Cisneros, Mr. Giordano, Mr. Gonzalez, and Ms. Little
Nayes: None

Abstain: None

Absent: Mr. Marcano

It was moved by Ms. Bray, seconded by Ms. Beechinor to approve the minutes from
July 9, 2024, with the addition of specifying Trustee Cisneros presented information regarding a
proposed notification sample policy regarding Informational Item 3.2.

Ayes: Ms. Beechinor, Ms. Bray, Ms. Cisneros, Mr. Giordano, Mr. Gonzalez, and Ms. Little
Nayes: None
Abstain: None

Absent: Mr. Marcano



2.0 PUBLIC COMMENTS
2.1 Public Comments were heard from the following:

»  Michael Pollack
= Tonya Holt
* Dennis McLean
= Tiara King, Psy.D.
=  Meg Harwell
= lLance Christiansen

3.0 INFORMATIONAL ITEMS - NO ACTION TAKEN

3.1 There were no Informational Items discussed at this meeting.

4.0 ACTION ITEMS
4.1 Consent Agenda

4.1.1 It was moved by Mr. Marcano, seconded by Ms. Bray to approve the list of graduation

diplomas.

Ayes: Ms. Beechinor, Ms. Bray, Ms. Cisneros, Mr. Giordano, Mr. Gonzalez, and
Ms. Little

Nayes: None

Abstain: None

Absent: Mr. Marcano

4.2 General Business

4.2.1 It was moved by Ms. Beechinor, seconded by Mr. Gonzalez to approve the Resolution
designating September as School Attendance Awareness Month.

Ayes: Ms. Beechinor, Ms. Bray, Ms. Cisneros, Mr. Giordano, Mr. Gonzalez, and
Ms. Littie

Nayes: None

Abstain: None

Absent: Mr. Marcano

5.0 REPORT OF COUNTY BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEMBERS

5.1 Ms. Little discussed her thoughts and provided a brief background about AB1955. She
feels that AB1955 violates the law and the rights of parents. Ms. Little detailed a letter over
100 board members statewide signed and sent to CSBA expressing their concern over
AB1955. Ms. Little cited a poll from the California Policy Center stating that only 14% of
parents were in favor of AB1955. Ms. Littie stated a new bill, SB1283 is also beginning to
gain traction and it is also a bad bill. She said this would take additional freedom and rights

away.



Ms. Beechinor wished teachers, students, administrators, and parents a wonderful first
day of school. She was excited to see how many individuals submitted their forms for the
November election and thanked everyone running. Ms. Beechinor shared Bakersfield
College Rodeo posters regarding the upcoming Rodeo on November 9-10, 2024, and
encouraged everyone to attend.

Mr. Gonzalez welcomed an audience guest from the Lamont School District Board of
Trustees, Emesto Garay.

Ms. Cisneros expressed her appreciation for all teachers preparing for the first day of
school. Ms. Cisneros detailed several community locations participating in back-to-school
backpack and materials distributions. Ms. Cisneros reported that she had the honor of
hosting the Terry Maxwell show and detailed her experience. Ms. Cisneros stated that
AB1955 is close to her heart and stated that the government is attacking school boards
which she feels is extremely concerning. Ms. Cisneros encouraged the board to think
about the sequence of events that brought this bill to our board.

Ms. Bray said she looks forward to seeing pictures of the first day of school and wishes all
students an excellent start to the school year. Ms. Bray expressed her appreciation for
Violetamarysol Morales serving as a Kern County Board of Education Student
Representative. She is looking forward to having a student voice and perspective on the
board. Ms. Bray expressed her appreciation to those running against her in our upcoming
election and wished everyone the best of luck with their candidacy.

Ms. Morales stated that she feels parents should be notified if their student requests to
change their pronouns, changing their biology, or inflict self-harm. She disagrees with
teachers taking cell phones or acting without notifying parents.

6.0 REPORT OF COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT

6.1

Dr. Mendiburu discussed the start of the school year and stated most districts are currently
underway or beginning on August 14, 2024, and wished everyone a fantastic school year.
Due to the wildfires, Caliente Union School District was forced to postpone the start of the
school year by one week. Dr. Mendiburu reported that there is one new Superintendent,
Dr. Wendy Castaneda-Leal, Semitropic Elementary School District, for the 2024-25 school
year. Dr. Mendiburu stated that the Kern County Board of Education will discuss AB1955
in October to provide information on how our local school districts will be required to

implement beginning January 1, 2025.

7.0 AGENDA ITEMS FOR THE NEXT MEETING

7.1

There were no items recommended for consideration for the September 10, 2024, board
meeting.

8.0 CLOSED SESSION

8.1

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL — EXISTING LITIGATION
(Subdivision (a) of Government Code Section 54956.9)



9.0 ADJOURNMENT

9.1 Unless otherwise posted, the next regularly scheduled meeting will be held on September
10, 2024, at 6:30 p.m.

9.2 The meeting was adjourned at 7:36 p.m.

John G. Mendiburu, Ed.D., Superintendent



5.1

Quarterly Report on Williams Uniform Complaints
[Education Code § 35186]

Digtiict / Program:  KCSOS, Department of Special Education Sevices

Parson completing this foorm: Desiree Von Flue Tle: Assistant Superintendent, Student Supports

Quarterly Repoit Submission Date: Jan 1, 2024 (for period Cct 1-Dec 31)

(check one) April 1, 2024 (for period Jan 1 —Mar 31)
XX July 1, 2024 forperiod Apr 1 - Jun 30)

QOct 1, 2024 (for pesiod Jul 1 - Sep 30}
Date forinformation fo be reported publicly at goveming board meefing:  Sept 10, 2024
Please check the box that applies:

| No complainis were filed with any school in the district duing the quarter

indicated above.
a! Complairts were filed with schools in the distict duing the quarter indicated
above, The following chat summanizes the nature and resciuion of these
complaints,
Total #of
General Subject Area Complaints # Resolved # Unresolved
Texthocks and
Instructional 0 0 0
Materials
Teacher Vacancy or 0 0 0
Mis-assignment
Faciliies Conditions 0 0 0
TOTALS 0 o 0

Desiree Von Flue, Assistant Supstintendent, Student Supports

ANl

Once completed, send copy b Distict Advisory Sendcss, KGSCS, 1300 17" Sireet, Bakersfield (Faxdt 661-6364121)




Office of John C. Mendiburu 6 . L

Kern County Superintendent of Schools
Advaocates for Children...

Charter School Oversight Review
2023-24

School: WCPA-Lost Hills

The Charter School Oversight Review will be completed annually based on compliance with the terms and
conditions of the approved charter, related agreements including the Memorandum of Understanding, and all
applicable laws. Any deficiencies will be reviewed with the Charter School administration. The annual
evaluations will be a factor upon which a renewal decision will be made at the end of the term of the charter.

There will be at least one site visit by the Oversight Review team annually to assess the Charter School’s
progress. The focus of the visit will be teaching and learning, but will include the areas listed helow;

1 - General Requirements

2 — Fiscal and Business Operations

3 — Educational Program and Assessment
4 — Facilities

5 — Governance

6 —Human Resources

7 — Student Services

The Charter Schooi Evaluation Form will be completed and presented annually to the Kern County Board of
Education at their regularly scheduled meeting in the fall semester, following the close of the prior fiscal year.



1. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

In the column to the right, indicate a finding of Y (ves}, N
(no), ar N/A {not applicable} to each question/statement
below.

Y
N
N/A

Use the space below to comment on the item
and/or to indicate where information used to
make the Y/N determination can be found.

A. Authorizer Requirements

1

Has Authorizer identified its staff person who is the contact
person for the Charter School? [EC 47604.32]

Authorizer has identified Kimberly Graham, KCS0S
Administrator of Federal, State and Local Support.

Has a schedule or plan been made to visit the Charter School
at least annually? [EC 47604.32]

The visit was on April 9, 2024,

Has authorizer identified the individual or entity responsible
for ensuring that Charter School submits all fiscal reports
required by law? [EC 47604.33]

Maxx Garris, KCSOS District Fiscal Analyst

Has authorizer identified the individual or entity responsible
for monitoring the fiscal condition of the Charter School? [£C
47604.33]

Y

Maxx Garris, KCSOS District Fiscal Analyst

B.

Charter School Education Code Requirements

1.

Have material revisions made to the approved charter been
approved by the governing board of the Charter School and
the Kern County Board of Education?

N/A

No material revision in 2023-24,

. The Charter School’s assurances include the following in their

charter petition and those listed in EC 47605({d) and (e} stating
that the Charter School:

a) Shall be nonsectarian in program admission policies,
employment practices, and all other operations.

Charter petition and verbal assurance.

b} Shall not charge tuition.

Charter petition and verbal assurance.

c) Shall not discriminate against any pupil on the basis of
the characteristics listed in *EC Section 220.

d) Shall admit all students who reside in California who
wish to attend {up to the Charter School’s capacity based
upon space, staff, or Charter School policy).

Charter petition and verbal assurance.

Charter petition and verbal assurance.

e) Shall determine by public random drawing, which
students, other than those already enroiled, will be
allowed to enroll if the number of pupils who wish to
attend the Charter School exceeds the Charter School’s
capacity and make reasonable efforts to accommodate

Charter petition and verbal assurance.

the growth of the Charter School.

f)  Shall comply with EC 47605(e) in regard to the
establishment  of preferences for enrollment which
shall not result in limiting enrollment access for pupils
with: disabilities, academically low-achieving pupils,
English learners, neglected or delinquent pupils,
homeless pupils, or pupils who are economically
disadvantaged or pupils based on nationality, race,
ethnicity, or sexual orientation.

Charter petition and verbal assurance.

g) Shall notify the school district of residence of the pupil’s
last known address within 30 days if a pupil is expelled
or leaves the Charter School without graduating or
completing the school year for any reason.

Charter petition and verbal assurance.




1. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

purpose of the Memorandum of Understanding?

fn the column to the right, indicate a finding of ¥ {yes), N Y | Use the space below to comment on the item
(no}, or N/A (not applicable) to each question/statement N | and/or to indicate where information used to
below. N/A | make the Y/N determination can be found.
C. Memorandum of Understanding
1. Has the Charter School complied with the terms of the current Y

Memorandum of Understanding? MOU reviewed.
2. Does charter school administration understand the content and Y

Verbal assurance.

D. Board Policy Updates

1. Has the Charter School board documented that it annually
reviews the charter's compliance with £€ 49431.2(d} which Y
prohibits the advertisement of food or beverages as incentives
to students during the school day?

Board meeting minutes and Wellness Policy
provided and reviewed.

2. Has the Charter School updated its enrollment board policy
and/or charter petition language to include the characteristic of
immigration status of students or their families in regard to Y
discrimination and the prohihition from the collecting
information or documents regarding such status? (EC 200, 220,
234.1,234.7)

Charter Petition reviewed.

3. Does the charter’s policy for receiving and investigating
complaints of discrimination, harassment, intimidation and
bullying hased on any of the actual or perceived characteristics
set forth in *Section 422.55 of the Penal Code, include a Y
requirement that, if school personnel witness such an act, they
shall take immediate steps to intervene when safe to do so? {EC
234.1({b}}

WCPA Non-Discrimination/Harassment Policy
provided and reviewed.

4. Has the Charter School updated its policies and practices
regarding not collecting or soliciting Social Security numbers or y
the [ast 4 digits thereof from pupils or their parents/guardian
unless required to do so0 by state/federal law? {EC 49076.7)

WCPA Charter Petition - Element 8.

5. If the charter serves high school students, has it revised its policy
on the transferability of coursework for pupils in foster care, are
homeless, are participating in a “newcomer program”, a child of

. ; . . Y
a military family, or a migrant student to accept full or partial
credit for all full or partial coursework satisfactorily completed
while attending another public school per EC 51225.2?

Student and Family Handbook - Alternatives to
Diplomas (Pages 20-21).

6. If the charter serves high school students, did it revise its
graduation policy for 3 or 4% year pupils who are not on track
to graduate to exempt them from coursework not included in Y
the state’s required coursewaork for graduation requirements
per EC 512257

Student and Family Handbook - Alternatives to
Diplomas {Pages 20-21).

E. Items Specific to the Charter Petition and MOU

Comments: N/A

Review conducted by: Cathie Morris, KCS0S Charter School Consultant




2. FISCAL AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS

e Adherence to geographic restrictions: EC 51747.3(b)

e Supervision of and assignment of credit by credentialed
teachers to claim apportionment credit: £EC 51747.5(a)

» Credit awarded for ADA based only upon work products: £C
51747.5(h)

In the column to the right, indicate a finding of Y (yes), N Y | Use the space below to comment on the item
(no}, or N/A [not applicable) to each question/statement N | and/or to indicate where information used to
below. N/A | make the Y/N determination can be found.

A. Student Attendance

| 1. Istherea satisfactory attendance accounting system used? Y WCPA uses Aeries as its student information system.

2. Is the staff person primarily responsible for attendance Y
reporting adequately trained? - WCPA staff attends various trainings and webinars.

3. Is there an approved Charter School calendar that includes a v
minimum of 175 instructional days? 2023/24 Academic Calendar provided and reviewed.

4. |Is there an approved class (bell) schedule? Y Bell schedule provided and reviewed.

5. Is there a process to monitor compliance with the minimum Governing beard meeting minutes indicating review
instructional minute requirements as defined by Title 5, Section Y and approval of school calendar and bell schedule
119637 ) | | provided and reviewed. _

6. Is attendance taken daily by an individual responsible for taking y Attendance is taken electronically in Aeries by the
attendance? B teachers and reviewed by the attendance clerk.

7. Are absences excluded from the apportionment days? Y P1 Attendance Report submitted as sample.

8. Has the charter maintained an average TK class enrollment of v
not more than 24 pupils, and a 1-12 pupil ratio? {EC 48000(g)} TK Classroom Rosters provided and reviewed.

| 9, Has Average Daily Attendance only been claimed for teachers
who hold an appropriate certificate, permit or other document Y
issued by CTC, consistent with EC 47605(1)? [ Employee master list provided and reviewed.
Student Attendance — Independent Study
10. Are records maintained for audit as well as the total Y
independent study ADA? Sample IS records provided and reviewed.
11. Does the Charter School meet the requirement related to the
ratio of ADA to FTE certificated employees as prescribed under
5CCR 11704 as evidenced by support documentation and
calculations?
25:1, or; Y
The ratio of pupils to FTE certificated employees for all other
educational programs operated hy the largest unified school
district, as measured by ADA, as reported at the 2" principal
apportionment in the prior year, in the county or counties in WOCPA has a ratio of 25:1 or fewer.
which the Charter School operates? CALPADS Report 3.1 provided and reviewed.
12. Does the Charter School have board-approved, written policies
related to independent Study that reflect compliance with £C v WCPA references the board approved Independent
51747 and 51749.5? {appertionment, course of study and Study Policy to claim ADA for the 2023/24 school year.
evaluation) Independent Study Policy provided.
13. Does the Charter School have records that demonstrate
adherence to polices related to £C 51745-51749.3 and Title 5,
11700-11705 in regard to claiming apportionment?
® Placement of SWDs into independent study: EC 51745( c)
e Ratio of ADA for independent study to FTE staff: EC 51745.6
e Apportionment claims and gifts of value: EC 51747.3(a} v

Independent Study Policy and sample S packet
provided and reviewed.




2. FISCAL AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS

In the column to the right, indicate a finding of Y (yes), N Y | Use the space below to comment on the item
(no}, or N/A {not applicable) to each question/statement N | and/or to indicate where information used to
below. N/A | make the Y/N determination can be found.
14. Does the Charter School have documentation that is has
completed the “determination of funding” process pursuant to £C | NfA
47634.2 and Title 5, 11963.2-11963.77
B. Cash Receipts
[1.  Are there approved policies addressing cash receipts? Y WCPA Fiscal Policies & Procedures provided.
2. Arethere receipts issued for all monies received? ¥ Sample Receipt Form and Fiscal Policy provided.
v WCPA Fiscal Policies & Procedures {Page 8)
3. Is an audit trail maintained to assure deposit of all monies? Sample Deposit Form provided. R |
Cash is stored in a secure location with access only
Y available to the Chief Business Office and Sr.
4. s cash stored in a secure place prior to deposit? Business Manager. Policy and verbal assurance.
|S. Are deposits made in a timely manner? Y WCPA Fiscal Policies & Procedures (Page 10).
One staff member receives the money, one staff
member counts the money, and Charter Impact
Y handles the reconciliation.
6. Is there a segregation of duties for the receipt of monies, the
deposit of monies, and the reconciliation of bank statements? WCPA Fiscal Policies & Procedures (Page 10)
Charter impact collects and maintains records and
7. Are there adequate records maintained for audit? Y copies of documents for audits.
C. Disbursements ;
1. Are there approved policies addressing disbursements? Y WCPA Fiscal Policies & Procedures (Page 16)
2. Do disbursements require: Y | WCPA Fiscal Policies & Procedures (Page 13)
a) An original invoice from the vendor? Y | WCPA Fiscal Policies & Procedures (Page 13)
' Y A packing slip, if applicable, is filed as back-up
b) A receiving document? documentation.
v PQs are approved by an authorized approver. WCPA
c) Appropriate approval of the purchase? Fiscal Policies & Procedures. |
Y The Superintendent, Chief Business Officer, and
3. Are checks signed by authorized employees? Board Chair are authorized to sign checks. ]
4, Is there a system to maintain vendor payment information for y MIP Sage is used to maintain 1099 vendor activity for
preparation of 1099s? the charter school. ~
5. Is there a segregation of duties between purchasing, receiving, y
and accounts payable? WCPA Fiscal Policies & Procedures (Page 5-6). |
- y Payroll and check registers are approved at monthly
6. Are disbursements approved/ratified by Board? board meetings. Sample meeting agenda provided.
| y WCPA Fiscal Policies & Procedures {Page 4-5} and
7. Are there adequate records maintained for audit? WCPA Audit Report provided and reviewed.
D. Payroll
1. Does the Charter School have a Board-approved Salary Schedule y

or other satisfactory salary structure?

2023/24 board-approved Salary Schedule provided.




2. FISCAL AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS

are available 1o meet the financial obligations of the charter
school?

In the column to the right, indicate a finding of Y (yes}, N Y | Use the space below to comment on the item
(no), or N/A (not applicable) to each question/statement N | and/or to indicate where information used to
below. N/A | make the Y/N determination can be found.
y Charter Impact and Paycom are responsible for
2. Are tax deposits completed in a timely manner? processing tax deposits in a timely manner.
3. Are earnings properly recorded for retirement reporting to Social v Charter Impact is responsible for properly recording
Security, PERS, STRS? retirement reporting to Social Security and STRS.
4. Isthere a system to provide STRS data to the county Y STRS reports are submitted through the Paycom
superintendent? payroll system.
5. lsthere a satisfactory system to maintain employee earning Y W-2's are processed using the Paycom payroll
records for preparation of W-2s? system.
6. |sthere appropriate segregation of duties between the
maintenance of employee data, salary schedules, and payroll Y
payments? WCPA Fiscal Policies & Procedures (Page 6).
Y WCPA Fiscal Policies & Procedures (Page 4-5)
7. Are there adequate records maintained for audit? WECPA Audit Report provided and reviewed.
E. Budget, Accounting, and Financial Reporting
1. Are there board approved policies addressing budget, accounting Y
: and financial reporting? WCPA Fiscal Policies & Procedures (Page 6-7).
| 2. Has the budget been approved by the Board? Y Board of Directors June 27, 2023 Agenda provided.
The Superintendent, Executive Team and CBO
y review and discuss enrollment and operations. The
3. Isthere a process to review and revise the budget for changes in Board of Directors reviews the budget and |
student enrollment and operations? accompanying financial statements monthly.
Y December 7, 2023 Agenda provided as sample.
4. Are budget revisions approved/ratified by the Board? Fiscal Policy reviewed.
Y Sample Monthly Financial Report and
5. Are financial obligations provided for in the budget? Sample board agenda provided and reviewed.
6. Are separate accounts maintained for restricted revenues and Y
expenditures? WCPA is using the CSAM account code structure.
7. Are financial reports prepared and reviewed by the Board on a Y Sample Monthly Financial Report and board meeting
regular basis? agenda provided.
Charter impact prepares the budget and all financial i
reports in conjunction with the WCPA Executive and
Y Business Teams. The Board approves the budget and
8. Are mandated financial reports provided to the county all financial reports and then they are submitted to
Superintendent of schools in a timely manner? {EC 47604.33) KCSOS within the required timelines.
a.) On or before July 1%, the preliminary budget.
b.) On or before December 15%, the interim financial report.
c.) On or before March 15%, the second interim financial report. ¥
d) On or before September 15%, the final unaudited report for | ] mmbﬁmm [eROTE
" The full prior year. in a timely manner.
9, Are cash flow projections prepared, updated and provided to the
county on a regular basis to assure there are sufficient funds that v

Sample Monthly Financial Reports provided.




2. FISCAL AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS

In the column to the right, indicate a finding of Y (yes), N Y | Use the space below to comment on the item
{no), or N/A {not applicable} to each question/statement N | and/or to indicote where information used to
below. N/A | make the Y/N determination can be found.
10. Does the charter school’s budget align with the school’s LCAP Y
and LCAP Addendum/LEA Plan? Approved Budget and LCAP reviewed.
1. Did the Charter's LCAP indicate that the Charter’s proportionality
obligation was fully met through its listed actions/services for its y
unduplicated pupils? If not, did it report the unused portion and
planned uses of those funds in its LCAP? (EC 42238.07) LCAP (Page 47) provided and reviewed.
2. Is there a business accounting/information system that complies v
with State accounting and reporting requirements? Charter Impact uses the alternative forms.
F. Audit
WCPA has selected Eide Bailly, Inc. as the auditor for
Y the 2023/24 school year audit. Audit Engagement
1. Which state-approved audit firm has been selected? Letter provided.
Auditors are scheduled to meet in April, and
Y scheduled to reach-out in October for final review of
2. Has an audit schedule/timeline been developed? materials.
3. Has a copy of the prior year audit been provided to the county v
Superintendent? 2022/23 Audit Report provided.
4. If needed, has a corrective action plan been developed? N/A | The audit report did not result in any findings.
5. Are records maintained for audit? Y Audit report provided.
G. Financial Condition
1. s a prudent level of reserves maintained for economic y
uncertainties? Budgets indicate sufficient reserves maintained.
2. Are mulii~year financial projections prepared? Y Budget projections provided and reviewed.
3. Arethe projections and assumptions reasonable? Y | WCPA's projections and assumptions are reasonable.
N/A WCPA does not currently have any long-term debt
4. Have all long-term debt obligations been included? obligations.
Based on projections shown in the 2nd Interim, WCPA
5. Based on the projections, will the Charter School be able to Y will be able to meet its financial obligations and
meet its financial obiigations and maintain a prudent level of maintain a prudent level of reserves during the
reserves in the current and two subsequent fiscal years? current and two subsequent fiscal years.
H. Equipment [nventory
1. Arethere approved policies addressing the purchase and v WCPA Equipment Maintenance Policy and Procedures
maintenance of equipment? reviewed.
2. lIs an equipment inventory:
y WCPA uses asset management software to tag and
a) Maintained? track equipment.
b} Physically located on each site? Y | Equipment inventory onsite with identification.
3. Is equipment purchased with federal funds properly identified? Y Asset Management Equipment [nventory.
4. Are records maintained for audit purposes? Y Asset Management Equipment Inventory.




2. FISCAL AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS

In the column to the right, indicate a finding of Y (yes), N [y l Use the space below to comment on the item
{no}, or N/A (not applicable) to each question/statement N | and/or to indicate where information used to
below. N/A | make the Y/N determination can be found.

|. Expanded Learning Opportunities Program

1. If the charter received funds pursuant to the ELOP (EC 46120), ‘
did it offer to all unduplicated pupils in classroom-based

instructional programs in K-6 and provide access to any pupil v
whose parent or guardian requests access to expanded learning WCPA's ELOP program is offered to all k-6 students
opportunity programs in accordance with program in accordance with program requirements.
requirements? {EC46120(a)(2)} WCPA ELOP Plan provided for review.

J. Items Specific to the Charter Petition and MOU

1. Are all reviewed fiscal and business records/activities specific to y | All fiscal and business records are maintained
the individual charter school? (WCPA-LH) ‘ specifically for the WCPA - Delano charter schoal.

Comments: Delano was well prepared and provided all documents in a timely manner.

Review conducted by: Maxx Garris, KCSOS District Fiscal Advisory




3. EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM AND ASSESSMENT

In the column to the right, indicate a finding of Y (yes), N

y | Use the space below to comment on the item
{no), or N/A {not applicable) to each question/statement N | and/or te indicate where information used to
below. N/A | make the Y/N determination can be found.
A. Educational Program
1. Is the Charter School following its curricular and instructional Y WCPA Instructional Framework and petition reviewed
plan as presented in the approved Charter petition? and classroorn observations confirmed. B
2. Is the Charter School staffing sufficient to carry out the
educational program and consistent with the terms of the Y WCPA’s classes on average have a 1 to 24 teacher to
charter petition? _ - | student ratio. CALPADS report provided.
3. Are parents of high school students informed about the
transferability of courses ta other public high schools and the Y
eligibility of courses to meet college entrance requirements? Student/Parent Handbook {(Page 18).
4. Is the Charter School implementing a framework for
instructional design that is aligned with the needs of the v
students identified as the target population in the approved ELL Master Plan, ELD Scope and Sequence and student
charter petition? demographics reviewed. B
5. Has the Charter School obtained WASC accreditation as y
outlined in the petition, if applicable? WASC Accreditation Letter provided.
6. Has the charter’s Course of Study been revised to include:
a. Social Science instruction related to the contributions of
people of all genders, Latino, LGBTQ, regardless of religious Y History/Social Science Scope and Sequence includes
and socioeconomic status EC 51204.5. new requirements. Currently, grades 1-6 embed
b. Grades 1-6: the inclusion of instruction in cursive writing in cursive writing, but WCPA will be adopting new writing
| the appropriate grade levels? EC 51210(a)(1). curriculum for 2024-25.
B. Services to Special Populations
1. Has the Charter School adopted policies and practices that
reflect compliance with all laws related to the provision of
Special Education including:
Review of current SIRAS data, a sample of
v Interim-Placement IEP and a 30-day IEP, as
a) Appropriate placement for students who are enrolling with well as classroom visits, confirmed
IEPs? appropriate placement of students with IEPs.
Y Reviewed sample SST, MTSS Tracker, and child
b) Referral and assessment of students suspected of requiring Find PD PPT in Google Doc. Also reviewed
special education and related services? - current SIRAS data.
R Y Reviewed CALPADS 16.21 report as of 3/28/24, cross-
c) Compliance with the timelines related to special education? referenced to current SIRAS data as of 3/28/24.
Reviewed sample IEP Services Page and sample Service |
2. Are students who are identified as being eligible for Special Y Log in Google Doc. [EP services also witnessed during
| Education receiving services required by their |EPS? 4/9/24 classroom observations.
Review of current SIRAS data and reviewed sample [EP
3. Does the Charter School provide for the inclusion of all of the Y Student Information page included in Google Doc
. required members to participate in IEP team meetings? which noted bus aide support.
| 4. Does the Charter School have a plan for the provision of
transportation of Special Education students who require this Y
| related service? Provision of transportation document.
i Review of sample 504 Plan confirmed and also
| 5. Does the Charter School have a process for determining a Y witnessed services during 4/9/24 classroom

student’s eligibility for services under Section 504?

observations.




3. EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM AND ASSESSMENT

In the column to the right, indicate a finding of Y (yes), N Y | Use the space below to comment on the item
{no), or N/A (not applicable) to each question/statement N | and/or to indicate where information used to
below. N/A | make the Y/N determination can be found.

6. Does the Charter School develop and implement Reviewed sample 504 Plan and Parental Safeguards

accommodation Y documentation. 504 plan accommodations also
plans for any students who are 504 eligible? witnessed during 4/9/24 classroom observations.

7. Does the Charter Schogl ensure that Special Education funds are Y
not used to serve students identified under Section 5047 Verbal confirmation by CBO.

8. Does the Charter School follow a process for identification and Y
reclassification of students who are English Learners? English Learner Master Plan provided and reviewed.

9. If the Charter School graduates students, has it notified its
students in foster care, homeless, of a military family or of
migrant status of their rights of exemption from local Y

graduation
requirements under {EC 51225.1{a}}? Student/Parent Handbook (Page 18).

C. Curricular Materials

WCPA Instructional Framework (K-12})

1. Is the Charter School utilizing standards-aligned instructional Y Elementary & Secondary Instructional Materials List,

| _materials? and Secondary Course Catalog reviewed.

2. Is the Charter School utilizing instructional materials that EL instructional materials list, EL Master Plan and

e . Y . .
address the specific needs of English Learners? classroom observations confirmed use.

3. Is the Charter School utilizing instructional materials that Y Sample of Annual IEP with accommodations and
address the specific needs of Special Education students? classroom observations confirmed use.

4. If the Charter School requires a course in health education for
graduation from high school, does that course include N/A
instruction in performing compression-only cardiopulmonary / WCPA does not require a course in health education
resuscitation? (EC 51225.6}) for graduation from high school.

D. Professional Development

1. Has Charter School staff received legally required trainings? Y Documentation provided and reviewed.

2. Has the charter communicated to or trained school personnel
in the Item 1D-3 requirement to take immediate steps to
intervene when safe to do so, if they witness an act of actual or
perceived discrimination, harassment, intimidation and
bullying of others with characteristics set forth in *Section
422.55 of the Penal Code? {EC 234.1({b}} Documentation provided and reviewed.

3. Is Charter School staff provided opportunities for professional Documentation that the charter staff received multiple
development necessary to carry out the instructional program Y opportunities for PD related to the instructional
as outlined in the petition? program.

E. Assessment

1. Is the Charter School administering the state mandated testing
according to testing rules and regulations as required for all K- Y | TK-12 District Wide Assessment Calendar provided and

| 12 schools in California? reviewed.

2. Does a review of SBAC and Dashboard Data indicate that the 2024 Dashboard data and the CDE report that WCPA-
Charter Schoal is on target for meeting renewal requirements Y LH is in the Middle Tier of charter performance, which
as set forth in EC 47607(b) and the charter petition? provides for a 5-year renewal term.

3. Has the Charter Scheol completed and posted a SARC |
containing required elements by Feb 1, 20247 Y

|
| A compliant SARC was posted by Feb. 1, 2024.

10




3. EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM AND ASSESSMENT

In the column to the right, indicate a finding of ¥ {yes), N |

{no), or N/A (not applicable) to each question/statement
below.

Y
N
N/A

Use the space below to comment on the item
and/or to indicate where information used to
make the Y/N determination can be found.

4. Is student achievement data regularly reported to parents and
staff?

State and local assessment data are regularly reported
to and reviewed by staff and parents through multiple
means.

5. Have parent/guardian notifications of language proficiency
(ELPAC) assessment been provided as required by EC, and if so,
do they include whether a child is a long-term English learner or
is at-risk of becoming one? {*£C 313.2(a}

Evidence of parent notifications, as listed in item, all
provided and compliant.

6. Is the Charter School implementing a plan for collecting,
analyzing, and reporting data on pupil achievement? If so, is
the Charter School utilizing the data to monitor and improve
the Charter School’s educational program consistent with £C
47605(b}{5)(C) and the terms of the charter?

Evidence provided that the charter has a master
assessment plan that includes the reporting and
analysis of a variety of assessment data.

F. ltems Specific to the Charter Petition and MOU

1. Is the charter school serving grade levels consistent with the
content of the charter and MOU?

The charter’s enrollment aligns with the petition.

2. Has the charter school made the “enrollment database”
required in the MOU available to the County Superintendent
upon request?

Enrollment database provided and reviewed.

3. Are the educational program and assessment activities specific
to the individual charter school (WCPA-LH)?

Evidence provided indicates that WCPA-LH's
educational and assessment programs align with the
WCPA-LH charter petition and student needs.

Comments: N/A

Review conducted by: Anna Vargas, KCSOS Director [I: Humanities and Multilingual Education and Professional Learning

11




4. FACILITIES AND OPERATIONS

In the column to the right, indicate a finding of Y (yes), N Y | Use the space below to comment on the item
{no}, or N/A (not applicable) to each question/statement N | and/or to indicate where information used to
below. N/A | make the Y/N determination can be found.
A. Facility Adequacy and Compliance
1. Isthere a designated staff person responsible for overseeing Y Marcus Morillo, Chief Facilities Officer and Carlos
facilities maintenance and operations? If yes, who? Navarro, Facilities & Operations Manager
2. Is there a custodial schedule that reflects appropriate and timely
attention to providing students with a clean and safe learning Y
environment? Standard Operating Procedures provided as evidence.
3. Do all facilities in which the Charter School is housed meet the Fire Inspections and Certificates of Occupancy
American with Disabilities Act requirements? provided as evidence.
4. Has the Charter School identified all single-user toilet facilities y All single-user facilities have been designated as all-
as all gender facilities? [Article 5, Health & Safety Code} gender facilities.
5. Isthere a process for providing routine inspection and Evidence includes a Service Support Online Request,
maintenance to ensure that Charter School facilities including Y Routine Inspections Logs, and a
playgrounds remain in good condition? compieted Playground Equipment Report.
6. Have the Charter School’s facilities been modified during the N/A The campus is not currently undergoing any
past year? renovations during the past school year.
7. Are the Charter School’s facilities adequate for the number of y
students and types of programs assigned to each site? WCPA Capacity Chart provided and reviewed.
8. Does the Charter School have on file: 1} Certificate of
Occupancy; 2) Conditional Use Permit for each site; and/or 3) Y Certificates of Occupancy and Kern County Fire Life &
Safety Inspections by local Fire Department? Safety Inspection Report provided and reviewed.
9. Does the Charter School have plans to madernize and/or add N/A WCPA does not have any plans for expansion of
facilities to the existing site? facilities at this point in time.
Does the Charter School plan to add a new site? If so, has proper N/A
notification been made to the approving agency? WCPA does not plan to add a new site.
If the Charter School participates in an interscholastic athletic
program, does it have a written emergency action plan and at least Y WCPA-LH has a comprehensive emergency plan and
one AED for the school? (EC 35179/4. 35179.6) two AED’s onsite.
If the Charter School has been made aware of a lactating pupil, has WCPA has not been made aware of any lactating
it made accommodations other than a restroom and provided a N/A | pupils, but provided evidence of such a location, if
place to safety store expressed milk? needed.
If the Charter School serves any grades 6-12, and it meets the 40%
pupil poverty rate, does it provide feminine hygiene products, v
including tampons and sanitary napkins, in a least 50% of the All middle and high school girls’ restrooms have
school's restrooms? (EC 35292.6) dispensers with free feminine hygiene products.
If the Charter School contracts out its transportation services, and
has made a finding of gross negligence or disciplinary action against N/A
the driver of a school bus, has it notified the Dept. of Motor WCPA provides transportation with its own staff and
Vehicles within 5 calendar days? (EC 39843, 39831.3) | vehicles. No reports of negligence.
Items Specific to the Charter Petition and MOU N/A

Comments: Lovely facilities for staff and students.

Review Conducted by: Cathie Morris, KC50S Charter School Consultg&t

12




5. GOVERNANCE

f} Bank signature authorizations, etc.

In the column to the right, indicate a finding of Y (yes), N Y | Use the space below to comment on the item
{no), or N/A {not applicable) to each question/statement N | and/or to indicate where information used to
below. N/A | make the Y/N determination can be found.
A. Organizational Management
1. If the Charter School is constituted as a non-profit corporation,
are the corporate papers, including Articles of Incarporation Y
available to the authorizer? Articles of Incorporation provided.
2. Is there a list or roster of governing board members? Y Roster of Governing Board of Directors provided.
3. Does the Charter School governance structure include the
process to be followed by the school to ensure parental Y
involvement consistent with EC 47605(b)(5}{D) and the terms of WCPA-LH documented parental involvement through
the charter petition and the MOU? multiple means including participation on the board.
4. Is the Board free of real or perceived conflicts of interest? Y Conflict of Interest Policy provided.
The compaosition of the WCPA Board of Directors is
consistent with the approved charter, which provides
for seven board members.
The WCPA Board currently consists of five current
Y . iy
directors. Two positions are currently vacant — the
previous parent and member-at-large members
5. Is the composition of the Board consistent with the approved resigned for personal reasons. WCPA is currently in
Charter? the process of trying to fill both roles.
B. Meetings
1. Does the Board conduct public meetings at such intervals as are
necessary to ensure that the Board is addressing business Y 2023/24 Board of Directors Meeting Calendar
required to provide sufficient direction to the Charter School? provided and reviewed.
2. Does the Board comply with the following: |
a) Regularly scheduled meetings, as outlined in the petition, Y
with required agenda postings per EC 54954.2{a)/549567? Board meeting schedule provided and reviewed.
b} Brown Act training and meeting compliance? Y Documentation of training provided.
c) Twice the time limit, if one is used, for public comment for y
non-English speakers? (Govt. Code 54954.3) Sample Agenda provided and reviewed.
d} Availability of meeting minutes and adherence to the public
records act that includes the posting of public records on its v Meeting minutes are available both in the office and
website and providing paper copies to the public without are posted on the school’s website. WCPA Public
access to them electronically? {Govt. Code 6253) Records Act Request Policy.
3. Does the Board have resolutions and Board—adopted policies
that address the following:
a) Conflict of interest (*SB 126 compliant?) Y Conflict of Interest Policy provided and reviewed.
b) Handbooks- Parent, Student, Employee (*AB 1505/SB 75 Y Parent/Student and Employee Handbooks provided
compliant?) and reviewed. B B
c) Student & Employee discipline and due process {¥*SB 419 y Parent/Student Handbook (Pages 64-82) and
compliant?) WCPA Employee Handbook {Pages 73-74).
d) Parent complaint resolution and due process | Y | Uniform Complaint Policy and Procedures reviewed. |
e) Internal controls policies and related forms and systems Y | Fiscal Policies and Procedures Manual provided.
Y

Bank Signature Authorizations and Fiscal Policy.

13



5. GOVERNANCE

In the column to the right, indicate a finding of Y (yes), N Y | Use the space below to comment on the item

(no}, or N/A (not applicable) to each question/statement and/or to indicate where information used to
below. N/A | make the Y/N determination can be found.

=z

g) Harassment- student, staff Handbooks and policies provided and reviewed.

h) Safety Plan School Safety Plan provided and reviewed.

i) Immunization records On file, upon request, documentation provided.

j} Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) — policy Parent/Student Handbook (Page 38) and
and notices Annual Notification (Pages 28-31} provided.

< |<|=<|=<

4. Have any changes made by the Board to bylaws or any
document required by the Charter/MOU been communicated to | N/A
the County Superintendent? No changes in 2023-24.

C. Parent/Staff Involvement

WCPA offers multiple avenues for input from
constituents including parent representation on the
Board of Directors, Parent Advisory Committee and

1. Is there a process in place that ensures that parents, teachers, ELAC meetings. In addition, WCPA holds feedback
and staff may provide input regarding the effectiveness of the sessions with staff to provide input into the LCAP
Charter School? process.
2. Do board-meeting minutes reflect that the Charter Board held a y
public hearing prior to approving its LCAP? (SB 75) | May 25, 2023 Board of Directors Meeting Agenda. |
3. Is there evidence that the charter presented a report on the
annual LCAP update and its LCFF budget overview for parents on
or before February 28 at a regularly scheduled board meeting? If
so, did that report include midyear outcome data related to the Y
metrics of the current year’'s LCAP, and all available midyear
expenditure and implementation data on all actions identified in February 26, 2024 Board of Directors Meeting Agenda
that LCAP? EC 47606.5{e){1) and {2). and 2023/24 Annual Update to the LCAP Report.
D. LCAP/LEA Plans and Categorical Funds
1. Doesthe Charter School have a current LEA (Local Educational
Agency) Plan that has been presented to, reviewed and Y June 27, 2023 Board of Directors Meeting Agenda
approved by the Charter School’s governing board? provided and reviewed. |
2. Is the charter's LCAP prominently posted on the charter’s
website, including updates, revisions, addenda, including those Y |
‘to comply with federal law? {EC 47606.5(h)} | WCPA-LH website reviewed. B
3. Are the Title | funds/categorical funding being used to Y 2023/24 LCAP with Title | Expenditures (Pages 51)
supplement the charter's LCAP goals? |L and LCAP Federal Addendum reviewed.
E. ltems specific to the Charter Petition and MOU
1. Does the charter board understand that each charter school ] The Board of Directors understands that each charter
operating under its oversight is an individual school under | school is operating independent of any other charter
the jurisdiction of the Board? | school.

Comments: The preparation work done by Wonderful was very helpful and extensive. Very well donel

Review conducted by: Mary Westendorf, KCSOS District Advisory ‘

14



6. HUMAN RESOURCES

‘ In the column to the right, indicate a finding of Y (yes), N {na), L 1 agths SP?Ce. pelowito ca:mment o2 ghciftem
or N/A [not applicable) to each question/statement below. s N il U o sl U U
N/A | make the Y/N determination can be found.
A. All Employees
1. Does the Charter School have fingerprint clearance, including
Department of Justice background checks, on all employees? [EC Y
44237] “Criminal record summary” Evidence provided and reviewed.
2. Does the Charter School have documentation that TB test results y WCPA has documentation that TB results are current
are current for all employees? - on employees,
3. Does the Charter School have record of the AB-1432 Child Abuse
Neglect and Reporting Act Training required annually within the Y
first 6 weeks of the school year or within 6 weeks of each person’s Documentation provided that all employees
| __employment? ) - | | completed the AB-1432 training,
4. Does the Charter School have approved personne! policies and
practices that are consistent with the petition, MCU, and all Y Policies and Employee Handbook reviewed, and on
applicable laws? site visit confirmed.
5. If the Charter School employs 50+ employees, does it provide
mandatory anti-harassment training for supervisors that includes v
harassment based on gender identify, expression and sexual
crientation? (Govt. Code 12950) Evidence that all supervisors completed training.
6. If the Charter School employs 20+ employees, does it provide up
to 12 weeks of job-protected, unpaid parental leave? [Govt. Code Y
| 12945.6(a)] Evidence provided and reviewed.
| 7. If the Charter School employs 25+ employees, does it provide
protected ieave and sick leave as it pertains to child care and “kin Y
care” laws? (Labor Code 230.8) Evidence provided and reviewed.
8. Does the Charter School have a DFEH-created poster regarding
transgender rights posted in a prominent and accessible location? Y Evidence provided that the poster is posted in the
(Govt. Code 12950) administration office. ,
B. Certificated Employees
1. Does the Charter School employ sufficient teaching staff to satisfy y
the terms of the petition and the MOU? Master staff list provided and reviewed. ]
2. Do teachers providing instruction in core classes have the
required credentials and certifications to meet state and federal N
requirements, terms of the petition, and the MOU? See [tem 6B-2 Comment below.
3. Do teachers who are providing Special Education and Related y
Services have the appropriate credentials and certifications? WCPA - DLO Employee Master List reviewed.
C. Classified Employees
1. Do classified employees who are providing instructional support
in the core content areas, Special Education, and English Language
Learner Services meet state and federal requirements, and terms Classified staff list provided with qualifications
of the petition/MOU? ) | provided and reviewed.,
1. Does the Charter School provide adequate staffing for:
a) Custodial Y WCPA - DLO Employee Master List
b) Food Service Y WCPA - DLO Employee Master List
¢} Information Technology Y | WCPA - DLO Employee Master List
d)} Lunch/Break Supervision Y | WCPA - DLO Employee Master List
e) Clerical/Record Keeping Y | WCPA - DLO Employee Master List

15



6. HUMAN RESOURCES

D. Items specific to the Charter Petition and MOU

1. Has the Charter School provided a written list of all of its
employees for the current school year pursuant to the MOU?

WCPA - LH Employee Master List

Comments:

Item 6B-2: One staff member was listed as teaching Robotics. She held a General Science credential, which the CDE does not allow.

Review conducted by: Evelyn Feliciano, KCSOS Credentials Manager

16




7. STUDENT SERVICES

In the column to the right, indicate a finding of Y {yes), N {no), Voo rEEALPE 2P ?ce, belgwito co,mment o," ghelftem
N/A (not applicable) to each question/statement below. Nl teadrgntoidlaty whfzre t.nformatmn flige 0
4 N/A | make the Y/N determination can be found.
A. Admissions
1. Isthe Charter School complying with the admissions practices Intent to Enroll Forms and Enrollment packet
. . Y . .
described in the approved charter? provided and reviewed.

2. Does the Charter School facilitate admissions for a student with an v Enrollment forms and verbal assurance that the
IEP in the same manner as for a student without an |EP? charter only has one enrollment process.

3. Does the student enrollment and mobility data reflect a program
that does not exit (return to the district} specific populations of Y
students in a manner that would result in a charter school
enrollment that is not reflective of the local school districts? Enrollment database provided and reviewed.

4. Do the Charter School enrollment forms indicate compliance with
all applicable laws and with the approved charter? Have they been y
updated to include health care coverage options and enrollment
assistance information? {EC 49452.9(a})} Enrollment forms provided and reviewed.

5. If the Charter School has needed to use the lottery system to
determine which students will be allowed to enroll, is there v
documentation that the process was held in the manner described Lottery Naotification Letter and script for lottery
in the approved petition? provided.

6. Does the Charter School have records documenting immunizations v Records are kept in the SIS, Aeries.
to the exient required for enrollment in public schools? Copy of immunization record provided.

7. Does the Charter School have a student population that represents 2023-24 DataQuest Data indicates that WCPA-LH
the racial and ethnic backgrounds of pupils enrolled in the local Y racial and ethnic backgrounds are comparable to
district(s)? Lost Hills School District.

8. Does the charter school have a student population in which rates of
pupils with disabilities, English [earners, and pupils who are y
economically disadvantaged are comparable to the local district(s) Student enrollment data reviewed and compared
rates? with that of the local district.

B. Discipline

1. Does the school have discipline policies and practices consistent
with the terms of the charter and £C 48900 in regard to suspensicn Y
of K-8 and expulsion of K-12 students? Student/Family Handbook provided.

2. Do the Charter School’s suspension procedures include a provision
for a conference where the student is informed of the reason for
the action, an opportunity to present his/her version and is Y
informed of the other means of correction that were attempted
before the suspension? (EC 48911) Student/Family Handbook reviewed.

3. Have the charter’s discipline practices been updated to include: a
certificated or classified employee may refer a student to school
administrators for in-school intervention or supports from the list
of other means of correction specified in EC 48900.5(b)(1) and that
a school administrator will, within 5 business days document the Y

actions taken, if any, and place that documentation into the pupil’s
record, and that the school administrator will inform the referring
staff member, verbally or in writing, what actions were taken, and
if none, the rationale for that decision? £C 48901.1{d}{1).

Staff training materials on discipline practices
provided and reviewed.

17




7. STUDENT SERVICES

In the column to the right, indicate a finding of Y (ves), N {no},
or N/A (not applicable) to each question/statement helow.

Y
N
N/A

Use the space below to comment on the item
and/or to indicate where information used to
make the Y/N determination can be found.

4, Does the charter’s suspension/expulsion policy state that a pupil
shall not be suspended/expelled based solely on the fact that they
are truant, tardy or otherwise absent from school activities?

EC 48900(w){1)}

Parent/Student Handbook does not explicitly state the
item, but it does not contradict it.

5. Has the charter updated its suspension and expulsion procedures
to ensure that the written notice regarding pupil involuntary
transfers is in the native language of the pupil’s parent or
guardian, and in the case of a homeless child or foster youth, in
the native language of the foster youth’s educational rights holder
or attorney and county social worker? {EC 47605(d)(4})}

Student/Family Handbook provided.

6. Do the charter’s expulsion procedures for a student with
exceptional needs who is a foster child, include that the
educational rights holder and county social worker be invited to
the change of placement meeting? {48915.5{d}}

Student/Family Handbook reviewed.

C. Health and Safety

1. Does the Charter School have a School Safety Plan that includes
all of the topics listed in *EC {32282(a){2)}? EC {47605(b)(5)(F})}

School Safety Plan reviewed.

2. Is there evidence that the School Safety Plan was reviewed and
updated by March 1 {EC 47605(b)(5){F}} and that a public hearing
was held before its adoption? EC 32288(b)(1}

Evidence provided that the 55C held a public hearing.

3. Isthere evidence that staff has been trained in health, safety, and
emergency procedures?

Evidence provided that staff were trained.

4. Does the Charter School maintain a calendar of emergency drills
for each site in which it operates?

Emergency Drill Record provided.

5. Does the charter’s Safety Plan include procedures to assess and
respond to reports of any dangerous, violent, or unlawful activity
that is being conducted or threatened to be conducted at an
activity sponsored by the school or on a school bus serving the
school? EC 32282{a)(2}{K)

School Safety Plan reviewed.

6. Does the charter's Safety Plan include appropriate adaptations
for pupils with disabilities in accordance with £C 32282(a}(2)B)?

School Safety Plan provided and reviewed.

7. After the March 1 review, or at any time, was the charter notified
by any person of any concern(s) related to the adaptations for
pupils with disabilities? if so, is there evidence that the charter
reviewed the concerns and if found credible, modify the
adaptations, accordingly? £C 32288{a}(2}(B)

WCPA services any student(s) in need of special
accommodations relating to short-term or long-term
disabilities.

Student Support Emergency Procedures for I1EP, 504, or
Temporary Health Concerns

8. If the charter serves students in grades 7-12, does the school’s
Safety Plan include a protocol in the event a student is suffering
or is believed to be suffering from an Opioid overdose? EC
47605({c){5}{CHii).

School Safety Plan reviewed.

9. If the charter offers an athletic program, does it: 1) annually give
the Opioid Factsheet for Patients published by the Centers for
Disease Control and Prevention to each athlete, and if the athlete
is 17 years or younger, the athlete’s parent or guardian
{electronically or written copy) and 2} require that it be signed and
returned to the school before the athlete initiates practice or
competition? {EC 49476}

CIF Central Section Athletic Clearance Forms provided.

18




7. STUDENT SERVICES

in the column to the right, indicate a finding of Y (yes), N {(no),
or N/A (not applicable) to each question/statement below.

N/A

Use the space below to comment on the item
and/or to indicate where information used to
make the Y/N determination can be found.

10. Do records reflect that the Charter School provides for the screening
of pupils vision, hearing, and required immunizations to the same
extent as would be required if the pupils attended a non-charter
public school?

WCPA-LH has an on-site wellness team through the
Student Wellness Center that screens for vision and
hearing.

11. Has the Charter School notified students and parents/guardians at
least twice a year regarding how to initiate access to available
student mental health services on campus or in the community? (EC
49428)

Evidence provided that notifications are at ieast
twice a year and on the school's website.

12. Does the charter have board-adopted Suicide Prevention Policies for
grades K-6 and 7-12 that 1) were created in conjunction with
stakeholders, 2} specifically list its high-risk groups, 3} addresses the
needs of those high-risk students and 4) were updated in the last 5
years? (*£C 215)

Youth Suicide Prevention Policy reviewed.

13. Did the Charter School provide each needy pupil as defined in EC
49552, with two free nutritionally-adequate meals to any pupil who
requests a meal without consideration of the pupil’s eligibility {£C
49501.5(a}(2)} with adequate time to eat each, based upon the
recommendations of the National School Lunch/Breakfast
programs? £C 49501.5{1){A}

WCPA provides three free meals a day to all
students.

14, If the Charter serves grades 7-12 and issues ID Cards to students, did
it include the telephone number of the National Suicide Prevention
Lifeline on those cards? {*EC 215.5}

Sample Student ID Card

15. If the Charter School qualifies for the free federal reimbursement
rate for all meals that it provides, has it applied to provide a
universal meal service to all students at the school? if not, has it
submitted a governing board resolution to the state claiming a
fiscal hardship? If so, is there evidence that those finding are
reviewed in a public meeting every two years? {EC 49564(a)}

WCPA qualifies and is currently providing free meals
to all students regardless of family income.

16. If the Charter School receives federal funds, does it comply with the
posting on its website in a prominent, conspicuous location, the
Title [X information, including the name and contact number/e-mail
for the Title IX Coordinator for that school? {*£C 221.61)

Website reviewed.

17. Does the Charter’s Excused Absence Policy include an absence for
the benefit of the pupil’s mental or behavioral health, or for the
purpose of participating in a cultural ceremony/event? (EC 48205)

Student/Family Handhook reviewed.

18. Does the Charter’s Excused Absence Policy include the purpose of
attending the funeral services or grieving the death of either a
member of the student’s immediate family or of a person that is
determined by the pupil’s parent/guardian to be in such close
association with the pupil to be considered “immediate family”
so long as the absence is not more than 5 days per incident? EC
48205(a){4).

Student/Family Handbook reviewed.

19. Does the charter’s Excused Absence Policy include up to three days
for a student to access services from a victim services organization,
to access grief support services or to participate in safety planning
or to take other actions to increase student safety or that of an
immediate family member? £C 48205(a)(13)

Student/Family Handbook reviewed.

19




7. STUDENT SERVICES

[ In the column to the right, indicate a finding of Y (yes], N (no),
or N/A (not applicable) to each question/statement below.

Y
N
N/A

Use the space below to comment on the item
and/or to indicate where information used to
make the Y/N determination can be found.

P0. If the charter serves middle or high school students, did it revise its
Excused Absence Policy to include an absence for the purpose of a
student engaging in a civic or political event? (EC 48205)

Student/Family Handbook reviewed.

21. Has the charter provided to certificated schoolsite employees who
serve pupils in grades 7-12 information on existing resources
related to the support of LGBQT pupils who may face bias or
bullying? {EC 234.1(d)({1)}?

Evidence of resources being provided to staff.

22. Does the charter’s Safety Plan include procedures for the
storage and administration of emergency epinephrine auto-
injectors? EC 49414(a})

School Safety Plan reviewed.

23. If the charter serves students in grades 9-12, and allows on-campus
access to employers, does it include access to military services?
EC 49603,

N/A

WCPA does not allow on-campus access to
employers.

D. Pupil and Parent Notifications

1. Does the Charter School provide a notice to all parents/guardians
regarding their rights under the Family Educational Rights and
Privacy Act (FERPA)?

Student/Family Handbook and Annual Notification
provided and reviewed.

2. Are parents provided with annual notifications as required by the
petition, the MOU, and all applicable laws? {EC 48580, £C 48985}

Annual Notifications provided and reviewed.

| 3. Has the charter school posted a Notice on its website that states
that charter schools are prohibited from discouraging any student
from enrolling or encouraging students to drop, once enrolled?
{EC 47605(e}{4)}

WCPA Website reviewed.

4. Did the charter provide a copy of the Notice from {tem 7D-3: 1}
When a parent or guardian inquired about enrollment, 2} Before
conducting an enrollment lottery, 3) Before disenrollment of a
pupil? {EC 47605{e}){4}(D}}

The charter provided evidence that it provides the
Notice, as required.

5. Has the charter posted on its website: 1} the name and contact
information of its homeless liaison, and 2} specific information on
homelessness, including educational rights and resources available
to persons experiencing homelessness? {FC 48852.6}

WCPA-LH Website reviewed.

6. If the charter serves high school students, and enrolied a foster or
homeless youth who is in their 37 or 4" year, who is not on track to
meet the charter's educational requirements, did it notify the pupil
and the educational rights holder, and social worker, if applicable,
within 30 calendar days of transfer into the school of the
exemption from the charter’s graduation requirements as
described in Item ID-5? {£C 51225.1}

Student/Family Handbook reviewed.

7. If the charter serves high school students, did it provide at least
once hefore grade 12, information on how to properly complete
and submit the FAFSA or the CA Dream Act Application that
includes information about the types of documentation and
personal informal that is required, an explanation of definitions
used for each application, eligibility requirements, application
timelines/deadlines, and the importance of submitting applications
early? {EC51225.8}

Family Notifications on FAFSA and College
Readiness reviewed.

20




7. STUDENT SERVICES

Use the space below to comment on the item
and/or to indicate where information used to
make the Y/N determination can be found.

WCPA has posted the anti-discrimination policy in
central areas of the campus including the staff
lounges, school offices and harvest hall.

WCPA-LH has not received a petition requesting
pupil representation on its governing board.

Student demographic data reviewed and compared
with that of the Lost Hills and Wasco HS Districts.

. — . Y

in the column to the right, indicate a finding of Y {yes}, N [noj, N

or N/A (not applicable) to each question/statement below. N/A

8. Has the charter posted its antidiscrimination policy from tem 1D-3
above in all school offices, including staff lounges and pupil Y
government meeting rooms? {EC 234.1(e}}

9. If the charter serves high school students, did it receive a petition
requesting pupil representation on its governing board? If so, did N/A
the charter add a student representative per EC 47604.2?

E. Items specific to the Charter Petition and MOU

1. Based on review of pupil data {race, ethnicity, English learner
status, socio-economically disadvantaged (as determined by
eligibility for free/reduced-price meal program), and pupils with Yy |
disabilities), is the Charter School serving a student population that
is reflective of the general population residing within the territorial
jurisdiction of the school district in which it resides?

Y

If not, is the Charter School using all reasonable means to ensure
that the school is equally accessible to enrollment and attendance
by all students within the boundaries of that district?

WCPA Administration has worked closely with KCSOS
Agencies; community members and organizations;
and families to ensure enrollment practices closely
resemble the student population it represents,
including the demographic data of the county and
local school district in which it resides.

Comments: NfA

| Reviewed conducted by: Cathie Morris, KCSOS Charter Consultant and Lee Knotts, KCSOS SELPA Director

L

21




*Education Codes/Legal Compliance Citations

Section 1: General Requirements and Section 3: Educational Program

EC Section 220:

No person shall be subjected to discrimination on the basis of disability, gender, gender identity, gender
expression, nationality, race or ethnicity, religion, sexual orientation, or any other characteristic that is
contained in the definition of hate crimes set forth in Section 422.55 of the Penal Code, including immigration
status, in any program or activity conducted by an educational institution that receives, or benefits from, state
financial assistance, or enrolls pupils who receive state student financial aid.

Penal Code 422.55:

Under Penal Code 422,55 PC, California law defines a hate crime as a criminal act committed in whole or in part
because of the victim’s actual or perceived disability, gender, nationality, race or ethnicity, religion, sexual
orientation, or association with a person or group with one or more of these actual or perceived characteristics.

Section 3: Educational Program
EC Section: 313.1/313.2:

For purposes of this article, the following terms have the following meanings:
(a){1) “Long-term English learner” means an English learner to which all of the following apply:

(A} Is enrolled in any of grades 6 to 12, inclusive.

(B} Has been enrolled in schools in the United States for six years or more.

{C}) Has remained at the same English language proficiency level for two or more consecutive prior years, or has
regressed to a lower English language proficiency level, as determined by the English language development test
identified or developed pursuant to Section 60810, or a scare determined by the Superintendent on any successor

test.
(D) For a pupil in any of grades 6 to 9, inclusive, has scored far below basic or below basic on the prior year's English

language arts standards-based achievement test administered pursuant to Section 60640 , or a score determined by
the Superintendent on any successor test.

Section 5: Governance

Education Code Section 47604.1 / Senate Bill 126 Compliance:

New Education Code section 47604.1 provides that charter schools and entities managing charter schools (defined as a
nonprofit public benefit corporation that operates a charter school) are subject to the Ralph M. Brown Act (or the
Bagley-Keene Open Meeting Act). It also prescribes specific rules regarding meeting locations and meeting content.

Additionally, Education Code section 47604.1 clarifies that the California Public Records Act applies to both charter
schools and entities managing charter schools.

Finally, the new law subjects charter schools and entities managing charter schools to both Government Code section
1090 and the Political Reform Act of 1974. This means that charter school officials may not be financially interested in
any contract made by them in their official capacity. They must also comply with all conflict prohibitions and reporting

22



requirements of the Political Reform Act and must adopt a conflict of interest code. Unlike employees of school districts
and county offices of education, a charter school employee may serve as a member of the charter school’s governing
board; however, the employee must abstain from voting on, influencing, or attempting to influence another member of
the governing board regarding any matters uniquely affecting the member's employment with the charter school.

Section 7: Student Services

EC 48901.1 and SB 419 Compliance:

Notwithstanding Section 47610 or any other law, commencing luly 1, 2020, the following provisions apply to charter
schools:

{a} A pupil enrolled in a charter school in kindergarten or any of grades 1 to 5, inclusive, shall not be suspended on the
basis of having disrupted school activities or otherwise willfully defied the valid authority of supervisors, teachers,
administrators, school officials, or other school personnel engaged in the performance of their duties, and those acts shall
not constitute grounds for a pupil enrolled in a charter school in kindergarten or any of grades 1 to 12, inclusive, to be
recommended for expulsion,

{b) A pupil enrolled in a charter school in any of grades 6 1o 8, inclusive, shall not be suspended on the basis of having
disrupted school activities or otherwise willfully defied the valid authority of supervisors, teachers, administrators, school
officials, or other school personnel engaged in the performance of their duties. This subdivision is inoperative on July 1,
2025,

School Safety Plan/EC 32282 Compliance:

a) The comprehensive school safety plan shall include, but not be limited to, both of the following:

(1) Assessing the current status of school crime committed on school campuses and at school-related functions.

(2) Identifying appropriate strategies and programs that will provide or maintain a high level of schooli safety and

address the school's procedures for complying with existing laws related to school safety, which shall inciude the

development of all of the following:

(A} Child abuse reporting procedures consistent with Article 2.5 (commencing with Section 11164) of Chapter 2 of
Title 1 of Part 4 of the Penal Code .

{B} Disaster procedures, routine and emergency, including adaptations for pupils with disabilities in accordance with
the federal Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 { 42 U.5.C. Sec. 12101 et seq. }. The disaster procedures shall
also include, but not be limited to, both of the following:

{i} Establishing an earthquake emergency procedure system in every public school building having an occupant capacity

of 50 or more pupils or more than one classroom. The system shall include, but not be limited to, all of the following:

{1} A school building disaster plan, ready for implementation at any time, for maintaining the safety and care of

pupils and staff.

(Il A drop procedure whereby each pupil and staff member takes cover under a table or desk, dropping to his or her
knees, with the head protected by the arms, and the back to the windows. A drop procedure practice shall be
held at least once each school quarter in elementary schools and at least once a semester in secondary schools.

(1} Protective measures to be taken before, during, and following an earthquake.

(IV) A program to ensure that pupils and both the certificated and classified staff are aware of, and properly trained
in, the earthquake emergency procedure system.

(ii) Establishing a procedure to allow a public agency, including the American Red Cross, to use school buildings,
grounds, and equipment for mass care and welfare shelters during disasters cr other emergencies affecting the
public health and welfare. The school district or county office of education shall cooperate with the public agency
in furnishing and maintaining the services as the school district or county office of education may deem necessary to
meet the needs of the community.

23



(C} Policies pursuant to subdivision (d} of Section 48915 for pupils who committed an act listed in subdivision {c)
of Section 48915 and other school-designated serious acts that would lead to suspension, expulsion, or
mandatory expulsion recommendations pursuant to Article 1 {commencing with Section 48900 ) of Chapter
6 of Part 27 of Division 4 of Title 2.

(D)} Procedures to notify teachers of dangerous pupils pursuant to Section 49079 .

{E} A discrimination and harassment policy consistent with the prohibition against discrimination contained in
Chapter 2 {commencing with $ection 200 } of Part 1.

{F} The provisions of any schoolwide dress code, pursuant to Section 35183 , that prohibits pupils from wearing
“gang-related apparel,” if the school has adopted that type of a dress code. For thase purposes, the
comprehensive schooi safety plan shall define “gang-related apparel.” The definition shall be limited to
apparel that, if worn or displayed on a school campus, reasonably could be determined to threaten the
health and safety of the school environment. A schoolwide dress code established pursuant to this section
and Section 35183 shall be enforced on the school campus and at any school-sponsored activity by the
principal of the school or the person designated by the principal. For purposes of this paragraph, “gang-
related apparel” shall not be considered a protected form of speech pursuant to Section 48950 .

(G) Procedures for safe ingress and egress of pupils, parents, and school employees to and from school.

(H} A safe and orderly environment conducive to learning at the school.

(1) The rules and procedures on school discipline adopted pursuant to Sections 35291 , 35291.5, 47605, and
47605.6.

{)) Procedures for conducting tactical responses to criminal incidents, including procedures related to
individuals with guns on school campuses and at school-related functions. The procedures to prepare for active
shooters or other armed assailants shall be based on the specific needs and context of each school and community.

{b) It is the intent of the Legislature that schools develop comprehensive school safety plans using existing
resources, including the materials and services of the partnership, pursuant to this chapter. It is also the intent of the
Legislature that schools use the handbook developed and distributed by the School/Law Enforcement Partnership
Program entitled “Safe Schools: A Planning Guide for Action” in conjunction with developing their plan for school safety.

{c) Each schoolsite council or school safety planning committee, in developing and updating a comprehensive
school safety plan, shall, where practical, consult, cooperate, and coordinate with other schoolsite councils or school
safety planning committees.

(d) The comprehensive school safety plan may be evaluated and amended, as needed, by the school safety
planning committee, but shall be evaluated at least once a year, to ensure that the comprehensive school safety plan
is properly implemented. An updated file of all safety-related plans and materials shall be readily available for
inspection by the public.

EC 215 Suicide Prevention Policy Compliance Grades 7-12:

{(a){(1) The governing board or body of a local educational agency that serves pupils in grades 7 to 12, inclusive, shall,
before the beginning of the 2017-18 school year, adopt, at a regularly scheduled meeting, a policy on pupil suicide
prevention in grades 7 to 12, inclusive. The policy shall be developed in consultation with school and community
stakeholders, school-employed mental health professionals, and suicide prevention experts and shall, at a minimum,
address procedures relating to suicide prevention, intervention, and postvention.
{2} The policy shall specifically address the needs of high-risk groups, including, but not limited to, all of the following:

(A) Youth bereaved by suicide.

(B) Youth with disabilities, mental illness, or substance use disorders.

{C) Youth experiencing homelessness or in out-of-home settings, such as foster care.

{D) Lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender, or questioning youth.
(3){(A) The policy shall also address any training to be provided to teachers of pupils in grades 7 to 12, inclusive, on
suicide awareness and prevention.

24



(B) Materials approved by a local educational agency for training shall include how to identify appropriate mental
health services, both at the schoolsite and within the larger community, and when and how to refer youth and their
families to those services.

{C) Materials approved for training may also include programs that can be completed through self-review of suitable
suicide prevention materials.

{4} The policy shall be written to ensure that a school employee acts only within the authorization and scope of the
employee's credential or license. Nothing in this section shall be construed as authorizing or encouraging a school
employee to diagnose or treat mental illness unless the employee is specifically licensed and employed to do so.

(b) The governing board or body of a local educational agency that serves pupils in grades 7 to 12, inclusive, shall
review, at minimum every fifth year, its policy on pupil suicide prevention and, if necessary, update its policy.

(d) For purposes of this section, “local educational agency” means a county office of education, school district, state
special school, or charter school.

EC 215(2)(A) Suicide Prevention Policy Compliance Grades K-6:

(A} The governing board or body of a local educational agency that serves pupils in kindergarten and grades 1 to 6,

inclusive, shall, before the beginning of the 2020-21 school year, adopt, at a regularly scheduled meeting, a policy on

pupil suicide prevention in kindergarten and grades 1 to 6, inclusive. The policy shall be developed in consultation with

school and community stakeholders, the county mental health plan, school-employed mental health professionals, and

suicide prevention experts and shall, at a minimum, address procedures relating to suicide prevention, intervention, and

postvention.

(B} The policy for pupils in kindergarten and grades 1 to 6, inclusive, shall be age appropriate and shall be delivered and

discussed in a manner that is sensitive to the needs of young pupils.

(C) The policy for pupils in kindergarten and grades 1 to 6, inclusive, shall be written to ensure proper coordination and
consultation with the county mental health plan if a referral is made for mental health or related services on behalf of

a pupt who is a Medi-Cal beneficiary.

{3) The policy shall specifically address the needs of high-risk groups, including, but not limited to, all of the following:

{A) Youth bereaved by suicide.

(B} Youth with disabilities, mental iliness, or substance use disorders.

(C) Youth experiencing homelessness or in out-of-home settings, such as foster care.

(D) Leshian, gay, bisexual, transgender, or questioning youth.

4){A) The policy shall also address any training on suicide awareness and prevention to be provided to teachers of
pupils in all of the grades served by the local educational agency.

(B} Materials approved by a local educational agency for training shall include how to identify appropriate mental
health services, both at the schoolsite and within the larger community, and when and how to refer youth and
their families to those services.

{C) Materials approved for training may also include programs that can be completed through seif-review of suitable
suicide prevention materials.

(5) The policy shall be written to ensure that a school employee acts only within the authorization and scope of the
employee’s credential or license. Nothing in this section shall be construed as authorizing or encouraging a school
employee to diagnose or treat mental illness unless the employee is specifically licensed and employed to do so.{6)

{b} The governing board or bady of a local educational agency that serves pupils in kindergarten and grades 1to 12,

inclusive, shall review, at minimum every fifth year, its policy on pupil suicide prevention and, if necessary, update its

policy. {d} For purposes of this section, “local educational agency” means a county office of education, school district,
state special school, or charter school.

EC 221.61: Title IX Website Information
{a) On or before July 1, 2017, public schaals, private schools that receive federal funds and are subject to the
requirements of Title IX, school districts, county offices of education, and charter schools shall post in a prominent and

conspicuous location on their Internet Web sites all of the following:

25



(1} The name and contact information of the Title IX coardinator for that public school, private school, school district,
county office of education, or charter school, which shall include the Title IX coordinator’s phone number and email
address.

{2) The rights of a pupil and the public and the responsibilities of the public school, private school, school district,
county office of education, ar charter school under Title IX, which shall include, but shall not be [imited to, Internet
Web links to information about those rights and responsibilities located on the Internet Web sites of the
department’s Office for Equal Opportunity and the United States Department of Education Office of Civil Rights, and
the list of rights specified in Section 221.8.

(3) A description of how to file a complaint under Title X, which shall include all of the following:

{A) An explanation of the statute of limitations within which a complaint must be filed after an alleged incident of
discrimination has occurred, and how a complaint may be filed beyond the statute of limitations.

{B) An explanation of how the complaint will be investigated and how the complainant may further pursue the
complaint, including, but not limited to, Internet Web links to this information on the United States Department
of Education Office for Civil Rights’ Internet Web site.

(C) An Internet Web link to the United States Department of Education Office for Civil Rights complaints form, and
the contact information for the office, which shall include the phone number and email address for the office.

Ed Code 234.6 Website Posting Compliance:

{a) For purposes of this article, "local educational agency" means a county office of education, school district, state
special school, or charter school.

{b} Commencing with the 2020-21 academic year, each local educational agency shall ensure that all of the following
information is readily accessible in a prominent location on the local educational agency's existing internet website in
a manner that is easily accessible to parents or guardians and pupils:

(1) The local educational agency's policy on pupil suicide prevention in grades 7 to 12, inclusive, adopted pursuant to
Section 215.(2) The local educational agency's policy on pupil suicide prevention in kindergarten and grades 1 to 6,
inclusive, adopted pursuant to Section 215, including reference to the age appropriateness of that policy.{3) The
definition of discrimination and harassment based on sex as described in Section 230. This shall include the rights set
forth in Section 221.8.{4) The Title IX information included on a loca! educational agency’s internet website pursuant to
Section 221.61.{5) A link to the Title IX information included on the department's internet website pursuant to

Section 221.6.(6) The local educational agency's written policy on sexual harassment, as it pertains to pupils, prepared
pursuant to Section 231.5.(7) The local educational agency's policy, if it exists, on preventing and responding to hate
violence as described in Section 233.(8) The local educational agency's anti-discrimination, anti-harassment, anti-
intimidation, and anti-bullying policies as described in Section 234.1.(9) The local educational agency's anti-cyberbuilying
procedures adopted pursuant to Section 234.4.(10) A section on social media bullying that includes all of the following
references to possible forums for social media bullying:(A) Internet websites with free registration and ease of
registration.(B) Internet websites offering peer-to-peer instant messaging.(C) Internet websites offering comment
forums or sections.{D) Internet websites offering image or video posting platforms.{11} A link to statewide resources,
including community-based organizations, compiled by the department pursuant to Section 234.5.(12} Any additional
information a local educational agency deems important for preventing bullying and harassment.

26



Office of John C. Mendiburu

Kern County Superintendent of Schools
Advocates for Children...

Charter School Oversight Review
2023-24

School: WCPA-Delano

The Charter School Oversight Review will be completed annualiy based on compliance with the terms and
conditions of the approved charter, related agreements including the Memorandum of Understanding, and all
applicable laws. Any deficiencies will be reviewed with the Charter School administration. The annual
evaluations will be a factor upon which a renewal decision will be made at the end of the term of the charter.

There will be at least one site visit by the Oversight Review team annually to assess the Charter School’s
progress. The focus of the visit will be teaching and learning, but will include the areas listed below:

1 - General Requirements

2 — Fiscal and Business Operations

3 — Educational Program and Assessment
4 — Facilities

5 —Governance

6 —Human Resources

7 = Student Services

The Charter School Evaluation Form will be completed and presented annually to the Kern County Board of
Education at their regularly scheduled meeting in the fall semester, following the close of the prior fiscal year.



1. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

In the column to the right, indicate a finding of Y (yes), N
(no), or N/A (not applicable) to each question/statement
below.

Y
N
N/A

Use the space below to comment on the item
and/or to indicate where information used to
make the Y/N determination can be found.

A. Authorizer Requirements

1.

Has Authorizer identified its staff person who is the contact
persan for the Charter School? [EC 47604.32]

Authorizer has identified Kimberly Graham, KCSQS
Administrator of Federal, State and Local Support.

Has a schedule or plan been made to visit the Charter School
at least annually? [EC 47604.32]

The visit was on April 9, 2024.

Has authorizer identified the individual or entity responsible
for ensuring that Charter School submits all fiscal reports
required by law? [EC 47604.33]

Maxx Garris, KCSOS District Fiscal Analyst

Has authorizer identified the individual or entity responsible
for monitoring the fiscal condition of the Charter School? [EC
47604.,33]

Maxx Garris, KCSOS District Fiscal Analyst

B. Charter School Education Code Requirements

1

Have material revisions made to the approved charter been
approved by the governing board of the Charter School and
the Kern County Board of Education?

N/A

No material revision in 2023-24.

The Charter School’s assurances include the following in their
charter petition and those listed in EC 47605(d} and (e) stating
that the Charter School:

a) Shall be nonsectarian in program admission policies,
employment practices, and all other operations.

Charter petition and verbal assurance.

b} Shall not charge tuition.

Charter petition and verbal assurance.

c) Shall not discriminate against any pupil on the basis of
the characteristics listed in *EC Section 220.

d} Shall admit all students who reside in California who
wish to attend (up to the Charter School’s capacity based
upon space, staff, or Charter School policy}.

Charter petition and verbal assurance.

Charter petition and verbal assurance.

e} Shall determine by public random drawing, which
students, other than those already enrolled, wilf be
allowed to enroll if the number of pupils who wish to
attend the Charter School exceeds the Charter School’s
capacity and make reasonahle efforts to accommodate
the growth of the Charter School.

| Charter petition and verbal assurance.

f)  Shall comply with £EC 47605(e) in regard to the
establishment  of preferences for enrollment which
shall not result in limiting enroliment access for pupils
with: disabilities, academically low-achieving pupils,
English learners, neglected or delinquent pupils,
homeless pupils, or pupils who are economically
disadvantaged or pupils based on nationality, race,
ethnicity, or sexual orientation.

Charter petition and verbal assurance.

— |

g) Shall notify the school district of residence of the pupil’s
fast known address within 30 days if a pupil is expelled
or leaves the Charter School without graduating or
completing the school year for any reason.

Charter petition and verhal assurance.




1. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

in the column to the right, indicate a finding of Y (yes), N
{no), or N/A (not applicable) to each question/statement

below. N/A

Y | Usethe space below to comment on the item
N | and/or to indicate where information used to
‘ make the Y/N determination can be found.

C. Memorandum of Understanding

1. Has the Charter School complied with the terms of the current
Memorandum of Understanding?

|

MOU reviewed.

2. Does charter schoel administration understand the content and
purpose of the Memorandum of Understanding?

Verbal assurance.

D. Board Policy Updates

1. Has the Charter School board documented that it annually
reviews the charter’'s compliance with £C 49431.2{d) which
prohibits the advertisement of food or beverages as incentives
to students during the school day?

Board meeting minutes and Wellness Policy
provided and reviewed.

2. Has the Charter School updated its enrollment board policy
and/or charter petition language to include the characteristic of
immigration status of students or their families in regard to
discrimination and the prohibition from the collecting
information or documents regarding such status? (EC 200, 220,
234.1,234.7)

Charter Petition reviewed.

3. Doesthe charter’s policy for receiving and investigating
complaints of discrimination, harassment, intimidation and
bullying based on any of the actual or perceived characteristics
set forth in *Section 422.55 of the Penal Code, include a
requirement that, if school personnel witness such an act, they
shall take immediate steps to intervene when safe to do so? {EC
234.1(b)}

WCPA Non-Discrimination/Harassment Policy
| provided and reviewed.

4. Has the Charter School updated its policies and practices
regarding not collecting or soliciting Social Security numbers or
the last 4 digits thereof from pupils or their parents/guardian
unless required to do so by state/federal law? (EC 49076.7)

WCPA Charter Petition - Element 8.

|

[ 5. If the charter serves high school students, has it revised its policy
on the transferability of coursework for pupils in foster care, are
homeless, are participating in a “newcomer program”, a child of
a military family, or a migrant student to accept full or partial
credit for all full or partial coursework satisfactorily completed
while attending another public school per EC 51225.27

Student and Family Handbook - Alternatives to
Diplomas {Pages 20-21).

6. If the charter serves high school students, did it revise its
graduation policy for 3™ or 4% year pupils who are not on track
to graduate to exempt them from coursework not included in
the state’s required coursework for graduation requirements
per EC 512257 |

Student and Family Handbook - Alternatives to
| Diplomas (Pages 20-21).

E. Items Specific to the Charter Petition and MOU

Comments: N/A

Review conducted by: Cathie Morris, KCSOS Charter School Consultant




2. FISCAL AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS

® Adherence to geographic restrictions: £€ 51747.3(b}

e Supervision of and assignment of credit by credentialed
teachers to claim apportionment credit: £C 51747.5(a)
Credit awarded for ADA based only upon work products: EC
51747.5(b)

In the column to the right, indicate a finding of Y {yes), N Y Use the space below to comment on the item
{no}, or N/A {not applicablej to each question/statement N | and/or to indicate where information used to
below. N/A | make the Y/N determination can be found.

A. Student Attendance

1. Is there a satisfactory attendance accounting system used? Y WCPA uses Aeries as its student information system.

2. Is the staff person primarily responsible for attendance Y
reporting adequately trained? WCPA staff attends various trainings and webinars.

3. Is there an approved Charter School calendar that includes a v

| minimum of 175 instructional days? 2023/24 Academic Calendar provided and reviewed.

4. Is there an approved class {bell} schedule? Y Bell schedule provided and reviewed.

5. Is there a process to monitor compliance with the minimum Governing board meeting minutes indicating review
instructional minute requirements as defined by Title 5, Section Y and approval of school calendar and bell schedule
115637 provided and reviewed. -

6. Is attendance taken daily by an individual responsible for taking Y Attendance is taken electronically in Aeries by the
attendance? teachers and reviewed by the attendance clerk.

7. Are absences excluded from the apportionment days? Y P1 Attendance Report submitted as sample.

8. Has the charter maintained an average TK class enrollment of y
not more than 24 pupils, and a 1-12 pupil ratio? {EC 48000{g)} TK Classroom Rosters provided and reviewed.

9. Has Average Daily Attendance only been claimed for teachers
who hold an appropriate certificate, permit or other document Y
issued by CTC, consistent with £C 47605(1)? Employee master list provided and reviewed.

Student Attendance — Independent Study

10. Are records maintained for audit as well as the total Y
independent study ADA? Sample IS records provided and reviewed.
11. Does the Charter School meet the requirement related to the
ratio of ADA to FTE certificated employees as prescribed under
5CCR 11704 as evidenced by support documentation and
calculations?
* 251, or; v
e The ratio of pupils to FTE certificated employees for all other
educational programs operated by the largest unified school
district, as measured by ADA, as reported at the 2™ principal
apportionment in the prior year, in the county or counties in WCPA has a ratio of 25:1 or fewer.
which the Charter School operates? CALPADS Report 3.1 provided and reviewed.
12. Does the Charter School have board-approved, written policies
related to independent Study that reflect compliance with EC Y WCPA references the board approved Independent
51747 and 51749.5? (apportionment, course of study and Study Policy to claim ADA for the 2023/24 school year.
evaluation) Independent Study Policy provided.
13. Does the Charter School have records that demonstrate
adherence to polices related to £€ 51745-51749.3 and Title 5,
11700-11705 in regard to claiming apportionment?
e Placement of SWDs into independent study: £C 51745{ ¢}
e Ratio of ADA for independent study to FTE staff: EC 51745.6
e Apportionment claims and gifts of value: EC 51747.3(a) v

Independent Study Policy and sample IS packet
provided and reviewed.




2. FISCAL AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS

In the column to the right, indicate a finding of Y {yes), N Y | Use the space below to comment on the item
{na), or N/A (not applicable) to each question/statement N | and/or to indicate where information used to
below. N/A | make the Y/N determination can be found.
14. Does the Charter School have documentation that is has
completed the “determination of funding” process pursuantto £C | NfA
47634.2 and Title 5, 11963.2-11963.77
B. Cash Receipts
1. Arethere approved policies addressing cash receipts? Y WOCPA Fiscal Policies & Procedures provided.
2. Are there receipts issued for all monies received? ¥ Sample Receipt Form and Fiscal Policy provided.
y WCPA Fiscal Policies & Procedures {Page 8)
3. Isan audit trail maintained to assure deposit of all monies? Sample Deposit Form provided.
Cash is stored in a secure [ocation with access only
Y available to the Chief Business Office and Sr.
4. s cash stored in a secure place prior to deposit? Business Manager. Policy and verbal assurance.,
5. Are deposits made in a timely manner? Y WCPA Fiscal Policies & Procedures (Page 10).
One staff member receives the money, one staff
member counts the money, and Charter Impact
Y handles the reconciliation.
b. Isthere asegregation of duties for the receipt of monies, the
deposit of monies, and the reconciliation of bank statements? WCPA Fiscal Policies & Procedures (Page 10}
Charter impact collects and maintains records and
7. Are there adequate records maintained for audit? Y copies of documents for audits.
C. Disbursements
1. Are there approved policies addressing disbursements? Y WCPA Fiscal Policies & Procedures (Page 16)
2. Do disbursements require: Y WCPA Fiscal Policies & Procedures (Page 13)
a} An original invoice from the vendor? Y WOCPA Fiscal Policies & Procedures (Page 13)
Y A packing slip, if applicable, is filed as back-up
b} A receiving document? documentation.
Y POs are approved by an authorized approver. WCPA
¢} Appropriate approval of the purchase? Fiscal Policies & Procedures.
y The Superintendent, Chief Business Officer, and
3. Are checks signed by authorized employees? Board Chair are authorized to sign checks.
4, Is there a system to maintain vendor payment information for Y MIP Sage is used to maintain 1099 vendor activity for
preparation of 1099s? the charter schoaol.
5. Is there a segregation of duties between purchasing, receiving, Y
and accounts payable? WCPA Fiscal Policies & Procedures {Page 5-6}.
v Payroll and check registers are approved at monthly
6. Are disbursements approved/ratified by Board? board meetings. Sample meeting agenda provided.
v WCPA Fiscal Policies & Procedures {Page 4-5) and
7. Are there adequate records maintained for audit? WCPA Audit Report provided and reviewed.
D. Payroll
1. Does the Charter School have a Board-approved Salary Schedule y

or other satisfactory salary structure?

2023/24 board-approved Salary Schedule provided.




2. FISCAL AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS

are available to meet the financial obligations of the charter
school?

In the column to the right, indicate a finding of Y (yes), N Y Use the space below to comment on the item
(no), or N/A (not applicable) to each question/statement N | and/or to indicate where information used to
below. N/A | make the Y/N determination can be found.
Y Charter Impact and Paycom are responsible for
2. Are tax deposits completed in a timely manner? processing tax deposits in a timely manner.
3. Are earnings properly recorded for retirement reporting to Social y Charter Impact is responsible for properly recording
Security, PERS, STRS? retirement reporting to Social Security and STRS.
4. Isthere a system to provide STRS data to the county STRS reports are submitted through the Paycom
| superintendent? Y payroll system.
| 5. Isthere a satisfactory system to maintain employee earning v W-2’s are processed using the Paycom payroll
records for preparation of W-2s? system.
6. Is there appropriate segregation of duties between the
maintenance of employee data, salary schedules, and payroll Y
payments? WCPA Fiscal Policies & Procedures (Page 6).
v WCPA Fiscal Policies & Procedures (Page 4-5)
7. Arethere adequate records maintained for audit? WCPA Audit Report provided and reviewed.
E. Budget, Accounting, and Financial Reporting
1. Are there board approved policies addressing budget, accounting y
and financial reporting? WCPA Fiscal Policies & Procedures {Page 6-7).
2. Has the budget been approved by the Board? Y Board of Directors June 27, 2023 Agenda provided.
The Superintendent, Executive Team and CBO
y review and discuss enrollment and operations. The
3. Isthere a process to review and revise the budget for changes in Board of Directors reviews the budget and
student enrollment and operations? accompanying financial statements monthly.
Y December 7, 2023 Agenda provided as sample.
4. Are budget revisions approved/ratified by the Board? Fiscal Policy reviewed.
Y Sample Monthly Financial Report and
5. Are financial obligations provided for in the budget? Sample board agenda provided and reviewed.
6. Are separate accounts maintained for restricted revenues and y
expenditures? WCPA is using the CSAM account code structure.
7. Arefinancial reports prepared and reviewed by the Board on a y Sample Monthly Financial Report and board meeting
regular basis? agenda provided.
Charter Impact prepares the budget and all financial
repeorts in conjunction with the WCPA Executive and
Y Business Teams. The Board approves the budget and
8. Are mandated financial reports provided to the county all financial reports and then they are submitted to
Superintendent of schools in a timely manner? {EC 47604.33) KCS0S within the required timelines.
a.} Onorbefore July 1%, the preliminary budget.
b.} On or before December 15, the interim financial report.
c.) On orbefore March 15, the second interim financial report. Y
d) On or before September 15™, the final unaudited report for muﬁ?ﬁ@ﬁ of allfinancial reports
" The full prior year. in a timely manner.
9. Are cash flow projections prepared, updated and provided to the
county on a regular basis to assure there are sufficient funds that Y

Sample Monthly Financial Reports provided.




2. FISCAL AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS

4. Arerecords maintained for audit purposes?

in the column to the right, indicate a finding of ¥ (yes), N Y | Use the space below to comment on the item
{no), or N/A (not applicable) to each question/statement N | and/or to indicate where information used to
below. N/A | make the Y/N determination can be found.
10. Does the charter school’s budget align with the school's LCAP v
and LCAP Addendum/LEA Plan? Approved Budget and LCAP reviewed.
11. Did the Charter's LCAP indicate that the Charter’s proportionality
obligation was fully met through its listed actions/services for its
. . L . Y
unduplicated pupils? If not, did it report the unused portion and
planned uses of those funds in its LCAP? (£C 42238.07) LCAP (Page 47) provided and reviewed.
12. Is there a business accounting/information system that complies Y
with State accounting and reporting requirements? Charter Impact uses the alternative forms.
F. Audit
WCPA has selected Eide Bailly, Inc. as the auditor for
Y the 2023/24 schoal year audit. Audit Engagement
1. Which state-approved audit firm has been selected? Letter provided.
Auditors are scheduled to meet in April, and
Y scheduled to reach-out in October for final review of
2. Has an audit schedule/timeline been developed? materials.
3. Has a copy of the prior year audit been provided to the county v
Superintendent? 2022/23 Audit Report provided.
4. If needed, has a corrective action plan been developed? N/A | The audit report did not result in any findings.
5. Are records maintained for audit? Y Audit report provided.
G. Financial Condition
1. Isaprudent level of reserves maintained for economic Y
uncertainties? Budgets indicate sufficient reserves maintained.
2. Are multi-year financial projections prepared? Y Budget projections provided and reviewed.
3. Are the projections and assumptions reasonable? Y | WCPA's projections and assumptions are reasonable.
N/A WCPA does not currently have any long-term debt
4. Have all long-term debt obligations been included? obligations.
Based on projections shown in the 2nd Interim, WCPA
5. Based on the projections, will the Charter School be able to v will be able to meet its financial obligations and
meet its financial obligations and maintain a prudent level of maintain a prudent level of reserves during the
reserves in the current and two subsequent fiscal years? current and two subsequent fiscal years.
H. Equipment Inventory
1. Are there approved policies addressing the purchase and y WCPA Equipment Maintenance Policy and Procedures
maintenance of equipment? reviewed.
2. Is an equipment inventory:
Y WCPA uses asset management software to tag and
a) Maintained? track equipment.
b} Physically iocated on each site? Y | Equipment inventory onsite with identification.
3. Is equipment purchased with federal funds properly identified? Y Asset Management Equipment Inventery.
Y

Asset Management Equipment Inventory.




2. FISCAL AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS

In the column to the right, indicate a finding of Y (yes), N
{no), or N/A (not applicable) to each question/statement
below.

N/A

Use the space below to comment on the item
and/or to indicate where information used to
make the Y/N determination can be found.

I. Expanded Learning Opportunities Program

1. Ifthe charter received funds pursuant to the ELOP (EC 46120),
did it offer to all unduplicated pupils in classroom-based
instructional programs in K-6 and provide access to any pupil
whose parent or guardian requests access to expanded learning
opportunity programs in accordance with program
requirements? {EC46120({a}(2)}

WCPA’s ELOP program is offered to all k-6 students
in accordance with program requirements.
WCPA ELOP Plan provided for review.

J. Items Specific to the Charter Petition and MQOU

1. Are all reviewed fiscal and business records/activities specific to
the individual charter school? (WCPA-Delano)

All fiscal and business records are maintained

specifically for the WCPA - Delano charter school.

Comments: Delanc was well prepared and provided all documents in a timely manner.

Review conducted by: Maxx Garris, KCSOS District Fiscal Advisory




3. EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM AND ASSESSMENT

student’s eligibility for services under Section 5047

observations.

in the column to the right, indicate a finding of ¥ (yes), N Y | Use the space below to comment on the item
{no}, or N/A {not applicable) to each question/statement N | and/for to indicate where information used to
below. N/A | make the Y/N determination can be found.
A. Educational Program
1. Is the Charter School following its curricular and instructional Y WCPA Instructional Framework and petition reviewed
plan as presented in the approved Charter petition? and classroom ohservations confirmed. ]
2. Is the Charter Schoal staffing sufficient to carry out the
educational program and consistent with the terms of the Y WCPA's classes on average have a 1 to 24 teacher to
charter petition? student ratio. CALPADS report provided. |
3. Are parents of high school students informed about the
transferability of courses to other public high schools and the Y
| eligibility of courses to meet college entrance requirements? Student/Parent Handbook (Page 18).
4. |s the Charter School implementing a framework for
instructional design that is aligned with the needs of the Y
students identified as the target population in the approved ELL Master Plan, ELD Scope and Seguence and student
charter petition? demographics reviewed. |
5. Has the Charter School obtained WASC accreditation as Y
outlined in the petition, if applicable? - WASC Accreditation Letter provided.
6. Has the charter’s Course of Study been revised to include:
a. Social Science instruction related to the contributions of
people of all genders, Latino, LGBTQ, regardless of religious v History/Social Science Scope and Sequence includes
and socioeconomic status EC 51204.5. new requirements. Currently, grades 1-6 embed
b. Grades 1-6: the inclusion of instruction in cursive writing in cursive writing, but WCPA will be adopting new writing
the appropriate grade levels? EC 51210(a)(1). curriculum for 2024-25.
B. Services to Special Populations
1. Has the Charter School adopted policies and practices that
reflect compliance with all laws related to the provision of
Special Education including: i I
Review of current SIRAS data, a sample of
Y Interim-Placement IEP and a 30-day IEP, as
a} Appropriate placement for students who are enrolling with well as classroom visits, confirmed
IEPs? appropriate placement of students with IEPs.
Y Reviewed sample SST, MTSS Tracker, and child
b) Referral and assessment of students suspected of requiring Find PD PPT in Google Doc. Also reviewed
special education and related services? current SIRAS data.
Y Reviewed CALPADS 16.21 report as of 3/28/24, cross-
c) Compliance with the timelines related to special education? referenced to current SIRAS data as of 3/28/24.
Reviewed sample |IEP Services Page and sample Service
2. Are students who are identified as being eligible for Special Y Log in Google Doc. |IEP services also witnessed during
Education receiving services required by their I[EPS? L 4/9/24 classroom observations.
o Review of current SIRAS data and reviewed sample IEP
3. Does the Charter School provide for the inclusion of all of the Y Student Information page included in Google Doc
required members to participate in iEP team meetings? which noted bus aide support.
4. Does the Charter School have a plan for the provision of
transportation of Special Education students who require this Y
related service? | Provision of transportation document.
Review of sample 504 Plan confirmed and also
5. Does the Charter School have a process for determining a Y witnessed services during 4/9/24 classroom




3. EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM AND ASSESSMENT

containing required elements by Feb 1, 2024?

in the column to the right, indicate a finding of Y {yes), N Y | Use the space below to comment on the item

{no), or N/A {not applicable) to each question/statement N | and/or to indicate where information used to

below. N/A | make the Y/N determination can be found.

Reviewed sample 504 Plan and Parental Safeguards

6. Does the Charter School develop and implement Y documentation. 504 plan accommodations also
accommodation plans for any students who are 504 eligible? witnessed during 4/9/24 classroom observations.

7. Does the Charter School ensure that Special Education funds are v
not used to serve students identified under Section 504? Verbal confirmation by CBO.

8. Does the Charter School follow a process for identification and Y
reclassification of students who are English Learners? English Learner Master Plan provided and reviewed.

9. If the Charter School graduates students, has it notified its
students in foster care, homeless, of a military family or of y
migrant status of their rights of exemption from local
graduation requirements under {EC 51225.1(a)}? Student/Parent Handbook (Page 18).

C. Curricular Materials

WCPA Instructional Framework {K-12)

1. Is the Charter School utilizing standards-aligned instructional Y Elementary & Secondary instructional Materials List,

| _materials? and Secondary Course Catalog reviewed.

2. Is the Charter School utilizing instructional materials that EL instructional materials list, EL Master Plan and

i . Y ) ;
address the specific needs of English Learners? classroom observations confirmed use.

3. Is the Charter School utilizing instructional materials that Y Sample of Annual IEP with accommeodations and
address the specific needs of Special Education students? classroom chservations confirmed use.

4. If the Charter School requires a course in health education for
graduation from high school, does that course include
instruction in performing compression-only cardiopulmonary N/A WCPA does not require a course in health education
resuscitation? (£€ 51225.6) for graduation from high school.

D. Professional Development

1. Has Charter School staff received legally required trainings? Y Dacumentation provided and reviewed.

2. Has the charter communicated to or trained school personnel
in the [tem ID-3 requirement to take immediate steps to
intervene when safe to do so, if they witness an act of actual or Y
perceived discrimination, harassment, intimidation and
bullying of others with characteristics set forth in *Section
422 .55 of the Penal Code? {EC 234.1(b}} ] | Documentation provided and reviewed.

3. Is Charter School staff provided opportunities for professional Documentation that the charter staff received multiple
development necessary to carry out the instructional program Y opportunities for PD related to the instructional
as outlined in the petition? program.

E. Assessment

1. Is the Charter School administering the state mandated testing
according to testing rules and regulations as required for all K- Y | TK-12 District Wide Assessment Calendar provided and
12 schools in Califarnia? reviewed.

2. Does a review of SBAC and Dashboard Data indicate that the 2024 Dashboard data and the CDE report that WCPA-
Charter School is on target for meeting renewal requirements Y Delano is in the Middle Tier of charter performance,
as set forth in EC 47607(h) and the charter petition? which provides for a 5-year renewal term.

3. Has the Charter School completed and posted a SARC Y

A compliant SARC was posted by Feb. 1, 2024,

10




3. EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM AND ASSESSMENT

In the column to the right, indicate a finding of Y (yes), N
(no), or N/A (not applicable) to each question/statement
below.,

Y
N
N/A

Use the space below to comment on the item
and/or to indicate where information used to
make the Y/N determination can be found.

4. Is student achievement data regularly reported to parents and
staff?

State and local assessment data are regularly reported
to and reviewed by staff and parents through multiple
means.

5. Have parent/guardian notifications of language proficiency
(ELPAC) assessment been provided as required by EC, and if so,
do they include whether a child is a long-term English learner or
is at-risk of becoming one? (*EC 313.2(a)

Evidence of parent natifications, as listed in item, all
provided and compliant.

6. s the Charter School implementing a plan for collecting,
analyzing, and reporting data on pupil achievement? If so, is the
Charter School utilizing the data to monitor and improve the
Charter School’s educational program consistent with £C
47605(b){5)(C) and the terms of the charter?

Evidence provided that the charter has a master
assessment plan that includes the reporting and
analysis of a variety of assessment data.

F. items 5Specific to the Charter Petition and MOU

1. Is the charter school serving grade levels consistent with the
content of the charter and MOU?

2. Has the charter school made the “enrollment database”
required in the MOU available to the County Superintendent
upon request?

| The charter’s enrollment aligns with the petition.

Enroliment database provided and reviewed.

3. Are the educational program and assessment activities specific
to the individual charter school (WCPA-Delano)?

Evidence provided indicates that WCPA-Delano’s
educational and assessment programs align with the
WCPA-Delano charter petition and student needs.

Comments: N/A

Review conducted by: Anna Vargas, KCSOS Director II; Humanities and Multilingual Education and Professional Learning

11




4. FACILITIES AND OPERATIONS

In the column to the right, indicate a finding of Y (yes), N Y | Use the space below to comment on the item
(no), or N/A (not applicable} to each question/statement N | and/or to indicate where information used to
below. N/A | make the Y/N determination can be found.
A. Facility Adequacy and Compliance
1. Is there a designated staff person responsible for overseeing v Marcus Morillo, Chief Facilities Officer and Carlos
facilities maintenance and operations? If yes, who? Navarro, Facilities & Operations Manager
2. Is there a custodial schedule that reflects appropriate and timely
attention to providing students with a clean and safe learning Y
environment? | Standard Operating Procedures provided as evidence.
3. Do all facilities in which the Charter School is housed meet the Y Fire Inspections and Certificates of Occupancy
American with Disahilities Act requirements? provided as evidence.
4. Has the Charter School identified all single-user toilet facilities Y All single-user facilities have been designated as all-
as all gender facilities? {Article 5, Health & Safety Code} gender facilities.
S. s there a process for providing routine inspection and Evidence includes a Service Support Online Request,
maintenance to ensure that Charter School facilities including Y Routine Inspections Logs, and a
playgrounds remain in good condition? completed Playground Equipment Report.
6. Have the Charter School’s facilities been modified during the N/A The campus is not currently undergoing any
past year? renovations during the past school year.
7. Arethe Charter School’s facilities adequate for the number of y
students and types of programs assigned to each site? WCPA Capacity Chart provided and reviewed.
8. Does the Charter School have on file: 1) Certificate of
Occupancy; 2} Conditional Use Permit for each site; and/or 3) Y Certificates of Occupancy and Kern County Fire Life &
Safety Inspections by local Fire Department? Safety Inspection Report provided and reviewed.
9. Does the Charter School have plans to modernize and/or add N/A WCPA does not have any plans for expansion of
facilities to the existing site? facilities at this point in time.
Does the Charter School plan to add a new site? If so, has proper N/A
notification been made to the approving agency? WCPA does not plan to add a new site.
If the Charter School participates in an interscholastic athletic
program, does it have a written emergency action plan and at least Y WCPA-Delano has a comprehensive emergency plan
one AED for the school? (FC 35179/4. 35179.6) and two AED’s onsite.
If the Charter School has been made aware of a lactating pupil, has WCPA has not been made aware of any lactating
it made accommodations other than a restroom and provided a N/A | pupils, but provided evidence of such a location, if
place to safety store expressed milk? needed.
If the Charter School serves any grades 6-12, and it meets the 40%
pupil poverty rate, does it provide feminine hygiene products, y
including tampons and sanitary napkins, in a least 50% of the All middle and high school girls’ restrooms have
school’s restrooms? (£C 35292.6} dispensers with free feminine hygiene products.
If the Charter School contracts out its transportation services, and
has made a finding of gross negligence or disciplinary action against N/A
the driver of a school bus, has it notified the Dept. of Motor WCPA provides transportation with its own staff and
Vehicles within 5 calendar days? {EC 39843, 39831.3} vehicles. No reports of negligence.
Iltems Specific to the Charter Petition and MOU N/A

Comments; NJA

Review Conducted by: Cathie Morris, KCSOS Charter School Consultant

12




5. GOVERNANCE

f) Bank signature authorizations, etc.

In the column to the right, indicate a finding of Y (yes), N Y | Use the space below to comment on the item
(no), or N/A (not applicable) to each question/statement N | and/or to indicate where information used to
below. N/A | make the Y/N determination can be found.
A. Organizational Management
1. If the Charter School is constituted as a non-profit corporation,
are the corporate papers, including Articles of Incorporation Y
available to the authorizer? Articles of Incorporation provided.
2. Is there a list or roster of governing board members? y | Roster of Governing Board of Directors provided.
3. Does the Charter School governance structure include the
process to be followed by the school to ensure parental v WCPA-Delano documented parental involvement
involvement consistent with £C 47605(b){5}(D) and the terms of through multiple means including participation on the
the charter petition and the MOU? board.
4., is the Board free of real or perceived conflicts of interest? Y Conflict of Interest Policy provided.
The composition of the WCPA Board of Directors is
consistent with the approved charter, which provides
for seven board members.
The WCPA Board currently consists of five current
Y : -
directors. Two positions are currently vacant — the
previous parent and member-at-large members
5. s the compaosition of the Board consistent with the approved resigned for personal reasons. WCPA is currently in
Charter? the process of trying to fill both roles.
B. Meetings
1. Does the Board conduct public meetings at such intervals as are
necessary to ensure that the Board is addressing business Y 2023/24 Board of Directors Meeting Calendar
required to provide sufficient direction to the Charter School? provided and reviewed.
2. Does the Board comply with the following:
a) Regularly scheduled meetings, as outlined in the petition, Y
with required agenda postings per EC 54954.2({a)/549567 Board meeting schedule provided and reviewed.
b} Brown Act training and meeting compliance? Y Documentation of training provided.
c) Twice the time limit, if one is used, for public comment for Y
non-English speakers? {Govt. Code 54954.3}) Sample Agenda provided and reviewed.
d} Availability of meeting minutes and adherence to the public
records act that includes the posting of public records on its Y Meeting minutes are available both in the office and
website and providing paper copies to the public without are posted on the school’s website. WCPA Public
access to them electronically? (Govt. Code 6253) | Records Act Request Policy.
3. Does the Board have resolutions and Board—adopted policies
that address the following:
a) Conflict of interest (*SB 126 compliant?) Y Conflict of Interest Policy provided and reviewed.
b) Handbooks- Parent, Student, Employee (*AB 1505/SB 75 Y Parent/Student and Employee Handbooks provided
compliant?) and reviewed.
¢} Student & Employee discipline and due process (*S8 419 y Parent/Student Handbook {Pages 64-82) and
compliant?) WCPA Employee Handbook (Pages 73-74).
d) Parent complaint resolution and due process Y Uniform Complaint Policy and Procedures reviewed.
e) Internal controls policies and related forms and systems Y Fiscal Policies and Procedures Manual provided.
Y

Bank Signature Authorizations and Fiscal Policy.

13




5. GOVERNANCE

operating under its oversight is an individual school under

the jurisdiction of the Board?

In the column to the right, indicate a finding of Y {yes), N Y | Use the space below to comment on the item
{no}, or N/A {not applicable) to each question/statement N | and/or to indicate where information used to
below. N/A | make the Y/N determination can be found.
g} Harassment- student, staff A\ Handbooks and policies provided and reviswed.
h) Safety Plan Y School Safety Plan provided and reviewed.
i} Immunization records Y On file, upon request, documentation provided.
i} Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA} — policy v Parent/Student Handbook (Page 38) and
and notices Annual Notification (Pages 28-31) provided.
4. Have any changes made by the Board to bylaws or any document
required by the Charter/MOU been communicated to the County | NfA
Superintendent? No changes in 2023-24.
C. Parent/Staff Involvement
WCPA offers multiple avenues for input from
constituents including parent representation on the
Y Board of Directors, Parent Advisory Committee and
1. Is there a process in place that ensures that parents, teachers, ELAC meetings. in addition, WCPA holds feedback
and staff may provide input regarding the effectiveness of the sessions with staff to provide input into the LCAP
Charter School? process.
2. Do board-meeting minutes reflect that the Charter Board held a Y
___public hearing prior to approving its LCAP? (SB 75) | | May 25, 2023 Board of Directors Meeting Agenda.
3. Isthere evidence that the charter presented a report on the
annual LCAP update and its LCFF budget overview for parents on
or before February 28 at a regularly scheduled board meeting? If
so, did that report include midyear outcome data related to the Y
metrics of the current year’s LCAP, and all available midyear
expenditure and implementation data on all actions identified in February 26, 2024 Board of Directors Meeting Agenda
that LCAP? EC 47606.5(e)(1) and (2). and 2023/24 Annual Update to the LCAP Report.
D. LCAP/LEA Plans and Categorical Funds
1. Does the Charter School have a current LEA {Local Educational
| Agency) Plan that has been presented to, reviewed and Y June 27, 2023 Board of Directors Meeting Agenda
approved by the Charter School’s governing board? provided and reviewed.
2. ls the charter's LCAP prominently posted on the charter’s
website, including updates, revisions, addenda, including those Y
to comply with federal law? {EC 47606.5(h)} WCPA-Delano website reviewed.
3. Are the Title | funds/categorical funding being used to Y 2023/24 L.CAP with Title | Expenditures (Pages 51)
supplement the charter’s LCAP goals? and LCAP Federal Addendum reviewed.
E. Items specific to the Charter Petition and MOU
1. Does the charter board understand that each charter school y The Board of Directors understands that each charter

school is operating independent of any other charter

| school.

Comments: The preparation work done -by_Won'derful was very helpful and extensive. Very well done!

Review conducted by: Mary Westendorf, KCS0S District Advisory

14




6. HUMAN RESOURCES

15

In the column to the right, indicate a finding of Y {yes}, N (no), Yoq | Useithe SPFCG. below to coim ey o'n the ftem
or N/A {not applicable) to each question/statement below DS N g e e e R e gt sedi o
) N/A | make the Y/N determination can be found.
A. All Employees
1. Does the Charter School have fingerprint clearance, including
Department of Justice background checks, on all employees? [EC Y WCPA - DLO Employee Master List provided and
44237] “Crimingl record summary” reviewed.
2. Does the Charter School have documentation that TB test results Y WCPA provided documentation that TB results are
are current for all employees? current on employees.
3. Does the Charter School have record of the AB-1432 Child Abuse
Neglect and Reporting Act Training required annually within the y
first & weeks of the school year or within 6 weeks of each person’s WCPA provided documentation that employees have
employment? completed the AB-1432 training.
4. Does the Charter School have approved personnel policies and
practices that are consistent with the petition, MOU, and all Y WCPA’s personnel policies and Employee Handbook
applicable laws? reviewed.
5. If the Charter School employs 50+ employees, does it provide
mandatory anti-harassment training for supervisors that includes Y
harassment based on gender identify, expression and sexual WCPA - DLO Employee Master List and training records
orientation? {Govt. Code 12950} provided and reviewed. B
6. if the Charter School employs 20+ employees, does it provide up
to 12 weeks of job-protected, unpaid parental leave? [Govt. Code Y
12945.6(a)] Evidence provided and reviewed.
7. Hf the Charter School employs 25+ employees, does it provide
protected leave and sick leave as it pertains to child care and “kin Y WCPA provides protected leave to employees as it
care” laws? (Labor Code 230.8) pertains to child care and “kin care” laws.
8. Does the Charter School have a DFEH-created poster regarding
transgender rights posted in a prominent and accessible location? Y WCPA has posted the required posters in accessible
{Govt. Code 12950} locations.
. Certificated Employees
1. Does the Charter School employ sufficient teaching staff to satisfy Y WCPA - DLO Employee Master List provided and
the terms of the petition and the MOU? reviewed/compared with petition.
2. Do teachers providing instruction in core classes have the
required credentials and certifications to meet state and federal Y Staff master list with assignments and credentialing
requirements, terms of the petition, and the MOU? provided and reviewed.
3. Do teachers who are providing Special Education and Related Y
Services have the appropriate credentials and certifications? | All SPED students are served in RSP settings.
C. Classified Employees
1. Do classified employees who are providing instructional support
in the core content areas, Special Education, and English Language Y
Learner Services meet state and federal requirements, and terms Documentation of classified staff gualifications
of the petition/MOU? provided and reviewed.
2. Does the Charter School provide adequate staffing for:
a) Custodial N R Y | Staff list provided and reviewed.
I _E) Food Service Y | Staff list provided and reviewed.
c) Information Technology Y | Shared with WCPA-Delano.
d) Lunch/Break Supervision Y Staff list provided and reviewed.
e} Clerical/Record Keeping Y Staff list provided and reviewed.




6. HUMAN RESOURCES

D. ltems specific to the Charter Petition and MOU

1. Has the Charter School provided a written list of all of its
employees for the current school year pursuant to the MOU?

Master staff list provided.

Comments: N/A

Review conducted by: Eveiyn Feliciano, KCSOS Credentials Manager

16




7. STUDENT SERVICES

In the column to the right, indicate a finding of ¥ (yes), N {no),
or N/A (not applicable] to each question/statement below.

Y
N
N/A

Use the space below to comment on the item
and/or to indicate where information used to
make the Y/N determination can be found.

A. Admissions

1. Is the Charter School complying with the admissions practices
described in the approved charter?

intent to Enroll Forms and Enrollment packet provided
and reviewed.

2. Does the Charter School facilitate admissions for a student with
an IEP in the same manner as for a student without an IEP?

Enrollment forms and verbal assurance that the charter
only has one enrollment process.

3. Does the student enrollment and mohility data reflect a program
that does not exit {return to the district) specific populations of
students in a manner that would result in a charter school
enrollment that is not reflective of the local school districts?

Enrollment database provided and reviewed.

4. Do the Charter School enroliment forms indicate compliance with
all applicable laws and with the approved charter? Have they
been updated to include health care coverage options and
enrollment assistance information? {EC 49452.9{a)}

Enrollment forms provided and reviewed.

5. If the Charter School has needed to use the lottery system to
determine which students will be allowed to enroll, is there
documentation that the process was held in the manner
described in the approved petition?

Lottery Notification Letter and script for lottery
provided.

Does the Charter School have records documenting
immunizations to the extent required for enrollment in public
schools?

a I

Records are kept in the SIS, Aeries.
Copy of immunization record provided.

7. Does the Charter School have a student population that
represents the racial and ethnic backgrounds of pupils enrolled in
the local district(s)?

2023-24 DataQuest Data indicates that WCPA-Delano’s
racial and ethnic backgrounds are comparable to
DUESD and Delano JUHSD.

8. Does the charter school have a student population in which rates
of pupils with disabilities, English learners, and pupils who are
economically disadvantaged are comparable to the local district(s)
rates?

Student enrollment data reviewed and compared with
that of the local districts.

Discipline

1. Does the school have discipline policies and practices consistent
with the terms of the charter and EC 48900 in regard to
suspension of K-8 and expulsion of K-12 students?

Student/Family Handbook provided.

2. Do the Charter School’s suspension procedures include a
provision for a conference where the student is informed of the
reason for the action, an opportunity to present his/her version
and is informed of the other means of correction that were
attempted before the suspension? (EC 48911)

Student/Family Handbook reviewed.

3. Have the charter’s discipline practices been updated to include: a
certificated or ciassified employee may refer a student to school
administrators for in-school intervention or supports from the list
of other means of correction specified in EC 48900.5(b}(1) and
that a school administrator will, within 5 business days document
the actions taken, if any, and place that documentation into the
pupil’s record, and that the school administrator will inform the
referring staff member, verbally or in writing, what actions were
taken, and if none, the rationale for that decision? £C
48901.1(d)({1).

Teacher PD provided that aligned with requirements.

17




7. STUDENT SERVICES

In the column to the right, indicate a finding of Y {yes), N {no},
or NfA {not applicable) to each question/statement below.

Y
N
N/A

Use the space below to comment on the item
and/or to indicate where information used to
make the Y/N determination can be found.

4, Does the charter’s suspension/expulsion policy state that a pupil
shall not be suspended/expelled based solely on the fact that they
are truant, tardy or otherwise absent from school activities?

EC 48900(w){1)

Parent/Student Handbook does not explicitly state the
itern, but it does not contradict it.

5. Has the charter updated its suspension and expulsion procedures
to ensure that the written notice regarding pupil involuntary
transfers is in the native language of the pupil’s parent or
guardian, and in the case of a homeless child or foster youth, in
the native language of the foster youth’s educational rights holder
or attorney and county social worker? {EC 47605{d}(4}}

Student/Family Handhook provided.

6. Do the charter's expulsion procedures for a student with
exceptional needs who is a foster child, include that the
educational rights holder and county social worker be invited to
the change of placement meeting? {48915.5{d}}

Student/Family Handbook reviewed.

C. Health and Safety

1. Does the Charter School have a School Safety Plan that includes
all of the topics listed in *EC {32282(a)(2)}? EC {47605{b}{5{F)}

Schooel Safety Plan reviewed.

2. Isthere evidence that the School Safety Plan was reviewed and
updated by March 1 {EC 47605({b}{5){F)} and that a public hearing
was held before its adoption? EC 32288(k}{1}

Safety Plan reviewed by SSC. Minutes provided.

3. is there evidence that staff has been trained in health, safety, and
emergency procedures?

Evidence provided that staff were trained.

4. Does the Charter School maintain a calendar of emergency drills
for each site in which it operates?

Emergency Drill Record provided.

5. Does the charter’s Safety Plan include procedures to assess and
respond to reports of any dangerous, violent, or unlawful activity
that is being conducted or threatened to be conducted at an
activity sponsored by the school or on a school bus serving the
school? £C 32282(a}l{2)(K)

School Safety Plan reviewed.

6. Does the charter’s Safety Plan include appropriate adaptations
for pupils with disabilities in accordance with EC 32282{a}{2)B)?

School Safety Plan provided and reviewed.

7. After the March 1 review, or at any time, was the charter notified
by any person of any concern(s) related to the adaptations for
pupils with disabilities? [f 50, is there evidence that the charter
reviewed the concerns and if found credible, modify the
adaptations, accordingly? £C 32288(a){2){B)

WCPA services any student(s) in need of special
accommodations relating to short-term or long-term
disabilities.

Student Support Emergency Procedures for IEP, 504, or
Temporary Health Concerns

8. If the charter serves students in grades 7-12, does the school’s
Safety Plan include a protocol in the event a student is suffering
or is believed to be suffering from an Opioid overdose? EC
47605(c)(5)(C){ii}).

School Safety Plan reviewed.

9. If the charter offers an athletic program, does it: 1) annually give
the Opioid Factsheet for Patients published by the Centers for
Disease Control and Prevention to each athlete, and if the athlete
is 17 years or younger, the athlete’s parent or guardian
{electronically or written copy) and 2) require that it be signed and
returned to the school before the athlete initiates practice or
competition? {EC 49476}

CIF Central Section Athletic Clearance Forms provided.

18




7. STUDENT SERVICES

In the column to the right, indicate a finding of Y {yes), N {no),
or N/A (not applicable} to each question/statement below.

Y
N
N/A

Use the space below to comment on the item
and/or to indicate where information used to
make the Y/N determination can be found.

10.

Do records reflect that the Charter School provides for the screening
of pupils’ vision, hearing, and required immunizations to the same
extent as would be required if the pupils attended a non-charter
public school?

WCPA-Delano has an on-site wellness team through
the Student Wellness Center that screens for, vision
and hearing.

ne.

Has the Charter School notified students and parents/guardians at
least twice a year regarding how to initiate access to available
student mental health services on campus or in the community? (EC
49428}

Evidence provided that notifications are at least
twice a year and on the school’s website.

12.

Does the charter have board-adopted Suicide Prevention Policies for
grades K-6 and 7-12 that 1) were created in conjunction with
stakeholders, 2} specifically list its high-risk groups, 3} addresses the
needs of those high-risk students and 4) were updated in the last 5
years? (*EC 215)

Youth Suicide Prevention Policy reviewed.

13.

Did the Charter School provide each needy pupil as defined in £C
49552, with two free nutritionally-adequate meals to any pupil who
requests a meal without consideration of the pupil’s eligibility {£C
49501.5{a}(2)} with adequate time to eat each, based upon the
recommendations of the National School Lunch/Breakfast
programs? EC 49501.5{1}{A)

WCPA provides three free meals a day to all
students.

14,

If the Charter serves grades 7-12 and issues [D Cards to students, did
it include the telephone number of the National Suicide Prevention
Lifeline on those cards? {*EC 215.5}

Sample Student ID Card

15.

If the Charter School qualifies for the free federal reimbursement
rate for all meals that it provides, has it applied to provide a
universal meal service to all students at the school? If not, has it
submitted a governing board resolution to the state claiming a
fiscal hardship? If so, is there evidence that those finding are
reviewed in a public meeting every two years? {EC 49564{a}}

WCPA qualifies and is currently providing free meals
to all students regardless of family income.

16.

If the Charter School receives federal funds, does it comply with the
posting on its website in a prominent, conspicuous location, the
Title IX information, including the name and contact number/e-mail
for the Title IX Coordinator for that school? (¥*£C 221.61)

Website reviewed.

17.

Does the Charter’'s Excused Absence Policy include an absence for
the benefit of the pupil's mental or behavioral health, or for the
purpose of participating in a cultural ceremony/event? {EC 48205}

Student/Family Handbook reviewed.

18.

Does the Charter’'s Excused Absence Policy include the purpose of
attending the funeral services or grieving the death of either a
member of the student’s immediate family or of a person that is
determined by the pupil's parent/guardian to be in such close
association with the pupil to be considered “immediate family”
so long as the absence is not more than 5 days per incident? £C
48205(a){4).

Student/Family Handbook reviewed.

15.

Does the charter’'s Excused Absence Policy include up to three days
for a student to access services from a victim services organization,
to access grief support services or to participate in safety planning
or to take other actions to increase student safety or that of an
immediate family member? EC 48205(a}{13)

Student/Family Handbook reviewed.

19




7. STUDENT SERVICES

In the column to the right, indicate a finding of Y (yes), N (no),
or N/A {not applicable) to each question/statement below.

Uise the space beiow to comment on the item
and/or to indicate where information used to
make the Y/N determination can be found.

20. If the charter serves middle or high school students, did it revise its
Excused Absence Policy to include an absence for the purpose of a
student engaging in a civic or political event? (EC 48205}

P1.
serve pupils in grades 7-12 information on existing resources
related to the support of LGBQT pupils who may face bias or
bullying? {EC 234.1(d){1}}?

Has the charter provided to certificated schoolsite employees who n

| Student/Family Handbook reviewed.

Evidence of resources being provided to staff.

22. Does the charter’s Safety Plan include procedures for the
storage and administration of emergency epinephrine auto-

injectors? £C 49414(a)

School Safety Plan reviewed.

23. If the charter serves students in grades 9-12, and allows on-campus
access to employers, does it include access to military services?

EC 49603.

N/A

WCPA does not allow on-campus access to
employers.

Pupil and Parent Notifications

1. Does the Charter School provide a notice to all parents/guardians
regarding their rights under the Family Educational Rights and
Privacy Act (FERPA)?

Student/Family Handbook and Annual Notification
provided and reviewed.

2. Are parents provided with annual notifications as required by the
petition, the MOU, and all applicable laws? {EC 48980, EC 48985}

Annual Notifications provided and reviewed.

3. Has the charter school posted a Notice on its website that states
that charter schools are prohibited from discouraging any student
from enrolling or encouraging students to drop, once enrolled?
{EC 47605(e){4)}

WCPA Website reviewed,

4. Did the charter provide a copy of the Notice from Item 7D-3: 1}
When a parent or guardian inquired about enrollment, 2} Before
conducting an enrollment lottery, 3) Before disenrollment of a
pupil? {EC 47605(e)(4)(D}}

The charter provided evidence that it provides the
Notice, as required.

5. Has the charter posted on its website: 1) the name and contact
information of its hameless liaison, and 2) specific information on
homelessness, including educaticnal rights and resources available
to persons experiencing homelessness? {EC 48852.6}

WCPA Website reviewed.

6. If the charter serves high school students, and enrolled a foster or
homeless youth who is in their 2" or 4 year, who is not on track to
meet the charter's educational requirements, did it notify the pupil
and the educational rights holder, and social worker, if applicable,
within 30 calendar days of transfer into the school of the
exemption from the charter’s graduation requirements as
described in [tem ID-5? {EC 51225.1}

Student/Family Handbook reviewed.

7. If the charter serves high school students, did it provide at ieast
once before grade 12, information on how to properly complete
and submit the FAFSA or the CA Dream Act Application that
includes information about the types of documentation and
personal informal that is required, an explanation of definitions
used for each application, eligibility requirements, application
timelines/deadlines, and the importance of submitting applications
early? {EC51225.8}

Family Notifications on FAFSA and College
Readiness reviewed.

20




7. STUDENT SERVICES

In the column to the right, indicate a finding of Y {yes), N (no},
or N/A (riot applicable) to each question/statement below.

N/A

Use the space below to comment on the item
and/or to indicate where information used to
make the Y/N determination can be found.

8. Has the charter posted its antidiscrimination policy from ltem 1D-3
above in all schoaol offices, including staff lounges and pupil
government meeting rooms? {EC 234.1(e}}

WCPA has posted the anti-discrimination pelicy in
central areas of the campus including the staff
lounges, school offices and harvest hall.

9. If the charter serves high school students, did it receive a petition
requesting pupil representation on its governing board? if so, did
the charter add a student representative per £C 47604.27

N/A

WCPA has not received a petition requesting pupil
representation on its governing board.

m

ltems specific to the Charter Petition and MOU

1. Based on review of pupil data {race, ethnicity, English learner
status, socio-economically disadvantaged (as determined by
eligibility for free/reduced-price meal program}, and pupils with
disabilities), is the Charter School serving a student population that
is reflective of the general population residing within the territorial
jurisdiction of the school district in which it resides?

—

Pupil enrollment data reviewed and compared with
that of the local districts.

If not, is the Charter Schooi using all reasonable means to ensure
that the school is equally accessible to enrellment and attendance
by all students within the boundaries of that district?

WCPA Administration has worked closely with KC505
Agencies; community members and organizations; |
and families to ensure enrollment practices closely
resemble the student population it represents,
including the demographic data of the county and
local school district in which it resides.

Comments: NfA

Reviewed conducted by: Cathie Morris, KC50S Charter Consultant and Lee Knotts, KCS0OS SELPA Director

21




*Education Codes/Legal Compliance Citations

Section 1: General Requirements and Section 3: Educational Program

EC Section 220:

No person shall be suhjected to discrimination on the basis of disability, gender, gender identity, gender
expression, nationality, race or ethnicity, religion, sexual orientation, or any other characteristic that is
contained in the definition of hate crimes set forth in Section 422.55 of the Penal Code, including immigration
status, in any program or activity conducted by an educational institution that receives, or benefits from, state
financial assistance, or enrolls pupils who receive state student financial aid.

Penal Code 422.55:

Under Penal Code 422.55 PC, California law defines a hate crime as a criminal act committed in whole or in part
because of the victim’s actual or perceived disability, gender, nationality, race or ethnicity, religion, sexual
orientation, or association with a person or group with one or more of these actual or perceived characteristics.

Section 3: Educational Program
EC Section: 313.1/313.2:

For purposes of this article, the following terms have the following meanings:
(a)(1) “Long-term English learner” means an English learner to which all of the following apply:

(A) Is enrolled in any of grades 6 to 12, inclusive.

{B} Has been enrolled in schools in the United States for six years or more.

{C) Has remained at the same English language proficiency level for two or more consecutive prior years, or has
regressed to a lower English language proficiency level, as determined by the English language development test
identified or developed pursuant to Section 60810, or a score determined by the Superintendent on any successor
test.

(D) For a pupil in any of grades 6 to 9, inclusive, has scored far below basic or below basic on the prior year's English
language arts standards-based achievement test administered pursuant to Section 60640 , or a score determined by
the Superintendent on any successor test.

Section 5: Governance

Education Code Section 47604.1 / Senate Bill 126 Compliance:

New Education Code section 47604.1 provides that charter schools and entities managing charter schools (defined as a
nonprofit public benefit corporation that operates a charter school) are subject to the Ralph M. Brown Act (or the
Bagley-Keene Open Meeting Act). It also prescribes specific rules regarding meeting locations and meeting content.

Additionally, Education Code section 47604.1 clarifies that the California Public Records Act applies to both charter
schools and entities managing charter schools.

Finally, the new law subjects charter schools and entities managing charter schools to both Government Code section
1090 and the Political Reform Act of 1974. This means that charter school officials may not be financially interested in
any contract made by them in their official capacity. They must also comply with all conflict prohibitions and reporting

22



requirements of the Political Reform Act and must adopt a conflict of interest code. Unlike employees of school districts
and county offices of education, a charter school employee may serve as a member of the charter school’s governing
board; however, the employee must abstain from voting on, influencing, or attempting to influence another member of
the governing board regarding any matters unigquely affecting the member’s employment with the charter school.

Section 7: Student Services

EC 48901.1 and SB 419 Compliance:

Notwithstanding Section 47610 or any other law, commencing July 1, 2020, the following provisions apply to charter
schools:

{a) A pupil enrclled in a charter school in kindergarten or any of grades 1 to 5, inclusive, shall not be suspended on the
basis of having disrupted school activities or otherwise willfully defied the valid authority of supervisors, teachers,
administrators, school officials, or other school personnel engaged in the performance of their duties, and those acts shall
not constitute grounds for a pupil enrolled in a charter school in kindergarten or any of grades 1 to 12, inclusive, to be
recommended for expulsion.

(b} A pupil enrolled in a charter school in any of grades & to 8, inclusive, shall not be suspended on the basis of having
disrupted school activities or otherwise willfully defied the valid authority of supervisors, teachers, administrators, school
officials, or other school personnel engaged in the performance of their duties. This subdivision is inoperative on July 1,
2025.

School Safety Plan/EC 32282 Compliance:

a) The comprehensive school safety plan shall include, but not be limited to, both of the following:

{1} Assessing the current status of school crime committed on school campuses and at school-related functions.

{2} Identifying appropriate strategies and programs that will provide or maintain a high level of school safety and

address the school's procedures for complying with existing laws related to school safety, which shall include the

development of all of the following:

(A) Child abuse reporting procedures consistent with Article 2.5 (commencing with Section 11164) of Chapter 2 of
Title 1 of Part 4 of the Penal Code .

(B) Disaster procedures, routine and emergency, including adaptations for pupils with disabilities in accordance with
the federal Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 { 42 U.S.C. Sec. 12101 et seq. }. The disaster procedures shall
also include, but not be limited to, both of the following:

() Establishing an earthquake emergency procedure system in every public school building having an occupant capacity

of 50 or more pupils or more than one classroom. The system shall include, but not be limited to, all of the following:

(1) A school building disaster pian, ready for implementation at any time, for maintaining the safety and care of

pupils and staff.

() A drop procedure whereby each pupil and staff member takes cover under a table or desk, dropping to his or her
knees, with the head protected by the arms, and the back to the windows. A drop procedure practice shall be
held at least once each school quarter in elementary schools and at least once a semester in secondary schools.

(i1} Protective measures to be taken before, during, and following an earthquake.

(IV) A program to ensure that pupils and both the certificated and classified staff are aware of, and properly trained
in, the earthquake emergency procedure system.

(ii) Establishing a procedure to allow a public agency, including the American Red Cross, to use school buildings,
grounds, and equipment for mass care and welfare shelters during disasters or other emergencies affecting the
public health and welfare. The school district or county office of education shall cooperate with the public agency
in furnishing and maintaining the services as the school district or county office of education may deem necessary to
meet the needs of the community.

23



(C) Policies pursuant to subdivision {d) of Section 48915 for pupils who committed an act listed in subdivision (c)
of Section 48915 and other school-designated serious acts that would lead to suspensicn, expulsion, or
mandatory expulsion recommendations pursuant to Article 1 (commencing with Section 48900 } of Chapter
6 of Part 27 of Division 4 of Title 2.

{D} Procedures to notify teachers of dangerous pupils pursuant to Section 49079 .

{E} A discrimination and harassment policy consistent with the prohibition against discrimination contained in
Chapter 2 {commencing with Section 200 } of Part 1.

(F} The provisions of any schoolwide dress code, pursuant to Section 35183 , that prohibits pupils from wearing
"gang-related apparel,” if the school has adopted that type of a dress code. For those purposes, the
comprehensive school safety plan shall define “gang-related apparel.” The definition shall be limited to
apparel that, if worn or displayed on a school campus, reasonably could be determined to threaten the
health and safety of the school environment. A schoolwide dress code established pursuant to this section
and Section 35183 shall be enforced on the school campus and at any school-sponsored activity by the
principal of the school or the person designated by the principal. For purposes of this paragraph, “gang-
related appare!” shall not be considered a protected form of speech pursuant to Section 48950 .

(G} Procedures for safe ingress and egress of pupils, parents, and school employees to and from school.

{H) A safe and orderly environment conducive to learning at the school.

{I}) The rules and procedures on school discipline adopted pursuant to Sections 35291, 35291.5, 47605, and
47605.6.

()} Procedures for conducting tactical responses to criminal incidents, including procedures related to
individuals with guns on school campuses and at school-related functions. The procedures to prepare for active
shooters or other armed assailants shall be based on the specific needs and context of each school and community.

(b) It isthe intent of the Legislature that schools develop comprehensive school safety plans using existing
resources, including the materials and services of the partnership, pursuant to this chapter. It is also the intent of the
Legislature that schools use the handbook developed and distributed by the School/Law Enforcement Partnership
Program entitled “Safe Schools: A Planning Guide for Action” in conjunction with developing their plan for school safety.

{c} Each schoolsite council or school safety planning committee, in developing and updating a comprehensive
school safety plan, shall, where practical, consult, cooperate, and coordinate with other schoolsite councils or school
safety planning committees.

{d) The comprehensive school safety plan may be evaluated and amended, as needed, by the school safety
planning committee, but shall be evaluated at least once a year, to ensure that the comprehensive school safety plan
is properly implemented. An updated file of all safety-related plans and materials shall be readily available for
inspection by the public.

EC 215 Suicide Prevention Policy Compliance Grades 7-12:

{a}{1) The governing board or body of a local educational agency that serves pupils in grades 7 to 12, inclusive, shali,
before the beginning of the 2017-18 school year, adopt, at a regularly scheduled meeting, a policy on pupil suicide
prevention in grades 7 to 12, inclusive. The policy shall be developed in consultation with school and community
stakeholders, school-employed mental health professionals, and suicide prevention experts and shall, at a minimum,
address procedures relating to suicide prevention, intervention, and postvention.
{2} The policy shall specifically address the needs of high-risk groups, including, but not limited to, all of the following:

(A} Youth bereaved by suicide.

(B} Youth with disabilities, mental illness, or substance use disorders.

{C) Youth experiencing homelessness or in out-of-home settings, such as foster care.

{D) Lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender, or questioning youth.
(3){A) The policy shall also address any training to be provided to teachers of pupils in grades 7 to 12, inclusive, on
suicide awareness and prevention.

24



{B) Materials approved by a local educational agency for training shall include how to identify appropriate mental
health services, both at the schoolsite and within the larger community, and when and how to refer youth and their
families to those services.

{C) Materials approved for training may also include programs that can be completed through self-review of suitable
suicide prevention materials.

{4} The policy shall be written to ensure that a school employee acts only within the authorization and scope of the
employee's credential or license. Nothing in this section shall be construed as authorizing or encouraging a schoal
employee to diagnose or treat mental iliness unless the employee is specifically licensed and employed to do so.

{b) The governing board or body of a local educational agency that serves pupils in grades 7 to 12, inclusive, shall
review, at minimum every fifth year, its policy on pupil suicide prevention and, if necessary, update its policy.

(d) For purposes of this section, “local educational agency” means a county office of education, school district, state
special school, or charter school.

EC 215(2)(A) Suicide Prevention Policy Compliance Grades K-6:

{A) The governing board or body of a local educational agency that serves pupils in kindergarten and grades 1 to 6,

inclusive, shall, before the beginning of the 2020-21 school year, adopt, at a regularly scheduled meeting, a policy on

pupil suicide prevention in kindergarten and grades 1 to 6, inclusive. The policy shall be developed in consultation with

school and community stakeholders, the county mental health plan, school-employed mental health professionals, and

suicide prevention experts and shall, at a minimum, address procedures relating to suicide prevention, intervention, and

postvention.

{B) The policy for pupils in kindergarten and grades 1 to 6, inclusive, shall be age appropriate and shall be delivered and

discussed in a manner that is sensitive to the needs of young pupils.

(C) The policy for pupils in kindergarten and grades 1 to 6, inclusive, shall be written to ensure proper coordination and
consultation with the county mental health plan if a referral is made for mental health or related services on behalf of

a pupil who is a Medi-Cal beneficiary.

(3) The policy shall specifically address the needs of high-risk groups, including, but not limited to, all of the following:

(A) Youth bereaved by suicide.

(B) Youth with disabilities, mental illness, or substance use disorders.

{C) Youth experiencing homelessness or in out-of-home settings, such as foster care.

{D} Lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender, or questioning youth.

4){A) The policy shall also address any training on suicide awareness and prevention to be provided to teachers of
pupils in all of the grades served by the local educational agency.

(B} Materials approved by a local educational agency for training shall include how to identify appropriate mental
health services, both at the schoolsite and within the larger community, and when and how to refer youth and
their families to those services.

(C) Materials approved for training may also include programs that can be completed through self-review of suitable
suicide prevention materials.

(5) The policy shall be written to ensure that a school employee acts only within the authorization and scope of the
employee’s credential or license. Nothing in this section shall be construed as authorizing or encouraging a school
employee to diagnose or treat mental illness unless the employee is specifically licensed and employed to do sc.{6)

(b} The governing board or body of a local educational agency that serves pupils in kindergarten and grades 1 to 12,

inclusive, shall review, at minimum every fifth year, its policy on pupil suicide prevention and, if necessary, update its

policy. (d) For purposes of this section, “local educational agency” means a county office of education, school district,
state special school, or charter school.

EC 221.61: Title IX Website Information

{a) On or before July 1, 2017, public schools, private schools that receive federal funds and are subject to the
requirements of Title IX, school districts, county offices of education, and charter schools shall post in a prominent and
conspicuous location on their Internet Web sites all of the following:

25



{1) The name and contact informaticon of the Title IX coordinator for that public school, private school, school district,
county office of education, or charter school, which shall include the Title IX coordinator’s phone number and email
address.

(2) The rights of a pupil and the public and the responsibilities of the public school, private school, school district,
county office of education, or charter school under Title IX, which shall include, but shall not be limited to, Internet
Web links to information about those rights and responsibilities located on the Internet Web sites of the
department’s Office for Equal Opportunity and the United States Department of Education Office of Civil Rights, and
the list of rights specified in Section 221.8.

(3) A description of how to file a complaint under Title I1X, which shall include all of the following:

(A) An explanation of the statute of limitations within which a complaint must be filed after an alleged incident of
discrimination has occurred, and how a complaint may be filed beyond the statute of limitations.

(B) An explanation of how the complaint will be investigated and how the complainant may further pursue the
complaint, including, but not limited to, Internet Web links to this information on the United States Department
of Education Office for Civil Rights’ Internet Web site.

{C) An Internet Web link to the United States Department of Education Office for Civil Rights complaints form, and
the contact information for the office, which shall include the phone number and email address for the office.

Ed Code 234.6 Website Posting Compliance:

(a) For purposes of this article, "local educational agency" means a county office of education, school district, state
special school, or charter school.

(b} Commencing with the 2020-21 academic year, each local educational agency shall ensure that ail of the following
information is readily accessible in a prominent location on the local educational agency's existing internet website in
a manner that is easily accessible to parents or guardians and pupils:

{1} The local educational agency's policy on pupil suicide prevention in grades 7 to 12, inclusive, adopted pursuant to
Section 215.(2) The local educational agency’s policy on pupil suicide prevention in kindergarten and grades 1 to 6,
inclusive, adopted pursuant to Section 215, including reference to the age appropriateness of that policy.(3) The
definition of discrimination and harassment based on sex as described in Section 230. This shall include the rights set
forth in Section 221.8.{4) The Title IX information included on a local educational agency's internet website pursuant to
Section 221.61.(5) A link to the Title IX information included on the department's internet website pursuant to

Section 221.6.{6) The local educational agency's written policy on sexual harassment, as it pertains to pupils, prepared
pursuant to Section 231.5.(7) The local educational agency's policy, if it exists, on preventing and responding to hate
violence as described in Section 233.(8) The local educational agency's anti-discrimination, anti-harassment, anti-
intimidation, and anti-bullying policies as described in Section 234.1.(9) The local educational agency's anti-cyberbullying
procedures adopted pursuant to Section 234.4.(10} A section on social media bullying that includes alt of the following
references to possible forums for social media bullying:{A) Internet websites with free registration and ease of
registration.(B) Internet websites offering peer-to-peer instant messaging.{C) Internet websites offering comment
forums or sections.(D) Internet websites offering image or video posting platforms.(11) A link to statewide resources,
including community-based organizations, compiled by the department pursuant to Section 234.5.{12) Any additional

information a local educational agency deems important for preventing bullying and harassment,

26



OFFICE OF JOHN G. MENDIBURU

Kern County Superintendent of Schools
Advocates for Children...

Charter School Oversight Review
2023-24

School: REALMS

The Charter Schoo! Oversight Review will be completed annually based on compliance with the terms and
conditions of the approved charter, related agreements including the Memorandum of Understanding, and all
applicable laws. Any deficiencies will be reviewed with the Charter Schoo! administration. The annual
evaluations will be a factor upon which a renewal decision will be made at the end of the term of the charter.

There will be at least one site visit by the Oversight Review team annually to assess the Charter School’s
progress. The focus of the visit will be teaching and learning, but will include the areas listed below:

1 - General Requirements

2 — Fiscal and Business Operations

3 —Educational Program and Assessment
4 - Facilities

5 — Governance

6 —Human Resources

7 —Student Services

The Charter School Evaluation Form will be completed and presented annually to the Kern County Board of
Education at their regularly scheduled meeting in the fall semester, following the close of the prior fiscal year.



1. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

in the column to the right, indicate a finding of Y {yes), N
(no), or N/A (not applicable) to each question/statement
below.

Y | Use the space below to comment on the item
N | and/or to indicate where information used to
N/A | make the Y/N determination can be found.

A. Authorizer Requirements

1.

Has Authorizer identified its staff person whao is the contact
person for the Charter School? [EC 47604.32]

Kimberly Graham, KC50S Administrator of Federal,
State, and local support and professional learning.

Has a schedule or plan been made to visit the Charter School at
least annually? [EC 47604.32]

April 16, 2024

Has authorizer identified the individual or entity responsible for
ensuring that Charter School submits all fiscal reports required
by law? [EC 47604.33]

Griselda Aceves, KCSOS Fiscal Services

Has authorizer identified the individual or entity responsible for
monitoring the fiscal condition of the Charter School? [EC
47604.33]

Griselda Aceves, KCSOS Fiscal Services

B. Charter School Education Code Requirements

1.

Have material revisions made to the approved charter been
approved by the governing board of the Charter School and the
Kern County Board of Education?

The Charter School’s assurances include the following in their
charter petition and theose listed in £C 47605(d) and {e) stating
that the Charter School:

L
a} Shall be nonsectarian in program admission policies,

employment practices, and all other operations.

b) Shall not charge tuition.
c) Shall not discriminate against any pupil on the basis of the
_characteristics listed in *£C Section 220. B

d) Shall admit all students who reside in California who wish to

attend (up to the Charter School’s capacity based upon

space, staff, or Charter School policy). B

Shall determine by public random drawing, which students,

other than those already enrolled, will be allowed to enroll

if the number of pupils who wish to attend the Charter

School exceeds the Charter School's capacity and make

reasonable efforts to accommodate the growth of the

Charter School.

f) Shall comply with £C 47605(e} in regard to the
establishment of preferences for enrollment which shail not
result in [imiting enrollment access for pupils with:
disabilities, academically low-achieving pupils, English
learners, neglected or delinguent pupils, homeless pupils, or
pupils who are economically disadvantaged or pupils based
on nationality, race, ethnicity, or sexual orientation.

g) Shall notify the school district of residence of the pupil’s last
known address within 30 days if a pupil is expelled or leaves
the Charter School without graduating or completing the
school year for any reason.

e

e & o

Charter petition and verbal assurance.
| Charter petition and verbal assurance.

-

Y _| Charter petition and verbal assurance.

Y
r Charter petition and verbal assurance.

Y
Charter petition and verbal assurance.

Y
| Charter petition and verbal assurance,

Y

Charter petition and verbal assurance.




1. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

In the column to the right, indicate a finding of Y {yes), N
(no), or N/A {not applicable) to each question/statement
below.

Use the space below to comment on the item
and/or to indicate where information used to
muake the Y/N determination can be found.

C. Memorandum of Understanding

1. Has the Charter School complied with the terms of the current
Memorandum of Understanding?

See [tem IC-1 Comment below.

2. Does charter school administration understand the content and
purpose of the Memorandum of Understanding?

Charter petition and verbal assurance.

D. Board Policy Updates

1. Has the Charter School hoard documented that it annually
reviews the charter’s compliance with £EC 49431.2(d) which
prohibits the advertisement of food or beverages as incentives
to students during the school day?

Board meeting minutes reflect review of Wellness
Policy.

2. Has the Charter School updated its enrollment board policy
and/or charter petition language to include the characteristic of
immigration status of students or their families in regard to
discrimination and the prohibition from the collecting
information or documents regarding such status? (FC 200, 220,
234.1,234.7)

Board Policy provided.

3. Does the charter’s policy for receiving and investigating
complaints of discrimination, harassment, intimidation and
bullying based on any of the actual or perceived characteristics
set forth in *Section 422.55 of the Penal Code, include a
requirement that, if school personnel witness such an act, they
shall take immediate steps to intervene when safe to do so? {EC
234.1{b})}

Staff Handhook provided and reviewed.

4. Has the Charter School updated its policies and practices
regarding not collecting or soliciting Social Security numbers or
the last 4 digits thereof from pupils or their parents/guardian
unless required to do so by state/federal law? (EC 49076.7)

Board Policy provided and reviewed.

5. If the charter serves high school students, has it revised its policy

on the transferability of coursework for pupils in foster care, are
homeless, are participating in a “newcomer program”, a child of
a military family, or a migrant student to accept full or partial
credit for all full or partial coursework satisfactorily completed
while attending another public school per £C 51225.2?

N/A

6. [f the charter serves high school students, did it revise its
graduation policy for 3™ or 4™ year pupils who are not on tract
to graduate to exempt them from coursework not included in
the state’s required coursework for graduation requirements
per EC 512257

N/A

E. Items Specific to the Charter Petition and MOU

Comments:

Item 1C-1: The MOU includes the requirement that the charter provide a continuum of professional development sufficient to
support the charter’s instructional initiatives. Site visits and documentation indicate that a limited amount of PD was
provided in 2023-24 and that it was primarily through workshops. Also, the charter continues to struggle with
providing a compliant, Designated ELD time in most classrooms.

Review conducted by: Cathie Morris, KCS0S Charter Consultant




2. FISCAL AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS

* Adherence to geographic restrictions: EC 51747.3(b)

¢ Supervision of and assignment of credit by credentialed
teachers to claim apportionment credit: £C 51747.5(a)
Credit awarded for ADA based only upon work products: £C
51747.5(b)

in the column to the right, indicate a finding of Y (yes), N Y | Use the space below to comment on the item

(no), or N/A {not applicable} to each question/statement N | and/or to indicate where information used to

below. N/A | make the Y/N determination can be found.

A. Student Attendance

1. Is there a satisfactory attendance accounting system used? Y Charter uses Aeries Software.

2. Is the staff person primarily responsible for attendance reporting Y
adequately trained? Evidence of Aeries training for staff provided.

3. Is there an approved Charter School calendar that includes a Y
minimum of 175 instructional days? school calendar provided and reviewed.

4. s there an approved class (bell) schedule? Y Bell Schedule provided and reviewed.

5. Is there a process to monitor compliance with the minimum Documentation included a description of the bell
instructional minute requirements as defined by Title 5, Section Y schedule and instructional calendar with board
115637 approval and auditing.

6. Is attendance taken daily by an individual responsible for taking Y Documentation provided. Teachers take attendance
attendance? and office staff verifies absences.

7. Are absences excluded from the apportionment days? Y Audit was verified.

8. Has the charter maintained an average TK class enrollment of v
not more than 24 pupils, and a 1-12 pupil ratio? {EC 48000(g)} | Staff roster and enrollment report reviewed.

9. Has Average Daily Attendance only been claimed for teachers
who hold an appropriate certificate, permit or other document Y
issued by CTC, consistent with £C 47605(1)? ADA corrected submission provided and reviewed.

Student Attendance — Independent Study

10. Are records maintained for audit as well as the total y
independent study ADA? 0 Audit records provided and reviewed.
11. Does the Charter School meet the requirement related to the
ratio of ADA to FTE certificated employees as prescribed under
5CCR 11704 as evidenced by support documentation and
calculations?
e 25:1, or; Y
# The ratio of pupils to FTE certificated employees for all other
educational programs operated by the largest unified school
district, as measured by ADA, as reported at the 2" principal
apportionment in the prior year, in the county or counties in
which the Charter School operates? Teacher-student ratios provided and reviewed.
12. Does the Charter School have board-approved, written policies
related to independent Study that reflect compliance with EC y
51747 and 51749.5? {apportionment, course of study and
evaluation) o || |5 Agreement provided and reviewed. ]
E3. Does the Charter School have records that demonstrate
adherence to polices related to £C 51745-51749.3 and Title 5,
11700-11705 in regard to claiming apportionment?
» Placement of SWDs into independent study: EC 51745( ¢}
» Ratio of ADA for independent study to FTE staff: £C 51745.6
s Apportionment claims and gifts of value: £C 51747.3(a} N/A

| Nolong-term IS provided.




2. FISCAL AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS

In the column to the right, indicate a finding of Y {yes), N Y | Usethe space below to comment on the item
{no), or N/A (not applicable) to each question/statement N | and/or to indicate where information used to
below. | N/A | make the Y/N determination can be found.
14. Does the Charter School have documentation that is has
completed the “determination of funding” process pursuant to N/A
EC47634.2 and Title 5, 11963.2-11963.7?
B. Cash Receipts
1. Arethere approved policies addressing cash receipts? Y Receipt booklet provided and reviewed.
2. Are there receipts issued for all menies received? Y | Fiscal policy and verbal assurance.
3. Is an audit trail maintained to assure deposit of all monies? Y | Evidence provided.
[4. Is cash stored in a secure place prior to deposit? Y | Fiscal policy cash storage procedures provided.
5. Are deposits made in a timely manner? Y Record of deposits provided.
6. Isthere a segregation of duties for the receipt of monies, the Y
deposit of monies, and the reconciliation of bank statements? Segregation of duties policy.
7. Are there adequate records maintained for audit? Y Audit records provided and reviewed.
C. Dishursements
| 1. Are there approved policies addressing disbursements? Y | Fiscal policies provided and reviewed.
2. Do disbursements require:
@) An original invoice from the vendor? Y | Fiscal policies provided and reviewed.
| bl Areceiving document? Y | Fiscal policies provided and reviewed.
c) Appropriate approval of the purchase? Y | Fiscal policies provided and reviewed.
| 3. Are checks signed by authorized employees? Y Fiscal policies provided and reviewed.
4. Isthere a system to maintain vendor payment information for y
| preparation of 1099s? | | Fiscal policies provided and reviewed. |
| 5. Is there a segregation of duties between purchasing, receiving, v
and accounts payable? B Fiscal policies provided and reviewed.
6. Are disbursements approved/ratified by Board? Y  Fiscal policies provided and reviewed,
' y Audit records and board meeting minutes provided
7. Are there adequate records maintained for audit? and reviewed.
D. Payroll
1. Does the Charter School have a Board-approved Salary Schedule y
or other satisfactory salary structure? Salary Schedule provided.
| 2. Are tax deposits completed in a timely manner? Y | Tax deposits managed through Quickbooks.
3. Areearnings properly recorded for retirement reporting to Social Y
Security, PERS, STRS? | Quarterly tax deposit records provided.
4, [sthere a system to provide STRS data to the county y
superintendent? - STRS data provided to KCSOS.
5. Is there a satisfactory system to maintain employee earning Y
| _records for preparation of W-2s? | QB Desktop screenshot provided as evidence.
6. Isthere appropriate segregation of duties between the
maintenance of employee data, salary schedules, and payroll Y
payments? - Evidence of segregation of duties provided.
Y

7. Are there adequate records maintained for audit?

Audit records provide and reviewed.




2. FISCAL AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS

| 5. Arerecords maintained for audit?

In the column to the right, indicate o finding of Y {yes), N Y | Use the space below to comment on the item
{no), or N/A {not applicable) to each question/statement N | and/or to indicate where information used to
below. N/A | moke the Y/N determination can be found.
E. Budget, Accounting, and Financial Reporting
1. Are there board approved policies addressing budget, y
accounting and financial reporting? i Fiscal policies provided. B
| 2. Has the budget been approved by the Board? Y Board meeting minutes provided and reviewed. .
3. Isthere a process to review and revise the budget for changes in v Evidence provided that changes in ADA are reflected
_student enrollment and operations? - in budget revisions and are monitored.
| 4. Are budget revisions approved/ratified by the Board? Y | Board meeting minutes provided and reviewed.
| 5. Are financial obligations provided for in the budget? Y | Budgets reviewed.
6. Are separate accounts maintained for restricted revenues and Y Chart of Accounts, Quickbook and Excel reports
| expenditures? provided and reviewed.
7. Arefinancial reports prepared and reviewed by the Board on a
. Y . .
regular basis? - - Monthly board meeting minutes.
8. Are mandated financial reports provided to the county Y
Superintendent of schools in a timely manner? (£C 47604.33) KCSOs financial records. ]
On or before July 1%, the preliminary budget.
On or before December 15%, the interim financial report.
On or before March 15", the second interim financial report. Y
On or before September 15", the final unaudited report for
| The full prior year. KCSOS financial records provided and reviewed.
9. Are cash flow projections prepared, updated and provided to the
county on a regular basis to assure there are sufficient funds that N
are available to meet the financial obligations of the charter
school? See Item 2E-9 Comment below.
0. Does the charter school’s budget align with the school’s LCAP Y
and LCAP Addendum/LEA Plan? LCAP reviewed. ]
1. Did the Charter's LCAP indicate that the Charter’s proportionality
obligation was fully met through its listed actions/services for its N
unduplicated pupils? If not, did it report the unused portion and
planned uses of those funds in its LCAP? (EC 42238.07) See ltem 2E-11 Comment below.
12. is there a business accounting/information system that complies y
with State accounting and reporting requirements? REALMS utilizes the Quickbooks System.
F. Audit
1. Which state-approved audit firm has been selected? Clifton, Larsen, Allen LLC L
| 2. Has an audit schedule/timeline been developed? | __:_StatinentiWoipriide@y CLALLC. |
3. Has a copy of the prior year audit been provided to the county v
Superintendent? - Audit reports provided and reviewed.
4. If needed, has a corrective action plan been developed? N/A |
Y Evidence provided.




2. FISCAL AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS

In the column to the n'éht, indicate a finding of Y_{ye_s), N Y | Usethe space below to comment on the item
{noj, or N/A (not applicable) to each question/statement N | and/or to indicate where information used to
below. N/A | make the Y/N determination can be found.
G. Financial Condition
1. Is a prudent level of reserves maintained for ecocnomic y Review of reserve balance indicated prudent level of
uncertainties? reserves is maintained.
| 2. Are multi-year financial projections prepared? I Y_ | Evidence provided and reviewed.
4. Arethe projections and assumptions reasonable? N Y Fiscal records provided and reviewed.
5. Have all long-term debt obligations been included? h N/A | No current long-term debt obligations.
6. Based on the projections, will the Charter School be able to
meet its financial obligations and maintain a prudent level of Y
reserves in the current and two subsequent fiscal years? Evidence provided.
H. Equipment Inventory
1. Arethere approved policies addressing the purchase and y
maintenance of equipment? ] Fiscal policies provided and reviewed. -
2. Is an equipment inventory: - oy
3) Maintained? | Y | Equipment inventory provided.
b) Physically located on each site? Y Asset Inventory provided.
| 3. Is equipment purchased with federal funds properly identified? Y Spreadsheet of purchases provided.
4. Are records maintained for audit purposes? Y | Audit provided and reviewed.
l. Expanded Learning Opportunities Program
1. Ifthe charter received funds pursuant to the ELOP {EC 46120Q),
did it offer to all unduplicated pupils in classroom-based
instructional programs in K-6 and provide access to any pupil Y
whose parent or guardian requests access to expanded learning
opportunity programs in accordance with program ELOP Plan and student sign-up sheets provided as
requirements? {EC 46120{a)(2}} evidence.
J. Items Specific to the Charter Petition and MOU N/A

Comments:

ltern 2E-9:

KCSQS Fiscal Services requested monthly reports, but they have not been forthcoming., KCSOS will be directly

overseeing and monitoring the REALMS fiscal program in 2024-25.

Item 2E-11: REALMS had a carry-over in LCFF funds of about $106,000.

Review conducted by: Griselda Aceves, KCSOS District Fiscal Analyst




3. EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM AND ASSESSMENT

| In the column to the right, indicate a finding;f Y (yes), N
(no)}, or N/A {not applicable) to each question/statement
below.

A. Educational Program

1. Is the Charter School following its curricular and instructional
plan as presented in the approved Charter petition?

2. Is the Charter School staffing sufficient to carry out the
educational program and consistent with the terms of the
charter petition?

3. Are parents of high school students informed about the
transferability of courses to other public high schools and the

| eligibility of courses to meet college entrance requirements?

4. Is the Charter School implementing a framewaork for instructional
design that is aligned with the needs of the students identified as
the target population in the approved charter petition?

. Has the Charter School obtained WASC accreditation as outlined

in the petition, if applicable?

v

6. Has the charter’s Course of Study been revised to include:
a. Social Science instruction related to the contributions of
people of all genders, Latino, LGBTQ, regardless of religious
and socioeconomic status EC 51204.5
b. Grades 1-6: the inclusion of instruction in cursive writing in
the appropriate grade levels? £C 51210(a)(1).

Services to Special Populations

1. Has the Charter School adopted policies and practices that
reflect compliance with all laws related to the provision of
Special Education including:

| a) Appropriate placement for students who are enrolling with IEPs?
b} Referral and assessment of students suspected of requiring
special education and related services?

c) Compliance with the timelines related to special education?

2. Are students who are identified as heing eligible for Special
Education recelving services required by their IEPS?

3. Does the Charter School provide for the inclusion of all of the
| __required members to participate in |[EP team meetings?

4. Does the Charter School have a plan for the provision of
transportation of Special Education students who require this
| related service?

5. Does the Charter School have a process for determining a

student’s eligibility for services under Section 504?
6. Does the Charter School develop and implement
accommodation plans for any students who are 504 eligible?

7. Does the Charter School ensure that Special Education funds are |

not used to serve students identified under Section 504?

8. Does the Charter School follow a process for identification and
reclassification of students who are English Learners?

Y Use_the_space below to comment on the item
N | and/or to indicate where information used to
N/A | make the Y/N determination can be found.
| Sample class schedule and site visits documented.
N
See Item 3A-2 Comment below,
N/A
TK-6 school. B - ‘
N
| Seeltem 3A-4 Comment below. ‘
N/A TK-6 school.
N
See Item 3A-6 Comment below.
y SIRAS data, sample |EPs and other documents
provided and reviewed.
v Sample Consent for Assessment (signed and
unsigned) and SIRAS data provided and reviewed.
v CALPADS report, cross-referenced to current SIRAS
data indicate, all IEPs are current.
Y . .
| Reviewed sample |EP Service Log and SIRAS data.
Y SIRAS data and sample |EP Meeting Participation page
| provided and reviewed. |
N
See ltem 3B-4 Comment below. - ‘
Y . .
| Reviewed charter 504 Process policy. .
Y .
Reviewed sample 504 Plan. .
Y Charter CBO confirmed SPED funds are never used for
students with 504 plans. - |
Reviewed charter Initial ELPAC Score Letter and
Y Parent Reclassification Notification Letter in Google
Drive.



3. EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM AND ASESSMENT

consistent with EC 47605(h)(5)(C) and the terms of the charter?

In the column to the right, indicate a finding of Y (yes), N Y | Use the space below to comment on the item
{no}, or N/A (not applicabie} to each question/statement N | and/or to indicate where information used to
below. N/A | make the Y/N determination can be found.
C. Curricular Materials
1. Is the Charter School utilizing standards-aligned instructional The Instructional Materials survey demonstrates a
. Y
materials? program adopted by the SBE.
English Language Alignment Guide shows the scope
v and sequence of the language development skills
2. Is the Charter School utilizing instructional materials that address being addressed and lessons for each proficiency
the specific needs of English Learners? level.
REALMS uses iReady for all students. The Learning
v Without Tears kit was recently purchased for a SWD.
3. Is the Charter School utilizing instructional materials that address Reviewed several student accommodation pages in
the specific needs of Special Education students? SIRAS that notes instructional accommaodations.
4. [f the Charter School requires a course in health education for
graduation from high school, does that course include instruction N/A
in performing compression-only cardiopulmonary resuscitation?
(EC 51225.6) TK-6 Schoaol.
D. Professional Development
1. Has Charter School staff received legally required trainings? N | see item 3D-1 Comiment below.
2. Has the charter communicated to or trained school personnel in
the Item ID-3 requirement to take immediate steps to intervene
when safe to do so, if they witness an act of actual or perceived y
discrimination, harassment, intimidation and bullying of others
with characteristics set forth in *Section 422.55 of the Penal
Code? {EC 234.1({b}} Included in the on-line Vector training.
3. Is Charter School staff provided opportunities for professional
development necessary to carry out the instructional program as N
outlined in the petition? See ttem 3D-3 Comment below.
E. Assessment
1. Is the Charter School administering the state mandated testing
according to testing rules and regulations as required for all K-12 Y
schools in California? - | Testing schedule provided and reviewed.
2. Does a review of SBAC and Dashboard Data indicate that the
Charter School is on target for meeting renewal requirements as N
set forth in £C 47607{b} and the charter petition? See [tem 3E-2 Comment below.
3. Has the Charter School completed and posted a SARC containing Y
| required elements by Feb 1, 2024? - | Compliant SARC posted on website. B
4. Is student achievement data regularly reported to parents and Y Parent conferences held 3 times a year. Also, the
staff? o || charter phones, holds S5Ts, and private conferences. _|
5. Have parent/guardian notifications of language proficiency
(ELPAC} assessment been provided as required by £C, and if so, do y
they include whether a child is a long-term English learner or is at- Annual Parent notification samples were provided
risk of becoming one? {(*£C 313.2(a) and reviewed.
6. Is the Charter School utilizing formative assessment data to
maonitor and improve the Charter Schoal’s educational program N

| See ltem 3E-6 Comment below.




3. EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM AND ASESSMENT

In the column to the right, indicate a finding of ¥ (yes), N Y | Use the space below ta comment on the item
fno), or N/A (not applicable) to each question/statement N | and/or to indicate where information used to

below.

N/A | make the Y/N determination can be found.

F. Items Specific to the Charter Petition and MOU

1. Is the charter school serving grade levels consistent with the

content of the charter and MOU? The charter serves grades TK-6.
2. Has the charter school made the “enrollment database” required

in the MOU available to the County Superintendent upon Y

request? Enrollment database made available and reviewed.
Comments:
ttem 3A-2: The teacher roster for 2023-24 indicates that there was not a designated teacher for Project Lead the Way (PLTW), one

ltem 3A-4;

ltem 3A-6:

ltem 3B-4:

ltem 3D-1:

Item 30D-3:

Item 3E-2:

of the petition’s signature programs {STEM). The charter has been struggling to provide a consistent, trained, PLTW
instructor and PLTW requires that an instructor for its program be certified. REALMS is restructuring how PLTW is being
done far 2024-25. |n addition, classroom teachers provided the Spanish instruction, and the quality of which varies
from classroom to classroom. Although the charter used the Rosetta Stone Software for Spanish, the program does not
include writing and reading in Spanish and the teachers had to supplement the curriculum to the best of their ability.
The Petition states that students will listen, speak, read, and write in Spanish. The charter has purchased a new Spanish
curriculum for 2024-25 that will address all compaonents of the Spanish program in the petition.

The Petition states that REALMS will serve students who need additional academic support. Although the
charter is implementing the SIPPS literacy and iReady Programs for intervention, the charter does not have

a defined tiered system of support that includes differentiated classroom instruction based upon classroom-level
formative assessment data that informs instruction (re-teaching or regrouping students based on knowledge
attainment).

The charter did not modify its Course of Study to include these new requirements, but will do so for 2024-25.

A contingency plan for transportation of a student whaose IEP requires it has been an issue for REALMS for a few years.

Charter leadership explored options and developed a parent reimbursement policy. However, this plan does not meet
the special education requirement that the charter provide specialized transportation of a student with disabilities with
an IEP that requires transportation. The charter will continue to seek a MOU agreement for transportation with SSUSD.

The evidence provided did not indicate that all staff received the legally-required trainings.

Charter staff received PD in Thinking Maps for writing and evidence indicated that Friday early release time was often
used to provide teachers with curriculum/instruction information on a variety of topics. This is an improvement over
the PD provided in the past few years. However, there was little evidence that the PD provided was followed-up with in-
class teacher support and guidance. The charter needs to create a plan for professional learning, based upon the needs
of its students that includes a continuum of learning such as workshops and then follow-up monitoring and in-class
coaching and support. This has been a KCSOS recommendation for several years.

The charter has been identified by the CDE as a low-tier charter in 2023-24. This identification is based upon the
charter’s performance, particularly for its subgroups, on the 2022-23 Dashboard. A low-tier charter, based in Ed Code, is
a presumptive non-renewal.

10




3. EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM AND ASESSMENT

Comments: {Cont.)

Item 3E-6: The charter collects and reviews student assessment data, such as SIPPS and iReady during staff meetings. In 2024-25
the charter will access the KIDS system for data. However, there is little evidence that teachers provide differentiated
instruction in the classroom based on data, and there is little evidence that teachers use classroom-based formative
assessments for instructional purposes.

Review Conducted by: Lisa Vargas, KCSOS Director Il Humanities and Multilingual Education and Professional Learning

11




4. FACILITIES AND OPERATIONS

In the column to the right, indicate a finding of Y (yes), N
{no), or N/A (not applicable) to each question/statement
below,

Y
N

N/A |

Use the spac_e below to comment on the item
and/or to indicate where information used to
make the Y/N determination can be found.

A. Facility Adequacy and Compliance

L

5 there a designated staff person responsible for overseeing
facilities maintenance and operations? If yes, who?

Melody Rodriguez and Tony O’Bannon, Custodians

2.

Is there a custodial schedule that reflects appropriate and
timely attention to providing students with a clean and safe
learning environmeant?

Custedian restroom cleaning schedule provided. The
charter contracts with a cleaning service for the
classrooms.

Do all facilities in which the Charter School is housed meet the
American with Disabilities Act requirements?

Annual Fire and Safety Certification provided.

Has the Charter School identified all single-user toilet facilities
as all gender facilities? (Article 5, Health & Safety Code)

Restrooms identified.

Is there a process for providing routine inspection and
maintenance to ensure that Charter School facilities including
playgrounds remain in good condition?

Have the Charter School’s facilities been modified during the
past year?

Are the Charter School’s facilities adequate for the number of
students and types of programs assigned to each site?

The 2024 FIT Report was provided.

0.

Does the Charter School have on file: 1) Certificate of
Occupancy; 2} Conditional Use Permit for each site; and/or 3)
Safety Inspections by local Fire Department?

Does the Charter Schoof have plans to modernize and/or add
facilities to the existing site?

Does the Charter School plan to add a new site? If so, has
proper notification been made to the approving agency?

N/A

N/A

| The charter has a number of vacant classrooms.

Documentation provided.

1.

If the Charter School participates in an interscholastic athletic
program, does it have a written emergency action plan and at
least one AED for the school? (EC 35179/4. 35179.6)

N/A

n2.

If the Charter Schoal has been made aware of a lactating pupil,
has it made accommodations other than a restroom and
provided a place to safety store expressed milk?

3.

If the Charter School serves any grades 6-12, and it meets the
40% pupil poverty rate, does it provide feminine hygiene
products, including tampons and sanitary napkins, in a least
50% of the school’s restrooms? (EC 35292.6)

N/A

Y

Photos of dispenser provided.

14.

If the Charter School contracts out its transportation services,
and has made a finding of gross negligence or disciplinary
action against the driver of a school bus, has it notified the
Dept. of Motor Vehicles within 5 calendar days? (EC 39843,
39831.3)

N/A

B. Items Specific to the Charter Petition and MOU

i N/A

Comments: N/A

12

Review Conducted by: Cathie Morris, KCSOS Charter School Consultant



5. GOVERNANCE

In the column to the right, indicate a finding of ¥ (yes), N Y | Use the space below to comment on the item
{no), or N/A (not applicable] to each question/statement N | and/or to indicate where information used to
below. N/A | make the Y/N determination can be found.
A. Organizational Management
1. If the Charter School is constituted as a non-profit corporation,
are the corporate papers, including Articles of Incorporation Y
availabie to the authorizer? |_Articles of Incorporation provided and reviewed. N
2. Is there a list or roster of governing board members? Y | Roster and affiliations provided and reviewed. |
3. Does the Charter School governance structure include the
process to be followed by the school to ensure parental y
involvement consistent with £€ 47605(b)(5)(D) and the terms of There are three parents on the charter board, there is
the charter petition and the MOU? - a PTQ, and 55C. |
4. Is the Board free of real or perceived conflicts of interest? Y | Form 700s provided and reviewed.
5. s the composition of the Board consistent with the approved y
Charter? Three of the five board members are parents.
B. Meetings
1. Does the Board conduct public meetings at such intervals as are
necessary to ensure that the Board is addressing business Y
required to provide sufficient direction to the Charter School? Board meeting schedute provided and reviewed.
2. Does the Board comply with the following:
a} Regularly scheduled meetings, as outlined in the petition, y Sample agenda provided. Website has meeting
| with required agenda postings per £C 54954.2(a)/549567 agendas posted.
b} Brown Act training and meeting compliance? Y Evidence of training provided.
c) Twice the time limit, if one is used, for public comment for v
non-English speakers? (Govt. Code 54954.3) Board meeting agenda provided and reviewed.
d) Availability of meeting minutes and adherence to the public
records act that includes the posting of public records on its v
website and providing paper copies to the public without
access to them electronically? {Govt. Code 6253) | Evidence provided and reviewed.
3. Does the Board have resolutions and Board—adopted policies
that address the following: o .
a) Conflict of interest {(*SB 126 compliant?) Y l| Policy provided and reviewed. _‘
b} Handbooks- Parent, Student, Employee (*AB 1505/SB 75 y
s compliant?) Handhooks provided and reviewed. -
c) Student & Employee discipline and due process (*SB 419 Y w
| compliant?) Handbooks provided and reviewed.
d) Parent complaint resolution and due process Y Handbaok provided and reviewed.
e) Internal controls policies and related forms and systems Y Fiscal Policy Manual and sample forms.
f) Bank signature authorizations, etc. Y | Fiscal Policy Manual.
g} Harassment- student, staff Y | Handbooks provided and reviewed. |
h) Safety Plan Y | safety Plan provided and reviewed. |
v Sample immunization record provided and verbal
i) Immunization records assurance that that they are safely maintained. |
i) Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) — policy v |

and notices

Policy and Handbooks provided.

i3



5. GOVERNANCE

In the column to the right, indicate a finding of Y (yes), N
{no}, or N/A (not applicable) to each question/statement
below.

Y
N
N/A

Use the space below to comment on the item

and/or to indicate where information used to
make the Y/N determination can be found,

4. Have any changes made by the Board to bylaws or any
document required by the Charter/MOU been communicated to
the County Superintendent?

N/A

C. Parent/Staff Involvement

1. Is there a process in place that ensures that parents, teachers,
and staff may provide input regarding the effectiveness of the
Charter School?

S5C and board composition provided with minutes
from meetings.

2. Do board-meeting minutes reflect that the Charter Board held a
public hearing pricr to approving its LCAP? (SB 75)

Board meeting minutes provided and reviewed.

3. Is there evidence that the charter presented a report on the
annual LCAP update and its LCFF budget overview for parents on
or before February 28 at a regularly scheduled board meeting? If
so, did that report include midyear outcome data related to the
metrics of the current year’s LCAP, and all available midyear
expenditure and implementation data on all actions identified in
that LCAP? EC 47606.5{e){1) and (2).

Board meeting agenda and minutes provided as
evidence.

D. LCAP/LEA Plans and Categorical Funds

1. Does the Charter School have a current LEA (Local Educational
Agency) Plan that has been presented to, reviewed and
approved by the Charter School’s governing board?

LCAP provided and reviewed.

2. Isthe charter's LCAP prominently posted on the charter's
website, including updates, revisions, addenda, including those
to comply with federal law? {EC 47606.5{h}}

Website reviewed.

3. Arethe Title | funds/categorical funding being used to
supplement the charter’s LCAP goals?

Review of 2023-24 LCAP indicates alignment.

E. Items specific to the Charter Petition and MOU

1. Does the charter board understand that each charter school
operating under its oversight is an individual school under
The jurisdiction of the Board?

N/A

Comments: NfA

Review conducted by: Mary Westendorf, KCSOS District Advisory.

14



6. HUMAN RESOURCES

In the column to the right, indicate a finding of Y (yes), N Y | Use the space below ta comment on the item
(no}, or N/A (not applicable) to each question/statement N | and/or to indicate where information used to
below. N/A | make the Y/N determination can be found.
A. All Employees
1. Does the Charter School have fingerprint clearance, including
Department of justice background checks, on all employees? [EC Y
44237| “Criminal record summary” - I | Fingerprint clearance records provided and reviewed.
2. Does the Charter School have documentation that TB test results N ‘
| are current for all employees? ] | See Item 6A-2 Comments below.
3. Does the Charter School have record of the AB-1432 Child Abuse [
Neglect and Reporting Act Training required annually within the N ‘
first & weeks of the school year or within & weeks of each
person’s employment? See ltem 6A-3 Comments below.
4. Does the Charter School have approved personnel policies and
practices that are consistent with the petition, MOU, and all Y
applicable laws? - | Evidence provided and reviewed in Staff Handbook.
5. If the Charter School employs 50+ employees, does it provide
mandatory anti-harassment training for supervisors that includes y
harassment based on gender identify, expression and sexual
orientation? (Govt. Code 12950) - Evidenice of training provided.
6. If the Charter School employs 20+ employees, does it provide up *
to 12 weeks of job-protected, unpaid parental leave? [Govt. Y
Code 12945.6(a)] Referenced in Employee Handbook.
7. If the Charter School employs 25+ employees, does it provide ‘
protacted leave and sick leave as it pertains to child care and Y
[ "kin care” laws? (Labor Code 230.8) Referenced in Employee Handbook.
8. Does the Charter School have a DFEH-created poster regarding
transgender rights posted in a prominent and accessible Y
location? (Govt. Code 12950) Located in the staff breakroom.
B. Certificated Employees
1. Does the Charter School employ sufficient teaching staff to Y Staffing has been an issue for REALMS. ltis revising
satisfy the terms of the petition and the MOU? | | how some classes are being taught in 2024-25.
2. Do teachers providing instruction in core classes have the
required credentials and certifications to meet state and federal Y
requirements, terms of the petition, and the MOU? Teacher roster and credentialing reviewed.
3. Do teachers who are providing Special Education and Related y
Services have the appropriate credentials and certifications? Teacher credentialing reviewed.
C. Classified Employees
1. Do classified employees who are providing instructional support
in the core content areas, Special Education, and English v All classified employees in these types of settings
Language Learner Services meet state and federal requirements, have a high school diploma and 48 units of college
and terms of the petition/MOU? - coursework. i
2. Doesthe Charter School provide adequate staffing for: b
a) Custodial Y | Staff roster provided and reviewed. _
b} Food Service - Y Staff roster provided and reviewed. 1
| ¢} Information Technology Y Staff roster provided and reviewed. |
d) Lunch/Break Supervision Y Staff roster provided and reviewed.
e) Clerical/Record Keeping Y | Staff roster provided and reviewed.

15



6. HUMAN RESOURCES

In the column to the right, indicate a ﬁmﬁng of ¥ (yes), N T ¥ [usethe space below to comment on the item
{no}, or N/A (not applicable) to each question/statement N | and/or to indicate where information used to
below. N/A | make the Y/N determination can be found.
D. Items specific to the Charter Petition and MOU
1. Has the Charter School provided a written list of all of its v

employees for the current school year pursuant to the MOU? Staff roster provided.
Comments:

Item 6A-2: Four staff members did not have TB clearance records.

ltem 6A-3: Ten staff members did not have Child Abuse/Neglect Training Certificates.

Review conducted by: Evelyn Feliciano, KCSOS Credentials Manager

16



7. STUDENT SERVICES

In the column to the right, indicate a finding of Y {yes), N {no),
or N/A (not applicable} to each guestion/statement beiow.

Use the space below to comment on the item
and/or to indicate where information used to
make the Y/N determination can be found.

A. Admissions

1. Is the Charter School complying with the admissions practices
described in the approved charter?

2. Does the Charter School facilitate admissions for a student with

| anIEP in the same manner as for a student without an IEP?

3. Does the student enrollment and mobility data reflect a program
that does not exit (return to the district) specific populations of
students in a manner that would result in a charter scheol
enroliment that is not reflective of the local school districts?

4. Do the Charter School enrollment forms indicate compliance with
all applicable laws and with the approved charter? Have they
been updated to include health care coverage options and
enrollment assistance informatien? {(EC 49452.9(a)}

5. If the Charter School has needed to use the lottery system to
determine which students will be allowed to enroll, is there
documentation that the process was held in the manner
described in the approved petition?

6. Does the Charter Schoaol have records documenting
immunizations to the extent required for enrollment in public

| schools?

7. Does the Charter School have a student population that
represents the racial and ethnic backgrounds of pupils enrolled in
the local district(s)?

8. Does the charter school have a student population in which rates
of pupils with disabilities, English learners, and pupils who are
economically disadvantaged are comparable to the local district(s)
rates?

| Enrollment policy and documents reviewed.

Enrollment policy and decuments reviewed.

Enrollment database provided and reviewed.

| Charter enrollment farms reviewed.

Immunization policy and sample records reviewed.
The 2023-24 DataQuest data indicates that REALMS
and S5USD are comparabie in regard to racial and
ethnic backgrounds of students.

The 2023-24 DataQuest data indicates that REALMS
and SSUSD are comparable in enrollment of SWD, EL
and SED students. Both are higher than the state and
county average for SWDs.

B. Discipline

1. Does the school have discipline policies and practices consistent
with the terms of the charter and £C 48900 in regard to
| suspension of K-8 and expulsion of K-12 students?

2. Do the Charter School’s suspension procedures include a
provision for a conference where the student is informed of the
reason for the action, an opportunity to present his/her version
and is informed of the other means of correction that were
attempted before the suspension? (EC48911)

3. Have the charter’s discipline practices been updated to include: a
certificated or classified employee may refer a student to school
administrators for in-schoal intervention or supports from the list

Parent/Student Handbook provided and reviewed.

Parent/Student Handbook reviewed.

of other means of correction specified in EC 48900.5(b)(1) and |
that a school administrator will, within 5 business days document |
the actions taken, if any, and place that documentation into the ‘
pupil’s record, and that the school administrator will inform the
referring staff member, verbally or in writing, what actions were
taken, and if none, the rationale for that decision? £C
48901.1(d)(1).

See Item 7B-3 Comment below.

17




7. STUDENT SERVICES

in the column to the right, indicate a finding of ¥ (yes), N {no},
or N/A {not applicable) to each question/statement below.

4. Does the charter’s suspension/expulsion policy state that a pupil
shall not be suspended/expelled based solely on the fact that they
are truant, tardy or otherwise absent from school activities?

| EC48900(w)(1)

5. Has the charter updated its suspension and expulsion procedures
to ensure that the written notice regarding pupil involuntary
transfers is in the native fanguage of the pupil’s parent or
guardian, and in the case of a homeless child or foster youth, in
the native language of the foster youth’s educational rights holder
or attorney and county social worker? {EC 47605(d)(4)}

6. Do the charter’s expulsion procedures for a student with
exceptional needs who is a foster child, include that the
educational rights holder and county social worker be invited to
the change of placement meeting? {48915.5(d)}

C. Health and Safety

1. Does the Charter School have a School Safety Plan that includes all
of the topics listed in *EC {32282(a)(2)}? EC {4?605(b)|[5){l_=}}

2. Is there evidence that the School Safety Plan was reviewed and
updated by March 1 {EC 47605(b){5)(F)} and that a public hearing

| was held before its adoption? EC 32288(b)(1)

3. Is there evidence that staff has been trained in health, safety, and
emergency procedures?

4. Does the Charter School maintain a calendar of emergency drills

__for each site in which it operates?

5. Does the charter’s Safety Plan include procedures to assess and
respond to reports of any dangerous, violent, or unlawful activity
thatis being conducted or threatened to be conducted at an

activity sponsored by the school or on a school bus serving the

| school? EC 32282(a)(2)(K) B

6. Does the charter’s Safety Plan include appropriate adaptations for
pupils with disabilities in accordance with £€ 32282(a)(2)B)?

7. After the March 1 review, or at any time, was the charter notified
by any person of any concern(s) related to the adaptations for

pupils with disabilities? If 0, is there evidence that the charter
reviewed the concerns and if found credible, modify the
adaptations, accordingly? £C 32288(a)(2)(B)

8. If the charter serves students in grades 7-12, does the school’s
Safety Plan include a protocol in the event a student is suffering or
is believed to be suffering from an Opioid overdose? £C
47605(c)(5)(C)(ii). B

9. If the charter offers an athletic program, does it: 1) annually give
the Opioid Factsheet for Parents published by the Centers for
Disease Control and Prevention to each athlete, and if the athlete is
17 years or younger, the athlete’s parent or guardian (electronically
or written copy) and 2) require that it be signed and returned to the
school before the athlete initiates practice or competition? {EC

| 49476)

18

Y | Usethe space below to comment on the item
N | and/or to indicate where information used to
N/A | make the Y/N determination can be found.
Y
Suspension/Expulsion Policy reviewed.
N
See ltem 7B-5 Comment below.
v
Parent/Student Handbook reviewed.
Y . .
Safety Plan provided and reviewed.
N
See Item 7C-2 Comment below. -
N
See Item 7C-3 Comment below.
Y . I
| Record of drills provided.
Y
| School Safety Plan provided and reviewed.
Y Parent/Student Handbook and Safety Plan
N/A
N/A
N/A




7. STUDENT SERVICES

In the column to the right, indicate a finding of Y (yes), N
{no], or N/A (not applicable} to each question/statement
below.

N/A

Use the space below to comment on the item
and/or to indicate where information used to
make the Y/N determination can be found.

10.

Do records reflect that the Charter School provides for the
screening of pupils’ vision, hearing, and required immunizations to
the same extent as would be required if the pupils attended a non-
charter public school?

11.

Has the Charter School naotified students and parents/guardians at
least twice a year regarding how to initiate access to available
student mental health services on campus or in the community?
(EC 49428)

12.

Does the charter have board-adopted Suicide Prevention Policies
for grades K-6 and 7-12 that 1) were created in conjunction with
stakeholders, 2) specifically list its high-risk groups, 3} addresses
the needs of those high-risk students and 4) were updated in the
last 5 years? (*EC 215)

13,

Did the Charter School provide each needy pupil as defined in £C
49552, with two free nutritionally-adequate meals to any pupil
who requests a meal without consideration of the pupil’s eligibility
{EC 49501.5(a){2)} with adequate time to eat each, based upon the
recommendations of the National School Lunch/Breakfast
programs? £C 49501.5(1)(A)

4.

If the Charter serves grades 7-12 and issues ID Cards to students,
did it include the telephone number of the National Suicide
Prevention Lifeline on those cards? {*EC 215.5}

15.

If the Charter School qualifies for the free federal reimbursement
rate for all meals that it provides, has it applied to provide a
universal meal service to all students at the school? If not, has it
submitted a governing board resolution to the state claiming a
fiscal hardship? If so, is there evidence that those finding are
reviewed in a public meeting every two years? {EC 49564(a)}

N/A

Immunization Policy and Parent/Student Handbook

| reviewed.

| Notifications provided on School’s website.

| Suicide Prevention Policy provided and reviewed.

| Lunch schedule provided.

The charter complies with federal Free/Reduced
Lunch program requirements.

16.

If the Charter S5chool receives federal funds, does it comply with
the posting on its website in a prominent, conspicuous location,
the Title IX information, including the name and contact
number/e-mail for the Title IX Coordinator for that school? (*EC
221.61)

Title IX Coordinator listed on school’s website.

n7.

Does the Charter’s Excused Absence Policy include an ahsence for
the benefit of the pupil’s mental or behavioral health, or for the
purpose of participating in a cultural ceremony/event? {£C 48205)

18.

Does the Charter’'s Excused Absence Policy include the purpose of
attending the funeral services or grieving the death of either a
member of the student’s immediate family or of a person that is
determined by the pupil’s parent/guardian to be in such close
association with the pupil to be considered “immediate family”

50 long as the absence is not more than 5 days per incident? EC
48205(a){4).

_| Excused Absence Policy reviewed.

See Item 7C-18 Comment below.

13,

Does the charter’s Excused Absence Policy include up to three days
for a student to access services from a victim services organization,
to access grief support services or to participate in safety planning
or to take other actions to increase student safety or that of an
immediate family member? £EC 48205(a)}{13)

19

| See item 7C-19 Comment below.




7. STUDENT SERVICES

In the column to the right, indicate a finding of Y {ves), N {no},
or N/A (not applicable) to each question/statement below.

N/A

Use the space below to comment on the item
and/or to indicate where information used to
make the Y/N determination can be found.

20.

If the charter serves middle or high school students, did it revise its
Excused Absence Policy to include an absence for the purpose of a
student engaging in a civic or political event? (EC 48205)

N/A

21.

Has the charter provided to certificated school site employees who
serve pupils in grades 7-12 information on existing resources
related to the support of LGBQT pupils who may face bias or
bullying? {EC 234.1{d}{1)}?

N/A

22.

Does the charter’s Safety Plan include procedures for the
storage and administration of emergency epinephrine auto-
injectors? EC 49414(a)

Safety Plan reviewed.

23.

If the charter serves students in grades 9-12, and allows on-campus
access to employers, does it include access to military services?
£C 49603.

| N/A

p_

Pupil and Parent Notifications

. Does the Charter School provide a notice to all parents/guardians

. Are parents provided with annual notifications as re_quired by the

. Has the charter school posted a Notice on its website that states

. Did the charter provide a copy of the Notice from Item 7D-3: 1)

. Has the charter posted on its website: 1}_the name and contact

. If the charter serves high school students, and enrolled a foster or

. f the charter serves high school students, did it provide at least

regarding their rights under the Family Educational Rights and
Privacy Act (FERPA}?

petition, the MOU, and all applicable laws? {EC 48980, £C 48985}

that charter schools are prohibited from discouraging any student |
from enrolling or encouraging students to drop, once enrolled? '
{EC 47605(e)(4)} '
When a parent or guardian inquired about enrollment, 2) Before
conducting an enroliment lottery, 3) Before disenrollment of a
pupil? {EC 47605(e}{4){D}}

information of its homeless liaison, and 2) specific information on
homelessness, including educational rights and resources available
to persons experiencing homelessness? {£C 48852.6}

homeless youth who is in their 3™ or 4" year, who is not on track to
meet the charter’s educational requirements, did it notify the pupil
and the educational rights holder, and sacial worker, if applicable,
within 30 calendar days of transfer into the school of the
exemption from the charter’s graduation requirements as
described in Item ID-5? {£C 51225.1}

once before grade 12, information on how to properly complete
and submit the FAFSA or the CA Dream Act Application that
includes information about the types of documentation and ,
personal informal that is required, an explanation of definitions |
used for each application, eligibility requirements, application
timelines/deadlines, and the importance of submitting applications
early? {EC51225.8}

20

=

N/A

N/A

Annual Notice documents provided.

| Annual Notice documents provided.

i Website reviewed.

Website and enroliment documents reviewed, as
well as verbal confirmation of providing the Notice
| upon disenrgliment.

| See Item 7D-5 Comment below.

|




7. STUDENT SERVICES

In the column to the right, indicate a finding of Y (yes), N {no),
or N/A (not applicable} to each question/statement below.

Y { Use the space below te comment on the item
N | and/or to indicate where information used to
N/A | make the Y/N determination can be found.

8. Has the charter posted its antidiscrimination policy from Item 1D-3
above in all school offices, including staff lounges and pupil Y
government meeting rooms? {EC 234.1(e}} Site observation of postings.

9. If the charter serves high school students, did it receive a petition
requesting pupil representation on its governing board? If so, did N/A
the charter add a student representative per EC 47604.2?

£l

Items specific to the Charter Petition and MOU

1. Based on review of pupil data (race, ethnicity, English learner
status, socio-economically disadvantaged {as determined by
eligibility for free/reduced-price meal program), and pupils with |
disabilities), is the Charter School serving a student pepulation
that is reflective of the general population residing within the ‘ Y
territorial jurisdiction of the school district in which it resides? If
not, is the Charter School using all reasonable means to ensure
that the school is equally accessible to enrollment and attendance
by all students within the boundaries of that district?

The charter’'s demographic enrollment reflects the
student population of the districts surrounding the
| charter’s location.

Comments:

Item 7B-3: Evidence not provided or found in regard to discipline practices described in the item.

item 7C-2: No evidence of public hearing was provided or found.

Item 7C-3: The Staff Training Roster provided in Item 3D-1 indicated that not ail staff received the legally-reguired trainings.
Item 7C-18: Evidence not found in Handbooks or Excused Absence Policy related to Item. Policy being revised for 2024-25.
Item 7C-19: Evidence not found in Handbooks or Excused Absence Policy related to Item. Policy being revised for 2024-25.

Item 7D-5: The Homeless Liaison posted on the charter’s website is not current.

Reviewed conducted by: Cathie Morris, KCSOS Charter School Consultant

21



*Education Codes/Legal Compliance Citations

Section 1: General Requirements and Section 3: Educational Program

EC Section 220:

No person shall be subjected to discrimination on the basis of disability, gender, gender identity, gender
expression, nationality, race or ethnicity, religion, sexual orientation, or any other characteristic that is
contained in the definition of hate crimes set forth in Section 422.55 of the Penal Code, including immigration
status, in any program or activity conducted by an educational institution that receives, or benefits from, state
financial assistance, or enrolls pupils who receive state student financial aid.

Penal Code 422.55:

Under Penal Code 422.55 PC, California law defines a hate crime as a criminal act committed in whole or in part because of
the victim’s actual or perceived disability, gender, nationality, race or ethnicity, religion, sexual orientation, or asscciation
with a person or group with one or mare of these actual or perceived characteristics.

Section 3: Educational Program
EC Section: 313.1/313.2:

For purposes of this article, the following terms have the following meanings:
{(a)(1} “Long-term English learner” means an English learner to which alf of the following apply:

(A) Is enrolled in any of grades 6 to 12, inclusive.

(B} Has been enrolled in schools in the United States for six years or more.

(C) Has remained at the same English language proficiency level for two or more consecutive prior years, or has
regressed to a lower English language proficiency level, as determined by the English {anguage development test
identified or developed pursuant to Section 60810, or a score determined by the Superintendent on any successor
test.

{D) For a pupil in any of grades 6 to 9, inclusive, has scored far below basic or below basic on the prior year's English
language arts standards-based achievement test administered pursuant to Section 60640, or a score determined by
the Superintendent on any successor test.

Section 5: Governance

Education Code Section 47604.1 / Senate Bill 126 Compliance:

New Education Code section 47604.1 provides that charter schools and entities managing charter schools (defined as a
nonprofit public benefit corporation that operates a charter school) are subject to the Ralph M. Brown Act (or the
Bagley-Keene Open Meeting Act). It also prescribes specific rules regarding meeting locations and meeting content.

Additionally, Education Code section 47604.1 clarifies that the California Public Records Act applies to both charter
schools and entities managing charter schools.

Finally, the new law subjects charter schoals and entities managing charter schools to both Government Code section
1090 and the Political Reform Act of 1974. This means that charter school officials may not be financially interested in
any contract made by them in their official capacity. They must also comply with all conflict prohibitions and reporting
requirements of the Political Reform Act and must adopt a conflict of interest code. Unlike employees of school districts

22



and county offices of education, a charter school employee may serve as a member of the charter school’s governing
board; however, the employee must abstain from voting on, influencing, or attempting to influence another member of
the governing board regarding any matters uniquely affecting the member's employment with the charter school.

Section 7: Student Services

EC 48901.1 and SB 419 Compliance:

Notwithstanding Section 47610 or any other law, commencing July 1, 2020, the following provisions apply to charter
schools:

{2} A pupil enrolled in a charter school in kindergarten or any of grades 1 to 5, inclusive, shall not be suspended on the
basis of having disrupted school activities or otherwise willfully defied the valid authority of supervisors, teachers,
administrators, school officials, or other school personnel engaged in the performance of their duties, and those acts shall
not constitute grounds for a pupil enrolled in a charter school in kindergarten or any of grades 1 to 12, inclusive, to be
recommended for expulsion.

{b) A pupil enrolled in a charter school in any of grades 6 to 8, inclusive, shall not be suspended on the basis of having
disrupted school activities or otherwise willfully defied the valid authority of supervisors, teachers, administrators, school
officials, or other school personnel engaged in the performance of their duties. This subdivision is inoperative on July 1,
2025,

School Safety Plan/EC 32282 Compliance:

a} The comprehensive school safety plan shall include, but not be limited to, both of the following:

(1) Assessing the current status of school crime committed on school campuses and at school-related functions.

{2} Identifying appropriate strategies and programs that will provide or maintain a high level of school safety and

address the school's procedures for complying with existing laws related to school safety, which shall include the

development of all of the following:

(A) Child abuse reporting procedures consistent with Article 2.5 (commencing with Section 11164} of Chapter 2 of
Title 1 of Part 4 of the Penal Code .

(B) Disaster procedures, routine and emergency, including adaptations for pupils with disabilities in accordance with
the federal Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 ( 42 U.S.C. Sec. 12101 et seq. }. The disaster procedures shall
also include, but not be limited to, both of the foilowing:

(i} Establishing an earthquake emergency procedure system in every public school building having an occupant capacity

of 50 or more pupils or more than one classroom. The system shall include, but not be limited to, all of the following:

{1} A school building disaster plan, ready for implementation at any time, for maintaining the safety and care of

pupils and staff.

(I} A drop procedure whereby each pupil and staff member takes cover under a table or desk, dropping to his or her
knees, with the head protected by the arms, and the back to the windows. A drop procedure practice shall be
held at least once each school quarter in elementary schools and at least once a semester in secondary schools.

(M) Protective measures to be taken before, during, and following an earthquake.

(IV) A program to ensure that pupils and both the certificated and classified staff are aware of, and properly trained
in, the earthquake emergency procedure system.

(i} Establishing a procedure to allow a public agency, including the American Red Cross, to use school buildings,
grounds, and equipment for mass care and welfare shelters during disasters or other emergencies affecting the
public health and welfare. The school district or county office of education shall cooperate with the public agency
in furnishing and maintaining the services as the school district or county office of education may deem necessary to
meet the needs of the community.

(C} Policies pursuant to subdivision {d} of Section 48915 for pupils who committed an act listed in subdivision (c)
of Section 48915 and other school-designated serious acts that would lead to suspension, expulsion, or

23



mandatory expulsion recommendations pursuant to Article 1 {commencing with Section 48900 ) of Chapter
6 of Part 27 of Division 4 of Title 2.

(D) Procedures to notify teachers of dangerous pupils pursuant to Section 49079 .

(E) A discrimination and harassment policy consistent with the prohibition against discrimination contained in
Chapter 2 {commencing with Section 200 ) of Part 1.

(F} The provisions of any schoolwide dress code, pursuant to Section 35183 , that prohibits pupils from wearing
“gang-related apparel,” if the school has adopted that type of a dress code. For those purposes, the
comprehensive school safety plan shall define “gang-related apparel.” The definition shall be limited to
apparel that, if worn or displayed an a school campus, reasonably could be determined to threaten the
health and safety of the school environment. A schaclwide dress code established pursuant to this section
and Section 35183 shall be enforced on the school campus and at any school-sponsared activity by the
principal of the school or the person designated by the principal. For purposes of this paragraph, “gang-
related apparel” shall not be considered a protected form of speech pursuant to Section 48950 .

(G) Procedures for safe ingress and egress of pupils, parents, and school employees to and from school.

(H) A safe and orderly environment conducive to learning at the school.

() The rules and procedures on school discipline adopted pursuant to Sections 35291, 35291.5, 47605, and
47605.6.

{J} Procedures for conducting tactical responses to criminal incidents, including procedures related to
individuals with guns on school campuses and at school-related functions. The procedures to prepare for active
shooters or other armed assailants shall be based on the specific needs and context of each school and community.

(b} It is the intent of the Legislature that schools develop comprehensive school safety plans using existing
resources, including the materials and services of the partnership, pursuant to this chapter. It is also the intent of the
Legislature that schools use the handbook developed and distributed by the School/Law Enforcement Partnership
Program entitled “Safe Schools: A Planning Guide for Action” in conjunction with developing their plan for school safety.

{c} Each schoolsite council or school safety planning committee, in developing and updating a comprehensive
school safety plan, shall, where practical, consult, cooperate, and coordinate with other schooisite councils or school
safety planning committees.

{d) The comprehensive school safety plan may be evaluated and amended, as needed, by the school safety
planning committee, but shall be evaluated at least once a year, to ensure that the comprehensive school safety plan
is properly implemented. An updated file of all safety-related plans and materials shall be readily available for
inspection by the public,

EC 215 Suicide Prevention Policy Compliance Grades 7-12:

(a)(1) The governing board or body of a local educational agency that serves pupils in grades 7 to 12, inclusive, shall,
before the beginning of the 2017-18 school year, adopt, at a regularly scheduled meeting, a policy on pupil suicide
prevention in grades 7 to 12, inclusive. The policy shall be developed in consultation with school and community
stakeholders, school-employed mental health professionals, and suicide prevention experts and shall, at a minimum,
address procedures relating to suicide prevention, intervention, and postvention.
{2) The policy shall specifically address the needs of high-risk groups, including, but not limited to, all of the following:

(A) Youth bereaved by suicide.

{B} Youth with disabilities, mental illness, or substance use disorders.

(C) Youth experiencing homelessness or in out-of-home settings, such as foster care.

(D} Lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender, or questioning youth.
(3){A} The policy shall also address any training to be provided to teachers of pupils in grades 7 to 12, inclusive, on
suicide awareness and prevention.
{B) Materials approved by a local educational agency for training shall include how to identify appropriate mental
health services, both at the schoolsite and within the larger community, and when and how to refer youth and their
families to those services,
(C} Materials approved for training may also include programs that can be completed through self-review of suitable
suicide prevention materials.

24



(4) The policy shall be written to ensure that a school employee acts only within the authorization and scope of the
employee's credential or license. Nothing in this section shall be construed as authorizing or encouraging a school
employee to diagnose or treat mental iliness unless the employee is specifically licensed and employed to do so.

(b} The governing board or body of a local educational agency that serves pupils in grades 7 to 12, inclusive, shall
review, at minimum every fifth year, its policy on pupil suicide prevention and, if necessary, update its policy.

(d) For purposes of this section, “local educational agency” means a county office of education, school district, state
special school, or charter school.

EC 215(2)(A) Suicide Prevention Policy Compliance Grades K-6:

{A) The governing board or body of a local educational agency that serves pupils in kindergarten and grades 1 to 6,

inclusive, shall, before the beginning of the 2020-21 school year, adopt, at a regularly scheduled meeting, a policy on

pupil suicide prevention in kindergarten and grades 1 to 6, inclusive. The policy shail be developed in consultation with

school and community stakeholders, the county mental health plan, school-employed mental health professionals, and

suicide prevention experts and shall, at a minimum, address procedures relating to suicide prevention, intervention, and

postvention.

{B} The policy for pupils in kindergarten and grades 1 to 6, inclusive, shall be age appropriate and shall be delivered and

discussed in a manner that is sensitive to the needs of young pupils.

(C) The policy for pupils in kindergarten and grades 1 to 6, inclusive, shall be written to ensure proper coordination and
consultation with the county mental health plan if a referral is made for mental health or related services on behalf of

a pupil who is a Medi-Cal beneficiary.

(3) The policy shall specifically address the needs of high-risk groups, including, but not limited to, all of the following:

(A) Youth bereaved by suicide.

{B) Youth with disabilities, mental iltness, or substance use disorders.

{C) Youth experiencing homelessness or in out-of-home settings, such as foster care.

{D) Lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender, or questioning youth.

4)(A) The policy shall also address any training on suicide awareness and prevention to be provided to teachers of
pupils in all of the grades served by the local educational agency.

(B} Materials approved by a local educational agency for training shall include how to identify appropriate mental
health services, both at the schoolsite and within the larger community, and when and how to refer youth and
their families to those services.

{C) Materials approved for training may also include programs that can be completed through self-review of suitable
suicide prevention materials.

(5) The policy shall be written to ensure that a school employee acts only within the authorization and scope of the
employee’s credential or ficense. Nothing in this section shall be construed as authorizing or encouraging a school
employee to diagnose or treat mental illness unless the employee is specifically licensed and employed to do 50.(6)

(b} The governing board or body of a local educational agency that serves pupils in kindergarten and grades 1to 12,

inclusive, shall review, at minimum every fifth year, its policy on pupil suicide prevention and, if necessary, update its

policy. {d) For purposes of this section, “local educational agency” means a county office of education, school district,
state special school, or charter school.

EC 221.61: Title IX Website Information

(a} On or before July 1, 2017, public schools, private schools that receive federal funds and are subject to the
requirements of Title IX, school districts, county offices of education, and charter schools shall post in a prominent and
conspicuous location on their Internet Webh sites ail of the following:

(1) The name and contact information of the Title IX coordinator for that public school, private school, school district,
county office of educatian, or charter school, which shall include the Title IX coordinator’s phone number and email

address.

{2) The rights of a pupil and the public and the responsibilities of the public school, private school, school district,
county office of education, or charter school under Title 1X, which shall include, but shall not be limited to, Internet

25



Web links to information about those rights and responsibilities located on the Internet Web sites of the
department’s Office for Equal Opportunity and the United States Department of Education Office of Civil Rights, and
the list of rights specified in Section 221.8.

(3) A description of how to file a complaint under Title IX, which shall include al! of the following:

(A) An explanation of the statute of limitations within which a complaint must be filed after an alleged incident of
discrimination has occurred, and how a complaint may be filed beyond the statute of limitations.

(B) An expianation of how the complaint will be investigated and how the complainant may further pursue the
complaint, including, but not iimited to, Internet Web links to this information on the United States Department
of Education Office for Civil Rights’ Internet Web site.

(C) An Internet Web link to the United States Department of Education Office for Civil Rights complaints form, and
the contact information for the office, which shall include the phone number and email address for the office.

Ed Code 234.6 Website Posting Compliance:

(a) For purposes of this article, "local educational agency" means a county office of education, school district, state
special school, or charter school.

(b} Commencing with the 2020-21 academic year, each local educational agency shall ensure that all of the following
information is readily accessible in a prominent location on the local educational agency's existing internet website in
a manner that is easily accessible to parents or guardians and pupils:

(1) The local educational agency's policy on pupil suicide prevention in grades 7 to 12, inclusive, adopted pursuant to
Section 215.(2) The local educational agency's policy on pupil suicide prevention in kindergarten and grades 1 to 6,
inclusive, adopted pursuant to Section 215, including reference to the age appropriateness of that policy.{3) The
definition of discrimination and harassment based on sex as described in Section 230. This shall include the rights set
forth in Section 221.8.(4) The Titie IX information included on a local educational agency's internet website pursuant to
Section 221.61.(5) A link to the Title IX information included on the department's internet website pursuant to

Section 221.6.{6) The local educational agency's written policy on sexual harassment, as it pertains to pupils, prepared
pursuant to Section 231.5.(7) The local educational agency's policy, if it exists, on preventing and responding to hate
violence as described in Section 233.(8) The local educational agency’s anti-discrimination, anti-harassment, anti-
intimidation, and anti-builying policies as described in Section 234.1.(9) The local educational agency's anti-cyberbullying
procedures adopted pursuant to Section 234.4.{10) A section on social media bullying that includes all of the following
references to possible forums for social media bullying:(A) Internet websites with free registration and ease of
registration.(B) Internet websites offering peer-to-peer instant messaging.(C) Internet websites offering comment
forums or sections.{D) Internet wehsites offering image or video posting platforms.{11) A link to statewide resources,
including community-based organizations, compiled by the department pursuant to Section 234.5.{12) Any additional
information a local educational agency deems important for preventing bullying and harassment.

26



OFFICE OF JOHN G. MENDIBURU

Kern County Superintendent of Schools
Advacates for Children...

Charter School Oversight Review
2023-24

School: GROW Academy

The Charter School Oversight Review will be completed annually based on compliance with the terms and
conditions of the approved charter, related agreements including the Memorandum of Understanding, and all
applicable laws. Any deficiencies will be reviewed with the Charter School administration. The annual
evaluations will be a factor upon which a renewal decision will be made at the end of the term of the charter.

There will be at least one site visit by the Oversight Review team annualiy to assess the Charter School’s
progress. The focus of the visit will be teaching and learning, but will include the areas listed below:

1 - General Requirements

2 —Fiscal and Business Operations

3 — Educational Program and Assessment
4 - Facilities

5 — Governance

6 —Human Resources

7 —Student Services

The Charter School Evaluation Form will be completed and presented annually to the Kern County Board of
Education at their regularly scheduled meeting in the fall semester, following the close of the prior fiscal year.



1. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

In the column to the right, indicate a finding of Y {yes), N
{no), or N/A {not applicable) to each question/statement
below.

Y | Use the space below to comment on the item
N | and/or to indicate where information used to
N/A | make the Y/N determination can be found.

A. Authorizer Requirements

1. Has Authorizer identified its staff person who is the contact
person for the Charter School? [EC 47604.32)

Kimberly Graham: Administrator of Local, Regional,
and Statewide Systems of Support.

2. Has a schedule or plan been made to visit the Charter School at
least annually? [EC 47604.32]

Site visit conducted on April 24, 2024,

3. Has authorizer identified the individuai or entity responsible for
ensuring that Charter School submits all fiscal reports required
by law? [EC 47604.33]

Marcos Gamino: KC50S District Fiscal Analyst

4. Has authorizer identified the individual or entity responsible for
monitoring the fiscal condition of the Charter School? [EC
47604.33)

| Marcos Gamino: KCSQOS District Fiscal Analyst

B. Charter School Education Code Requirements

1. Have material revisions made to the approved charter been
approved by the governing hoard of the Charter School and the

| Kern County Board of Education?

2. The Charter School’s assurances include the following in their
charter petition and those listed in £C 47605(d) and (e) stating
that the Charter School:

a) Shall be nonsectarian in program admission policies,
| employment practices, and ali other operations.

b) Shall not charge tuition.

¢} Shall not discriminate against any pupil on the basis of the
characteristics listed in *£C Section 220.

d) Shall admit all students who reside in California who wish to
attend (up to the Charter School’s capacity based upon

_space, staff, or Charter School policy).

e} Shall determine by public random drawing, which students,
other than those already enrolled, will be allowed to enroll if
the number of pupils who wish to attend the Charter School
exceeds the Charter School’s capacity and make reasonable
efforts to accommodate the growth of the Charter School.

f) Shall comply with £C 47605(e} in regard to the establishment |

of preferences for enrollment which shall not result in
limiting enrollment access far pupils with: disabilities,
academically low-achieving pupils, English learners,
neglected or delinquent pupils, homeless pupils, or pupils
who are economically disadvantaged or pupils based on
nationality, race, ethnicity, or sexual orientation.

Shail notify the school district of residence of the pupil’s last
known address within 30 days if a pupil is expelled or leaves
the Charter School without graduating or completing the
school year for any reason.

—

g

N

N/A |

— 1 _— o= -

Petition and verbal assurance.
Petition and verbal assurance.

< < =

| Petition and verbal assurance.

Petition and verbal assurance.

Petition and verbal assurance.

Petition and verbal assurance.

-

‘ Petition and verbal assurance.




1. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

in the column to the right, indicate a finding of Y (yes), N Y
(no), or N/A (not applicable) to each question/statement N
helow. N/A

Use the space below te comment on the item
and/or to indicate where information used to
make the Y/N determination can be found.

C.

Memorandum of Understanding

1

Has the Charter School complied with the terms of the current
Memaorandum of Understanding?

MOU reviewed,

Does charter school administration understand the content and
purpose of the Memorandum of Understanding?

Verbal assurance.

Board Policy Updates

Has the Charter School board documented that it annually
reviews the charter’s compliance with £C 49431.2(d) which
prohibits the advertisement of food or beverages as incentives
to students during the school day?

Board minutes where compliance reviewed.

Has the Charter School updated its enrollment board policy
and/or charter petition language to include the characteristic of
immigration status of students or their families in regard to ‘
discrimination and the prohibition from the coltecting

information or documents regarding such status? (EC 200, 220,
234.1, 234.7) |

Parent/Student Handbook.

Does the charter’s policy for receiving and investigating ‘
complaints of discrimination, harassment, intimidation and

bullying based on any of the actual or perceived characteristics

set forth in *Section 422.55 of the Penal Code, include a Y
requirement that, if school personnei witness such an act, they

shall take immediate steps to intervene when safe to do so? {EC
234.1(b)}

Parent/Student Handbook.

Has the Charter School updated its policies and practices

regarding not collecting or soliciting Social Security numbers or ‘ Y
the last 4 digits thereof from pupils or their parents/guardian

unless required to do so by state/federal law? {EC 49076.7)

Parent/Student Handbook.

If the charter serves high school students, has it revised its policy '

on the transferability of coursework for pupils in foster care, are
homeless, are participating in a “newcomer program”, a child of N/A
a military family, or a migrant student to accept full or partial

credit for all full or partial coursework satisfactorily completed

while attending another public school per £C 51225.27

If the charter serves high school students, did it revise its
graduation policy for 3™ or 4™ year pupils who are not on tract

to graduate to exempt them from coursework not included in ‘ N/A
the state’s required coursework for graduation requirements
per EC 512257

E.

Items Specific to the Charter Petition and MOU

Comments: N/A

Review conducted by:




2. FISCAL AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS

in the column to the right, indicate a finding of ¥ (yes), N Y | Use the space below to comment on the item
(no), or N/A {not applicable) to each question/statement N | and/or to indicate where information used to
below. N/A | make the Y/N determination can be found.
A. Student Attendance
Y Grow Academy uses Aeries SIS system to record and
1. Is there a satisfactory attendance accounting system used? track attendance.
2. Is the staff person primarily responsible for attendance v Training provided by Aeries, Home office staff, as well as
| ___reporting adequately trained? _ CALPADS/FCMAT training.
3. Is there an approved Charter School calendar that includes a Y
minimum of 175 instructional days? Calendar provided and reviewed.
4. Is there an approved class (bell) schedule? b Bell Schedule provided and reviewed.
5. Is there a process to monitor compliance with the minimum
instructional minute requirements as defined by Title 5, Section Y
119637 Master Schedule and instructional minutes reviewed.
6. Is attendance taken daily by an individual responsible for taking v Attendance is taken by classroom teachers and absences
attendance? i are verified by the attendance clerk.
7. Are absences excluded from the apportionment days? Y | Master Schedule provided and reviewed. ]
8. Has the charter maintained an average TK class enroilment of v
|___not more than 24 pupils, and a 1-12 pupil ratio? {EC 48000(g)} Class roster provided and reviewed.
9. Has Average Daily Attendance only been claimed for teachers
who hold an appropriate certificate, permit or other document Y
issued by CTC, consistent with £C 47605(1)? Teacher roster with credentials provided and reviewed.
Student Attendance — Independent Study
10. Are records maintained for audit as well as the total y The attendance clerks maintain all records and
independent study ADA? lindependent study ADA.
11. Does the Charter School meet the requirement related to the
ratio of ADA to FTE certificated employees as prescribed under
5CCR 11704 as evidenced by support documentation and
calculations?
25:1, or;
The ratio of pupils to FTE certificated employees for all other
educational programs operated by the largest unified school
district, as measured by ADA, as reported at the 2™ principal
apportionment in the prior year, in the county or counties in
| which the Charter School operates? Class and IS rosters provided and reviewed.
12. Does the Charter School have board-approved, written policies
related to independent Study that reflect compliance with £C y
51747 and 51749.57 (apportionment, course of study and
evaluation) S Board Policy provided and reviewed.
13. Doesthe Charter School have records that demonstrate
adherence to polices related to £C 51745-51749.3 and Title 5,
11700-11705 in regard to claiming apportionment?
®  Placement of SWDs into independent study: EC 51745( c)
s Ratio of ADA for independent study to FTE staff: EC 51745.6 y
e Apportionment claims and gifts of value: EC 51747.3(a)
e Adherence to geographic restrictions: EC 51747.3(b)
e Supervision of and assignment of credit by credentialed
teachers to claim apportionment credit: £C 51747.5(a) Independent study records are maintained by the

® Credit awarded for ADA based only upon work products.

|attendamce clerk. Provided and reviewed.




2. FISCAL AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS

in the column to the right, indicate a finding of Y {yes), N Y | Use the space below to comment on the item
{no), or N/A (not applicable) to each question/statement N | and/or to indicate where information used to
below. N/A | make the Y/N determination can be found.
14. Does the Charter School have documentation that it has
completed the “determination of funding” process pursuant to N/A |Notrequired. School does not meet IS percentage
£C47634.2 and Title 5, 11963.2-11963.77 threshold.
B. Cash Receipts
Y Fiscal and Operation Manual Board-approved Policies
1. Arethere approved policies addressing cash receipts? provided and reviewed.
y Per policy, receipts are given for all cash received at the
2. Are there receipts issued for all monies received? schoaol.
An audit trail is maintained to ensure the deposit of ali
monies. Cash is counted by two individuals and
Y |recorded. Subsequently, it undergoes a secondary
counting process by two authorized individuals from the
Is an audit trail maintained to assure deposit of all monies? Cash Management Office (CMO).
4. is cash stored in a secure place prior to deposit? Y  |Cash is stored in a school safe,
5. Are deposits made in a timely manner? Y |Deposits are made within 48 hours of receipt.
Receipts and deposits are made by different employees,
6. Is there a segregation of duties for the receipt of monies, the Y [and bank reconciliation is completed and reviewed by
deposit of monies, and the reconciliation of bank statements? the back office provider.
All records are maintained for audit either in the
Y (financial records system {box), payroll department,
7. Are there adequate records maintained for audit? school site or the CMO.
C. Disbursements
1. Are there approved policies addressing disbursements? _Y [Fiscal Operations Manual provided and reviewed.
2. Do disbursements require:
a) An original invoice from the vendor? | Y [Fiscal Policy reviewed.
b) A receiving document? Y [riscal Policy reviewed.
¢} Appropriate approval of the purchase? Y [Fiscal Policy reviewed.
y Either by the CBO or the Director of Business Services
3. Are checks signed by authorized employees? and Compliance. Duel if over 30k.
- Potential 1099s are marked in the accounting system for
4. s there a system to maintain vendor payment information for Y |annual processing. W-9s kept on file by the Accounting
| preparatjon of 1099s? | Clerk. i
' Purchasing is done at the school site, by the Account
Y Clerk, the Accounting Specialist processes invoices for
5. Is there a segregation of duties between purchasing, receiving, ‘ payment and EdTec issues payment with prior approval
and accounts payable? , from CBO and DBO. B B
‘ v The monthly check register is approved at Board 4‘
6. Are disbursements approved/ratified by Board? meetings.
7. Are there adequate records maintained for audit? Y 2023 Audit Report provided and reviewed. ‘




2, FISCAL AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS

and LCAP Addendum/LEA Plan?

In the column to the right, indicate a finding of Y (yes), N Y | Use the space below to comment on the item
{no], or N/A (not applicable} to each question/statement N | and/or to indicate where information used to
below. N/A | make the Y/N determination can be found.
D. Payroll
1. Does the Charter School have a Board-approved Salary
Schedule or other satisfactory salary structure? Y Board-approved Salary Schedule provided.
2. Are tax deposits completed in a timely manner? Y | Forms our filed quarterly by EdTec.
3. Are earnings properly recorded for retirement reporting to y
| Social Security, PERS, STRS? This is tracked in the Paylocity System.
4. Is there a system to provide STRS data to the county y )
superintendent? Paylocity is used to keep track of STRS data.
5. Isthere a satisfactory system to maintain employee earning v
records for preparation of W-2s? Payroll recording system is Paylocity,
6. Is there appropriate segregation of duties between the
rmaintenance of employee data, salary schedules, and payrol! Y [These duties are split up between HR department,
payments? business department, and EdTec.
v Records are maintained for audit by the payroll clerk for
7. Are there adequate records maintained for audit? audit.
. Budget, Accounting, and Financial Reporting
1. Arethere board approved policies addressing budget, y
accounting and financial reporting? . |Board-approved Fiscal Policy provided and reviewed.
2. Has the budget been approved by the Board? Y |Budget and board minutes provided and reviewed.
3. Isthere a process to review and revise the budget for changes v Board meetings are held to review actuals, forecasts and
in student enrollment and operations? interim budgets, which are revised, if needed.
v Following initial Board approval, any substantive changes
4. Are budget revisions approved/ratified by the Board? are approved and ratified. -
¥ All obligations are included in the budget and are
3. Are financial obligations provided for in the budget? monitored monthly.
Separate resource coded accounts for restricted
6. Are separate accounts maintained for restricted revenues and Y [revenues and expenditures are maintained in the
expenditures? accounting software.
7. Are financial reports prepared and reviewed by the Board on a ¥
regular hasis? Reports are prepared/reviewed manthly by the Board.
8. Are mandated financial reports provided to the county y All documents are prepared and sent to KCSOS as agreed
Superintendent of schools in a timely manner? (EC 47604.33) upon by the MCU.
a.) On or before July 1%, the preliminary budget.
b.) On or before December 15™, the interim financial report.
c.) On or before March 15™, the second interim financial report. Y
d) On or before September 15, the final unaudited report for
" The full prior year. Budget reports received in timely manner and reviewed. |
S. Are cash flow projections prepared, updated and provided to
the county on a regular basis to assure there are sufficient y
funds that are available to meet the financial obligations of the Cash flow projections are completed and presented to
charter school? the board on a semi-monthly basis
10. Does the charter school's budget align with the school’s LCAP y The LCAP/LCAP addendum plan align with the board-

approved budget.




2. FISCAL AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS

In the column to the right, indicate o finding of Y yes), N Y | Use the space below to comment on the item
{no), or N/A {not applicable) to each gquestion/statement N | and/or to indicate where information used to
below. N/A | make the Y/N determination can be found.
11. Did the Charter’s LCAP indicate that the Charter’s |
proportionality obligation was fully met through its listed
actions/services for its unduplicated pupils? If not, did it report Y
the unused portion and planned uses of those funds in its
LCAP? (EC 42238.07) LCFF Budget Overview for Parents provided.
12. ls there a business accounting/information system that v |Accounts are maintained in financial software
complies with State accounting and reporting requirements? (Netsuite); reported using SACS account codes.
F. Audit
1. Which state-approved audit firm has been selected? Y |Clifton, Larson, Allen.
v Pre-audit scheduled for June. EQY audit is scheduled for
2. Has an audit schedule/timeline been developed? October.
3. Has a copy of the prior year audit been provided to the county y
Superintendent? Audit report provided and reviewed.
4. If needed, has a corrective action plan been developed? N/A
y All records are maintained by EdTec and at the CMO
5. Are records maintained for audit? office.
G. Financial Condition
1. Is aprudent level of reserves maintained for economic y
uncertainties? Required reserves are maintained.
2. Are multi-year financial projections prepared? Y  |Submitted with Budget and Interims.
v Major assumptions based on FCMAT, School Services of
3. Are the projections and assumptions reasonable? CA.
4. Have all long-term debt obligations been included? Y |GAA and GASI do not have any long-term obligations.
5. Based on the projections, will the Charter School be able to
meet its financial obligations and maintain a prudent level of Y |GAArvinis forecasted to end FY24 with a reserve of
reserves in the current and two subsequent fiscal years? approximately 80%. Board report provided.
H. Equipment Inventory
1. Arethere approved policies addressing the purchase and v
maintenance of equipment? Policies provided and reviewed.
2. Isan equipment inventory:
a) Maintained? Y |lnventory provided.
'b)  Physically located on each site? Y |Verbal assurance and fiscal policy. .
3. Is equipment purchased with federal funds properly v |
identified? B Verbal assurance and fiscal policy.
4. Arerecords maintained for audit purposes? Y

| Audit records provided.

I. Expanded Learning Opportunities Program

1. If the charter received funds pursuant to the ELOP (EC 46120},
did it offer to all unduplicated pupils in classroom-based
instructional programs in K-6 and provide access to any pupil
whose parent or guardian requests access to expanded learning
opportunity programs in accordance with program
requirements? (EC 46120(a)(2)}

ELOP opportunities are offered via Parentsquare, flyers,
and parent announcement meetings throughout the
|year.




2. FISCAL AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS

In the column to the right, indicate a finding of Y (yes), N [no), X A= the spf:ce' bglowio co.m ment o‘n fhsitzm
or N/A (not applicable) to each question/statement below. N | and/or to indicate where information used to
] N/A | make the Y/N determination can be found.

J. Items Specific to the Charter Petition and MQU

1. Are all reviewed fiscal and business records/activities specific to y |Activities are coded per site in the financial and
the individual charter school?

accounting systems.
Comments; N/A

Review conducted by: Marcos Gamino; KCSOS Fiscal Analyst




3. EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM AND ASSESSMENT

related service?

in the column to the right, indicate a finding of Y (yes), N ) Y | Use the space below to comment on the item

{no), or N/A (not applicable) to each question/statement | N | and/or to indicate where information used to

below. | N/A | make the Y/N determination can be found.

A. Educational Program

| | Observations and documentation indicate that the
Y charter is implementing the instructional plan outlined

1. fs the Charter School following its curricular and instructional in the Petition and is refining to best meet the needs of
plan as presented in the approved Charter petition? students. )

2. Is the Charter School staffing sufficient to carry out the 23-24 Arvin Staf‘ﬁng_ Roster provided. ,
educational program and consistent with the terms of the Y The charter maintains a low student-to-adult ratio of ‘
charter petition? 20:.1, ar_ud all cla_asses h.ave at least two adults present

) during instructional time.

3. Are parents of high school students informed about the
transferability of courses to other public high schools and the N/A
eligibility of courses to meet college entrance requirements? ‘

4. Is the Charter School implementing a framework for ' Although the charter is not implementing the GLAD
instructional design that is aligned with the needs of the y Program, it does provide integrated and designated
students identified as the target popuiation in the approved ‘ ELD for EL students, as well as targeted intervention, as ‘

| charter petition? | needed, by the general population.

5. Has the Charter School obtained WASC accreditation as f

. . S . N/A ‘
outlined in the petition, if applicable? T
6. Has the charter's Course of Study been revised to include: ' '
a. Social Science instruction related to the contributions of
people of all genders, Latino, LGBTQ, regardless of religious v
and socioeconomic status EC 51204.5 ‘
b. Grades 1-6: the inclusion of instruction in cursive writing in
the appropriate grade levels? EC 51210{a)(1). See Comment 3A-6 below.

B. Services to Special Populations

1. Has the Charter School adopted policies and practices that
reflect compliance with all laws related to the provision of
Special Education including: 3l

Current SIRAS data and sample documents, as well as

a} Appropriate placement for students who are enrolling with Y classroom observations, indicate SWD are being placed
IEPs? and served appropriately.

‘ " Reviewed sample documents, SIRAS data, and the

b} Referral and assessment of students suspected of requiring SWD's section of Student/Parent Handbook that notes
special education and related services? Child Find procedures in Google Drive. B

Y Reviewed CALPADS 16.21 report as of 4/24/24, cross-

c} Compliance with the timelines related to special education? L referenced to current SIRAS data as of 4/24/24.

a B Reviewed s_ample IEP Services Page on sample IEPs. [EP |

2. Are students who are identified as being eligible for Special Y services also witnessed during 4/24/24 classroom
Education receiving services required by their [EP5? observations.

3. Does the Charter School provide for the inclusion of all of the y Reviewed current SIRAS data and sample IEP Meeting ‘
required members to participate in IEP team meetings? Participation page.

4. Does the Charter School have a plan for the provision of No current SWDs with specialized transportation
transportation of Special Education students who require this ‘ Y needs. However, charter has MOU with KCSOS

transportation shauld the need arise.



3. EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM AND ASSESSMENT

In the column to the right, indicate a finding of Y (yes), N Y | Use the space below to comment on the item ‘
fno), or N/A (not applicable) to each question/statement N | and/or to indicate where information used to
below. N/A | make the Y/N determination can be found.
5. Does the Charter School have a process for determining a y
student’s eligibility for services under Section 504? } Reviewed charter 504 Procedures. - ‘
6. Does the Charter School develop and implement Reviewed sample 504 Plan and observed
| accommodation plans for any students who are 504 eligible? | Y_ accommodations during classroom observations,
7. Does the Charter School ensure that Special Education funds are Y Charter verified that SPED funds are never used for ‘
| not used to serve students identified under Section 504? | | students on 504 plans only. |
8. Does the Charter School follow a process for identification and Y Reviewed charter ELL procedures for identification and
reclassification of students who are English Learners? i reclassification. -
9. If tha Charter School graduates students, has it notified its
in foster care, homeless, of a military family or of migrant N/A
status of their rights of exemption from local graduation
reqmrements under {EC51225.1(a)}? - - - - ‘
| C. Curricular Materials '
1. Isthe Charter School utilizing standards-aligned instructional Y Instructional materials list provided/reviewed, and ‘
materials? observations/interviews validated their use.
2. Is the Charter School utilizing instructional materials that Y Instructional materials for integrated and Designated
address the specific needs of English Learners? | ELD reviewed and observations confirmed their use. ]
3. Is the Charter School utilizing instructional materials that ’ y Review of list of curriculums used for SWDs and
address the specific needs of Special Education students? | observations confirmed their use.
4. If the Charter School requires a course in health education for ‘ —‘
graduation from high school, does that course include N/A
instruction in performing compression-only cardiopulmonary
resuscitation? (EC 51225.6) |
D. Professional Development =
1. Has Charter School staff received legally required trainings? Y Staff roster and training list provided and reviewed.
2. Has the charter communicated to or trained school personnel ‘
in the Item ID-3 requirement to take immediate steps to
intervene when safe to do so, if they witness an act of actual or
perceived discrimination, harassment, intimidation and Y
bullying of others with characteristics set forth in *Section ‘ ‘
422,55 of the Penal Code? {EC 234.1(b)} Anti-bullying Policy and training dates provided.
3. Is Charter School staff provided opportunities for professional ‘
development necessary to carry out the instructional program Y
as outlined in the petition? PD calendar and staff training dates provided.
E. Assessment
1. Is the Charter School administering the state mandated testing
according to testing rules and reguiations as required for all K- Y
12 schools in Califernia? - | Assessment calendar provided and reviewed. i
2. Does a review of SBAC and Dashboard Data indicate that the *
Charter School is on target for meeting renewal requirements Y Charter qualified for the middle tier of renewal based
as set forth in £C 47607(b) and the charter petition? upon 2024 criteria. - |
3. Has the Charter School completed and posted a SARC Y ‘

l

containing required elements by Feb 1, 20242

SARC reviewed and was posted accordingly.



3. EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM AND ASESSMENT

In the column to the right, indicate a finding of Y (yes), N Y | Use the space below to comment on the item
{no), or N/A (not applicable) to each question/statement N | and/or to indicate where information used to
below. N/A | make the Y/N determination can be found.
4. |s student achievement data regularly reported to parents and y Evidence provided indicates that staff and parents
staff? ] regularly review student achievement data.
5. Have parent/guardian notifications of language proficiency
{ELPAC) assessment been provided as required by £C, and if so, Y
do they include whether a child is a long-term English learner or
| is at-risk of becoming one? (*£C 313.2(a) | Sample of parent notifications provided and reviewed. |
6. |s the Charter School implementing a plan for collecting,
analyzing, and reporting data on pupil achievement? If so, is The charter provided its plan for collecting, analyzing,
the Charter School utilizing the data to monitor and improve Y and reporting assessment data. Evidence and
the Charter School’s educational program consistent with EC observations indicate that the charter uses the data to
47605{b)(5}{C) and the terms of the charter? monitor and improve the educational program.
F. Items Specific to the Charter Petition and MOU
1. Isthe charter school serving grade levels consistent with the y
content of the charter and MOU?
1. Has the charter school made the “enrollment database”
required in the MOU available to the County Superintendent Y
upon request? Enrcllment database provided and reviewed.
2. Arethe educational program and assessment activities specific v
to the individual charter school (GROW-Arvin)? |

Comments:

Item 3A-6: This law went into effect on 1/1/24, mid-way into the year. The Social Science curriculum had evidence of inclusion of
the required items. Cursive writing was in the planning stage in 2024 and will be fuily embedded into the curriculum by
8/24.

Review Conducted by: Tara Clarke, KCSOS Coordinator Ili/Region 8 EL Specialist Professional Learning




4. FACILITIES AND OPERATIONS

In the column to the right, indicate a finding of Y (yes), N Y | Use the space below to comment on the item
(no), or N/A (not applicable) to each guestion/statement N | and/or to indicate where information used to
below. N/A | make the Y/N determination can be found.
A. Facility Adequacy and Compliance
1. Is there a designated staff person responsible for overseeing y
facilities maintenance and operations? If yes, who? Jorge limenez, Facilities Manager N
2. Is there a custodial schedute that reflects appropriate and timely
attention to providing students with a clean and safe learning Y
environment? o Custodial schedule provided.
3. Do all facilities in which the Charter School is housed meet the y
American with Disabilities Act requirements? 1 Documentation provided and reviewed.
4. Has the Charter School identified all single-user toilet facilities as v
all gender facilities? (Article 5, Health & Safety Code) ] Campus map indicates 5 locations on campus.
5. Is there a process for providing routine inspection and
maintenance to ensure that Charter School facilities including Y
playgrounds remain in good condition? Monthly FIT checklists provided. ]
6. Have the Charter School’s facilities been modified during the N/A
| pastyear? B 1
7. Are the Charter School’s facilities adequate for the number of y Classrooms accommodate 30 students and currently
__students and types of programs assigned to each site? no class is over 28. ]
8. Does the Charter School have on file: 1} Certificate of
Occupancy; 2) Conditional Use Permit for each site; and/or 3) Y
| Safety Inspections by local Fire Department? | Documentation provided and reviewed.
9. Does the Charter School have plans to modernize and/or add y The charter is building 4 new classrooms for K and
| facilities to the existing site? B rmodifying the TK classraoms.
0. Does the Charter School plan to add a new site? If so, has proper
N ; N/A
notification been made to the approving agency?
[11. If the Charter School participates in an interscholastic athletic
program, does it have a written emergency action plan and at Y School Safety Plan reviewed. Charter has 2 AEDs on
least one AED for the school? {£€ 35179/4. 35179.6) | campus.
2. If the Charter School has been made aware of a lactating pupil,
has it made accommadations other than a restroom and N/A
| provided a place to safety store expressed milk?
3. If the Charter School serves any grades 6-12, and it meets the
40% pupil poverty rate, does it provide feminine hygiene Y
products, including tampons and sanitary napkins, in a least 50%
of the school’s restrooms? (EC 35292.6) Observations verified. |
14. If the Charter School contracts out its transportation services,
and has made a finding of gross negligence or disciplinary action N/A
against the driver of a school bus, has it notified the Dept. of
Motor Vehicles within 5 calendar days? {EC 29843, 29831.3)
B. Items Specific to the Charter Petition and MOU N/A

Comments: The campus is lovely and well maintained.

Review Conducted by: Cathie Morris, KCSOS Charter School Consultant




5. GOVERNANCE

| In the column to the right, indicate a finding of Y (yes), N
(no}, or N/A {not applicable) to each question/statement
bhelow.

N/A | make the Y/N determination can be found.

Use the ;puEe below to comment on the item
and/or to indicate where information used to

A. Organizational Management

1. If the Charter School is constituted as a non-profit corporation,

are the corporate papers, including Articles of Incorporation Y
_available to the authorizer? - Articles of Incorporation provided. - ‘

2. Isthere a list or roster of governing board members? Y | Roster provided.

3. Does the Charter School governance structure include the process ‘
to be followed by the school to ensure parental involvement Y The charter provided evidence that it provides
consistent with £C 47605(b)(5)(D) and the terms of the charter multiple and varied opportunities for parent

| petition and the MOU? - involvement. L

4. Is the Board free of real or perceived co_nﬂicts of interest? Y | Form 700's provided.

5. Is the composition of the Board consistent with the apgroved Y

Charter? Board roster provided.

B. Meetings

1. Does the Board conduct public meetings at such intervals as are
necessary to ensure that the Board is addressing business Y The board meeting schedule indicates that it meets
required to provide sufficient direction to the Charter School? | every other month. B

2. Does the Board comply with the following: . 5|
a) Regularly scheduled meetings, as outlined in the petition, with y —ﬁoard meeting agenda provided which indicates

required agenda postings per £C 54954.2(3}/549567 required posting. -

b) Brown Act training and meeting compliance? Y Evidence of Brown Act training provided. |

¢} Twice the time limit, if one is used, for public comment for Y Board meeting Agenda provided indicates time
non-English speakers? {Govt. Code 54954.3) allocation.

d} Availability of meeting minutes and adherence to the public Minutes are signed by the Secretary and available for
records act that includes the posting of public records on its y public review at the Schoaol Site and CMO office.
wehsite and providing paper copies to the public without Members of the public may receive a paper copy if
access to them electronically? (Govt. Code 6253) requested and minutes are posted on website.

3. Does the Board have resolutions and Board-adopted paolicies that
address the following:

a) Conflict of interest (*SB 126 compliant?) Y Col policy provided and reviewed.

b) Handbooks- Parent, Student, Employee (*AB 1505/5B 75 y
compliant?) - Handbooks provided and reviewed.

c) Student & Employee discipline and due process (*SB 419 y
compliant?) Board policy provided and reviewed.

d} Parent complaint resolution and due process Y Board policy provided and reviewed.

e) Internal controls policies and related forms and systems Y | Fiscal Policy Manual provided and reviewed.

f} Bank signature authorizations, etc. Y Fiscal Policy Manual provided and reviewed.

g) Harassment- student, staff \ Board policy and Handbooks provided.

h) Safety Plan Y | Safety Plan provided.

i) Immunization records Y Board policy provided and reviewed.

J) Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) — policy and y

‘ notices

Board policy, FERPA Notice and Handbooks provided.




5. GOVERNANCE

In the column to the right, indicate a finding of Y {yes), N
(no), or N/A {not applicable) to each question/statement
below.

4. Have any changes made by the Board to bylaws or any document
required by the Charter/MOU been communicated to the County
Superintendent?

C. Parent/Staff Involvement

1. Is there a process in place that ensures that parents, teachers,
and staff may provide input regarding the effectiveness of the
Charter School?

2. Do board-meeting minutes reflect that the Charter Board held a
public hearing prior to approving its LCAP? (SB 75)

3. Is there evidence that the charter presented a report on the
annual LCAP update and its LCFF budget overview for parents on
or before February 28 at a regularly scheduled board meeting? If
s, did that report include midyear outcome data related to the
metrics of the current year's LCAP, and all available midyear
expenditure and implementation data on all actions identified in
that LCAP? £C 47606.5(e)(1) and (2).

D. LCAP/LEA Plans and Categorical Funds

1. Doesthe Charter School have a current LEA {Local Educational
Agency) Plan that has been presented to, reviewed and approved
by the Charter School’s governing board? -

2. Isthe charter’s LCAP prominently posted on the charter’s website,
including updates, revisions, addenda, including those to comply
with federal law? {EC 47606.5(h)} - -

3. Arethe Title | funds/categorical funding being used to
supplement the charter's LCAP goals?

E. tems specific to the Charter Petition and MOU

1. Does the charter board understand that each charter schoal
operating under its oversight is an individual school under the

jurisdiction of the Board?

Y Use the space below to comment on the item
N | and/or to indicate where information used to
N/A | make the Y/N determination can be found,
N/A
Parents, teachers, and students may participate in
Y | school governance through their involvement in
| various school committees, school site council, LCAP,
Wellness Committee, Board meeting, and the SPGA
Y Board Agenda and Minutes provided. B
Y |
Board meeting minutes reflect a review of required
| components for the LCAP update. |
Y
! The LEA Plan is included in the LCAP Addendum.
‘ Y
| Website posting confirmed.
Y LCAP and LEA Pian Addendum reviewed.
Y

| Verbal assurance provided.

Comments: N/A

Review conducted by: Mary Westendorf, KCSOS District Advisory




6. HUMAN RESOURCES

In the column to the right, indicate a finding of ¥ {yes), N Y | Use the space below to comment on the item ]
(no), or N/A {not applicable) to each question/statement N | and/or to indicate where information used to
below. N/A | make the Y/N determination can be found.
A. All Employees
1. Does the Charter School have fingerprint clearance, including ‘
Department of Justice background checks, on all employees? [EC Y
| 44237] “Criminal record summary” _| Fingerprint clearance records provided and reviewed. |
2. Does the Charter School have documentation that TB test results '
| are current for all employees? - - Y Documentation provided. - ‘
3. Does the Charter School have record of the AB-1432 Child Abuse
Neglect and Reporting Act Training required annually within the v
first 6 weeks of the school year or within 6 weeks of each
__person’s employment? B Documentation provided and reviewed.
4. Does the Charter School have approved persennel policies and
practices that are consistent with the petition, MOU, and all Y ‘
applicable laws? Evidence provided and reviewed in Staff Handbook.
5. If the Charter School employs 50+ employees, does it provide
mandatory anti-harassment training for supervisors that includes
. . . Y
harassment based on gender identify, expression and sexual ‘
orientation? (Govt. Code 12950} Evidence of training provided.
6. If the Charter School employs 20+ employees, does it provide up
to 12 weeks of job-protected, unpaid parental leave? [Govt. Y
~ Code 12945.6(a)] - - Referenced in Employee Handbook. B |
7. Ifthe Charter 5chool employs 25+ employees, does it provide
protected leave and sick leave as it pertains to child care and Y
_"kin care” laws? (Labor Code 230.8) - | Referenced in staff handbooks.
8. Does the Charter School have a DFEH-created poster regarding ‘
transgender rights posted in a prominent and accessible Y
location? (Govt. Code 12950) Located in the staff breakroom. |
B. Certificated Employees |
[1. Does the Charter School employ sufficient teaching staff to y
. satisfy the terms of the petition and the MOU? Staffing roster provided.
2. Do teachers providing instruction in core classes have the
required credentials and certifications to meet state and federal Y
| requirements, terms of the petition, and the MOU? | Teacher roster and credentialing reviewed.
3. Do teachers who are providing Special Education and Related Y
Services have the appropriate credentials and certifications? Teacher credentialing reviewed. |
. Classified Employees |
1. Do classified employees who are providing instructional support
in the core content areas, Special Education, and English v All classified employees in these types of settings
Language Learner Services meet state and federal requirements, have a high school diploma and 48 units of coliege ‘
and terms of the petition/MOU? | coursework. - ) |
2. Does the Charter School provide adequate staffing for: |
a) Custodial Y | Staff roster provided and reviewed.
b) Food Service Y | staff roster provided and reviewed.
¢) Information Technology Y | Staff roster provided and reviewed. 1‘
d) Lunch/Break Supervision Y Staff roster provided and reviewed.
e) Clerical/Recard Keeping Y Staff roster provided and reviewed.




6. HUMAN RESOURCES

In the column to the right, indicate a finding of ¥ (yes), N
(no), or N/A {not applicable) to each guestion/statement
below.

N/A

Use the space below to comment on the item
and/or to indicate where information used to
make the Y/N determination can be found.

D. ltems specific to the Charter Petition and MOU

1. Has the Charter School provided a written list of all of its
employees for the current school year pursuant to the MOU?

Staff roster provided.

Comments: N/A

Review conducted by: Evelyn Feliciano, KCSOS Credentials Manager




7. STUDENT SERVICES

In the column to the right, indicate a finding of Y {yes), N {no),
or N/A (not applicable) to each question/statement below.

Y | Usethe space below to comment on the item
N | and/or to indicate where information used to
N/A | make the Y/N determination can be found.

A. Admissions

1. Is the Charter School complying with the admissions practices
described in the approved charter?

2. Does the Charter School facilitate admissions for a student with
an [EP in the same manner as for a student without an |EP?

3. Does the student enrollment and mobility data refiect a program
that does not exit (return to the district) specific populations of
students in a manner that would result in a charter school
enrollment that is not reflective of the local school districts?

4. Do the Charter School enrallment forms indicate comphance with
all applicable laws and with the approved charter? Have they
been updated to include health care coverage options and
enrollment assistance information? {EC 49452.9{a}}

5. Ifthe Charter School has needed to use the lottery system to
determine which students will be allowed to enroll, is there
documentation that the process was held in the manner
described in the approved petition?

6. Does the Charter School have records documenting
immunizations to the extent required for enrollment in public
schoois? -

7. Does the Charter School have a student population that
represents the racial and ethnic backgrounds of pupils enrolled in

| the local district(s)?

8. Does the charter school have a student population in which rates
of pupils with disabilities, English learners, and pupils who are
economically disadvantaged are comparable to the local district(s)
rates?

=
|

|

Petltlon and enrollment documents reviewed.
Rewewed charter GPS Nondiscrimination Policy,

Y Parent-Student Handbook and sample 30-Day Interim

| Placement IEP.

Y
) Student enrollment database provided and reviewed.
Y
| Enrollment packet provided and reviewed.
g The charter documented its lottery process in a video
and provided it as evidence.
Y |

Immunization card provided as a sample.

A comparison between GROW and Arvin USD shows
Y comparability in regard to racial backgrounds of

| students as reported by DataQuest.

Based upon DataQuest data, the charter’s rate of EL

The rates of SWDs and SED students is comparable.

students is about 20 percentage points below that of
Arvin USD, but also has a higher reclassification rate.

=

Discipline

1. Does the school have discipline policies and practices consistent
with the terms of the charter and £€ 48900 in regard to
suspension of K-8 and expulsion of K-12 students?

2. Do the Charter School’s suspension procedures include a
provision for a conference where the student is informed of the
reason for the action, an opportunity to present his/her version
and is informed of the other means of correction that were
attempted before the suspension? (EC 48911)

|
{

Y ! Discipline policies and Parent/Student Handbook
provided and reviewed.

Parent/Student Handbook provided and reviewed.

3. Have the charter’s discipline practices heen updated to include: a
certificated or classified employee may refer a student to school
administrators for in-school intervention or supports from the list
of other means of correction specified in EC 48900.5(b}{1) and
that a school administrator will, within 5 business days document
the actions taken, if any, and place that documentation into the
pupil’s record, and that the school administrator will inform the
referring staff member, verbally or in writing, what actions were
taken, and if none, the rationale for that decision? EC
48901.1(d)(1).

Parent/Student Handbook provided.




7. STUDENT SERVICES

in the column to the right, indicate a finding of Y {ves), N (no},
or N/A (not applicable) to each question/statement below.

N/A

Use the space below to comment on the item
and/or to indicate where information used to
make the Y/N determination can be found.

4. Does the charter’s suspension/expulsion policy state that a pupil
shall not be suspended/expelled based solely on the fact that they
are truant, tardy or otherwise absent from school activities?

EC 48900{\\{_}_{2}_ -

Suspension and Expulsion Policy reviewed.

5. Has the charter updated its suspension and expulsion procedures
| toensure that the written notice regarding pupil involuntary
| transfers is in the native language of the pupil’s parent or
guardian, and in the case of a homeless child or foster youth, in
the native language of the foster youth’s educational rights holder

or attorney and county social worker? {EC 47605(d}(4)}

Evidenced provided and reviewed.

'_6. Do the charter’s expulsion procedures for a student with
exceptional needs wha is a foster child, include that the
educational rights holder and county sacial worker be invited to
the change of placement meeting? {48915.5(d)}

Parent/Student Handbook reviewed.

O

Health and Safety

1. Does the Charter Schooi have a School Safety Plan that includes all
of the topics listed in *EC {32282(a}{2)}? EC {47605(b)(5)(F)}

Safety Plan provided and reviewed.

2. Is there evidence that the School Safety Plan was reviewed and
updated by March 1 {£C 47605(b){5)({F}} and that a public hearing
was held before its adoption? EC 32288(b)(1)

3. Is there evidence that staff has been trained in health, safety, and
emergency procedures? B B

4. Does the Charter School maintain a calendar of emergency drills

for each site in which it operates?

. Does the charter’s Safety Plan include procedures to assess and

respond to reports of any dangerous, violent, or unlawful activity
that is being conducted or threatened to be conducted at an
activity sponsored by the school or on a school bus serving the

t”

| pupils with disabilities in accordance with EC 32282(a)(2)B)?

7. After the March 1 review, or at any time, was the charter notified
by any person of any concern(s) related to the adaptations for
pupils with disabilities? If so, is there evidence that the charter
reviewed the concerns and if found credible, modify the
adaptations, accordingly? £C 32288(a)(2)(B)

If the charter serves students in grades 7-12, does the school’s

Safety Plan include a protocol in the event a student is suffering or

is believed to be suffering from an Opiocid overdose? EC

| 47605({c)(5)(C){ii). - -

9. If the charter offers an athletic program, does it: 1) annually give
the Opioid Factsheet for Parents published by the Centers for
Disease Control and Prevention to each athlete, and if the athlete is
17 years or younger, the athlete’s parent or guardian {electronically
or written copy) and 2) require that it be signed and returned to the
school before the athlete initiates practice or competition? {EC

49476}

03

N/A

Board meeting minutes provided.

| Training records provided.

_| Record of drills provided.

School Safety Plan provided and reviewed.

Parent/Student Handbook and Safety Plan

Safety Plan reviewed.

Opioid Fact Sheet and Athlete signature page
provided.




7. STUDENT SERVICES

In the column to the right, indicate a finding of Y {yes), N
(no), or N/A (not applicable} to each question/statement
below.

N/A

Y
N

Use the space below to comment on the item
and/or to indicate where information used to
make the Y/N determination can be found.

10.

Do records reflect that the Charter School provides for the
screening of pupils’ vision, hearing, and regquired immunizations to
the same extent as would be required if the pupils attended a non-
charter public school?

11.

Has the Charter School notified students and parents/guardians at
least twice a year regarding how to initiate access to available |
student mental health services on campus or in the community?
(EC 49428)

12.

Does the charter have board-adopted Suicide Prevention Policies
for grades K-6 and 7-12 that 1) were created in conjunction with
stakeholders, 2} specifically list its high-risk groups, 3) addresses
the needs of those high-risk students and 4) were updated in the
last 5 years? (¥*EC 215)

13.

Did the Charter School provide each needy pupi! as defined in EC |
439552, with two free nutritionally-adequate meals to any pupil
wha requests a meal without consideration of the pupil’s eligibility
{EC 49501.5(a){2)} with adequate time to eat each, based upon the
recommendations of the National School Lunch/Breakfast
programs? EC 49501.5(1){A)

4.

If the Charter serves grades 7-12 and issues D Cards to students,
did it include the telephone number of the National Suicide
Prevention Lifeline on those cards? {*EC 215.5}

v |

N/A

Immunization Policy and Parent/Student Handbook
reviewed.

Notifications provided on School’s website.

Suicide Prevention Policy provided and reviewed.

Lunch schedule provided.

The charter does not issue |D Cards, but provides the
information on its website.

15.

If the Charter School qualifies for the free federal reimbursement
rate for all meals that it provides, has it applied to provide a |
universal meal service to all students at the school? If not, has it '
submitted a governing board resolution to the state claiming a ‘
fiscal hardship? If so, is there evidence that those finding are
reviewed in a public meeting every two years? {EC 49564(a)}

16.

If the Charter School receives federal funds, does it comply with
the posting on its website in a prominent, conspicuous iocation,
the Title IX information, including the name and contact
number/e-mail for the Title IX Coordinator for that school? (*EC
221.61)

17.

Does the Charter’s Excused Absence Policy include an absence for
the benefit of the pupil’s mental or behavioral health, or for the
purpose of participating in a cultural ceremony/event? (EC 48205)

18.

Does the Charter’s Excused Absence Palicy include the purpose of
attending the funeral services or grieving the death of either a
member of the student’s immediate family or of a person that is
determined by the pupil’s parent/guardian to be in such close
association with the pupil to be considered “immediate family”

50 long as the absence is not more than 5 days per incident? EC
48205(a)(4). !

19.

Does the charter’s Excused Absence Policy include up to three '
days for a student to access services from a victim services ‘
organization, to access grief support services or to participate in
safety planning or to take other actions to increase student safety
or that of an immediate family member? EC 48205(a)(13)

|
|

The charter complies with federal Free/Reduced Lunch
program requirements.

Title IX Coordinator listed on school’s website.

Excused Absence Policy reviewed.

Parent/Student Handbook reviewed.

Parent/Student Handbook reviewed.




7. STUDENT SERVICES

In the column to the right, indicate a finding of ¥ (yes), N (no},
or N/A (not applicable) to each question/statement below.

N/A

Use the space below to comment on the item
and/or to indicate where information used to
make the Y/N determination can be found.

20.

If the charter serves middle or high school students, did it revise its
Excused Absence Policy to include an absence for the purpose of a
student engaging in a civic or political event? (EC 48205)

Parent/Student Handbook reviewed,

21.

Has the charter provided to certificated school site employees who
serve pupils in grades 7-12 information on existing resources
related to the support of LGBQT pupils who may face bias or
bullying? {EC 234.1{d}{1)}?

Staff resources provided for review.

22,

Does the charter’s Safety Plan include procedures for the
storage and administration of emergency epinephrine auto-
injectors? £C 49414(a)

Safety Plan reviewed.

23,

If the charter serves students in grades 9-12, and aliows on-campus
access to employers, does it include access to military services?
EC 49603,

N/A

Pupil and Parent Notifications

6.

- Does the Charter School provide a notice to all parents/guardians

. Are parents provided with annual notifications as required by the

. Has the charter school posted a Notice on its website that states

. Has the charter posted on its website: 1) the name and contact

regarding their rights under the Family Educational Rights and
Privacy Act (FERPA)?

petition, the MOU, and all applicable laws? {EC 48980, £C 48985}

that charter schools are prohibited from discouraging any student
fram enrolling or encouraging students to drop, once enrolled?
(EC47605(e)(4)} B
Did the charter provide a copy of the Notice from tem 7D-3: 1)
When a parent or guardian inquired about enrollment, 2) Before |
conducting an enroliment lottery, 3) Before disenrollment of a L

pupil? {EC 47605(e)(4)(D)}

information of its homeless liaison, and 2) specific information on
homelessness, including educational rights and resources available
to persons experiencing homelessness? (EC 48852.6)

If the charter serves high school students, and enrolled a foster or
homeless youth who is in their 3 or 4% year, who is not on track to |
meet the charter’s educational requirements, did it notify the pupil
and the educational rights holder, and social worker, if applicable,
within 30 calendar days of transfer into the school of the
exemption from the charter’s graduation requirements as
described in Item ID-5? {EC 51225.1}

. If the charter serves high school students, did it provide at least ’

once before grade 12, information on how to properly complete

and submit the FAFSA or the CA Dream Act Application that |
includes information about the types of documentation and .
personal informal that is required, an explanation of definitions |
used for each application, eligibility requirements, application
timelines/deadlines, and the importance of submitting applications
early? {EC51225.8}

N/A |

Y |

+

Y

Annual Notice documents provided.

Annual Notice documents provided.

Website reviewed.

Website and enrollment documents reviewed, as well
as verbal confirmation of providing the Notice upon
disenrollment.

Website reviewed.



7. STUDENT SERVICES

Y | Usethe space below to comment on the item
N | and/or to indicate where information used to
N/A | make the Y/N determination can be found.

In the column to the right, indicate a finding of ¥ {yes), N {no),
or N/A (not applicable) to each question/statement below.

7. Has the charter posted its antidiscrimination policy from ltem 1D-3
above in all school offices, including staff lounges and pupil Y
government meeting rooms? {EC 234.1(e)} Site observation of postings.

9. If the charter serves high schoal students, did it receive a petition il
requesting pupil representation on its governing board? If so, did N/A
the charter add a student representative per EC 47604.27

i

Iltems specific to the Charter Petition and MOU

1. Based on review of pupil data (race, ethnicity, English learner
status, socio-economically disadvantaged {as determined by
eligibility for free/reduced-price meal program), and pupils with '
disabilities), is the Charter School serving a student population ‘
that is reflective of the general population residing within the .
territorial jurisdiction of the school district in which it resides? |

N See ltem 7E-1 Comment below.

2. if not, is the Charter School using all reasonable means to ensure

that the school is equally accessible to enroliment and attendance Y The charter continues to actively conduct
by all students within the boundaries of that district? . community outreach activities.
Comments:

Item 7E-1: Based on 2024 DataQuest Data, the EL enroliment for Arvin USD was 62% and the charter’s was 42.6%. In addition, the
English Only rate for Arvin USD was 26% and the charter’s was 42.3%. Although the charter’s reclassification rate was
higher than the district’s (11.9% vs. 7.1%), the charter is enrolling a higher percentage of English Only students than the
district. Also, the Migrant enrollment for the district was 15.8% while the charter’s rate was 3.1%.

Reviewed conducted by: Cathie Morris, KCSOS Charter School Consultant




L.

Proposition 28: Arts and Music in Schools Funding

Annual Report
Fiscal Year 2023-24

Name: Kern Co. Office of Education
CDS Code: 1510157-0000000
Allocation Year:; 2023-24

1. Narrative description of the Prop 28 arts education pregram(s) funded. (2500 character limit).

The Kemn County Superintendent of Schools (KCSOS) has not yet expended the funding for the FY23-24
Prop 28 arts ecducation program.

2. Number of full-time equivalent teachers (certificated). 0.0
3. Number of full-time equivalent personnel (classified). 0.0
4. Number of full-time equivalent teaching aides. 00
5. Number of students served. 0
8. Number of school sites providing arts education. 0

Date of Approval by Governing Board/Body

Annual Report Data URL
https:/fkern.org

Submission Date

California Department of Education Page 1 of 1 Printed: 09/03/2024, 16:54.23



	Document_240905_140501
	Document_240905_140717

